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Senator Scriweiker. I think that would give us a pretty good clue
as to what was going to be done in the wing the CIA helped to finance.

Was there any indication at all in the records you found that the
project nltimately used cancer paticnts or terminally ill patients in
connection with this facility? _

Admiral TorNer. I'm sorry. I missed your question because I was
trying to get the data on the last one. I will read you the blank.

Senator ScAWEIKER. Go ahead.

Admiral Toaxee. QKHILLTOP. It doesn’t help you, but—-

Senator ScHweiker. Can you tell us what that is, or is it still
classified! _
“Admiral Torxer. 1 don't know, and I sssume from the fact that
we deleted it, it is still classified, but I will get you that answer, sir.

Senator ScEwemer. Thank you. I'd like to see that information.

[See p. 171 for material referred to.]

Now my next question was: Is there any indication, Admiral, that
projects in that particular center involved experimentation on ter-

minally ill cancer patients? ' -

Admiral Torner, I missed the first part of your question, sir. Iam

veg SOrTY. ' : '

nator Schwerxer. Do you have any indication that some experi-
ments in the facility used terminally ill cancer g:tients as subjects?
You do ackmowledge in your statement and it is clar from other docu-
ments that these kinds of experiments were at some point being done
somewhere; My question is, is there any indication that cancer patients
or ternqlnnl¥ ill patients were experimented with in this wing?!

Admiral Tur~er. Yes, it does appear there is a connection here, sir.

Senator ScrwrikEr. The other question I had relates to the de-
velopment of something which has been called the perfect concussion.
A series of experiments toward that end were described in the CIA
documents. I wonder if you would just tell us what your understanding
of perfect concussion is. .

dmiral Turnex. Is that in my testimony, sir, or in some other
document {

Senator ScRwEIER. Subproject 54, MKULTRA, which involved
examination of techniques to cause brain concussions and amnesia by
using weapons or sound waves to strike individuals without giving
warning and without leaving any clear physical marks. Someone
dubbed 1t “perfect concussion”—maybe that was poetic license on the
part of our staff rather than your poets over there. I wonder if you
could just tell us what brain concussion riments were about?

Admira] Torver. This project, No. 54, was canceled, and never
carried out,

Senator Scrweixzn. Well, I do believe the first year of the rgrogect
in 1955 was carried out by the Office of Naval Research, according to
the information that you sutﬁplibd us. The CIA seems to have been par-
ticipating in some way at that point, because the records go on to sa
that the experimenter at ONR found out about CIA’s role, discove
that it _was & cover, and then the project was transferred to
MKULTRA in 1956. Again, this is all from the backup material you
have given us. So, it was canceled at some time. I am not disagreeing
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with that, but apparently for at least a year or two, somebody was
investigating the production of brain concussions with special black-
jacks, sound Wwaves, and other methods as detailed in the backup
material. .

Admiral Torxex The data available to me is that this project was
never funded by the CIA, but I will dsuble-check that and furnish the
information for the record for you as to whether there was ever any
confiection here and if so, what the nature of the work was.

(The material referred to follows:] : |

\Mr. Laubinger corrected his testimony regarding Subproject 54 during the

~September 21, 1977 hearings befors the Subcommitiee on Henlth and Scientific
Research of the Human Resources Committee. The relevant portion is reproduced

below :

3r. Lavsinoer. On project 54, it bas got a rather sensationsl proposal in there,
in terms of the work that they propose to do, and you saked about the proposal
and I said. In fact, it was never funded under MEKULTRA. Now, 1 overiooked—nat
least, my memory did Dot serve me correctly when I went through that file folder
to see one memorandum dated January 10, 1958, which makes it quite tlear, as a

maiter of fact, that that proposal was based on prior work that was funded by—--

the Agency:

Senator ScEwHKER. By what?

Mr. Lavsinoza. By the CIA. So, that information was in thelir fils folder. It
did not happen to be in my head when I testified.

Senator Scuweixea 1 think I might have read you that, and that is why 1
argued at the time with you, because I think I had in front of me, as I recall,
somye indication that It was funded there. 1 did read that to you. So, you did
supply it to us; there is no argument about that information.

M LivemncEs Perhaps I am sort of beadstrong, myself, and in my own rview,
4 am reading under the ULTRA project, that if it had been fuonded under
TLTRA, it would have had a project number and identified as such. The thing
that threw me was that it waa funded, apparently, outside of any MEULTRA
activity and it was under the normal contracting process, so that it was not
included. In MKTULTRA as any work done under that funding umbrella.

The file foider that you have and I have, right bere, makes it quite clear,
however, that & year's work was done through navy funding—a BAYY funding
mechanism—on wkich the proposal was based that ultimately came into the
MEULTRA program. That second proposal was never funded. So, there was
conflict and 1, personally, I think, introduced a little bit of confusion in that in
my testimony.

Senator SCHWEIXE:. Well, do you agree or not agree with DOD's statement
bere that even though the initial fonding was pavy, it was really a conduit for

the CIA?
Afr. LavrixoEs. I think that is correct.

Senator Scawzmker. Yes; I would appreciate that. T would like to
know how it went from ONR to CIA after a year. Somebody made a
decision to make that transfer, and to make this sn MKULTRA sub-
ject. There had to be some sort of review that led to a decision to
continue that kind of concussion—total blackout, maximum amnesia,
and whatever else it was you were interested in—study and testing.

Mr. LauvBiNGeR. Senstor, if I may try to say a few words on that,
the files that were avajlable to us for inspection, which are limited,
indicated that there was a project being carried on by the Navy having
to do with the effects of brain concussion. The CIA eveloped an inter-
est in that, and considered funding it, but actually never did. and as

the admiral testified, the MKULTRA is merely 2 : unding mechanism,.

s place they go for money to do such things, but there is no evidence
that T know of that that project was ever funded.
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Senator Scuweiker. Well, T am confused, because here again is an-
other quote from a document that we have séen, which yod have re-
leased and supplied to us: - .

Following'is the technicai progress made under the current [deleted] contract:
(6) Spccielized Instrimentation and Dumerous testing techniques have been
developed to obtain the dexired dynamic data; (b) considerable data has now
been obtained supporting the resopance-cavilation theory of brain concussion ; and

(c) preliminary acceleration threshold data has been obtalned for a fiuid-filled
glass simulated skull,

It goes on to talk about a blast range and a 2,500-square-foot labora-
tory. Tl}e document notes that “Three blast test series have been run
to date.” It describes a special blackjack device, “s pancake-type black-
jack giving a high pesk impact force with a low unit surface pressure.”

I agree the records are inconclusive as to the results of this work,
but it certainly seems that some testing was done.

Mr. LausiXcER. Senator, you are putting us in the same position
T think you were stating that you were in earlier in referring to docu-
ments not before us, but I believe you are quoting from a pro
that sumeone sent to the Agency to fund this work, snd he is referring
to past work. The past work would have encompassed s lot of things
like that, but CIA was not involved with that.

Senator Scnweiker. What do you mean, Admiral, on page 6 of your
testimony when yon mention projects using magician's art! How do
magicians get into the spook businesst :

Admiral Torver I have interpreted this as to how to slip the micke
into the finn, but T would like to ask my advisers here to commen!

Mr. Broor. I think that is essentially it, Senator. It is surre titious
administration of material to someone, deceptive practices, how to
distract someone’s attention while you are doing something else, as
I understand it, It was also some type of a covert communication
project involved with the study of how magicians and their assistants
perhaps communicate information to one another without having other
people know it. This is the type of thing that was involved, sir.

Senator Scnweisrr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator INoUTE. Senator Huddleston?

Senator HuppresTox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Adimniral, in your checking these newly discovered documents and

. interviewing members of the CIA staff, did &ou find information that

would confirm the contention described by the reporters for the New
York Times that this type of esperimentation was begun out of &
fear at the Agency that f_oreiﬁ powers- might have had drugs which
would allow them to alter the behavior of American citizens or agents
or members of the Armed Forces who were taken into cu.stod? and
which would have resulted in false confessions and the liket Is my
question clear?! .

Admiral Turner. Yes, sir. I haven’t personally read the documen-
tation on that. In my discussions with-the people Who are well in-
formed in this urea at the Agency, I amtold that that is the case. .

Senator HoopLEsTON. Was there any evidence or any indication that
there were other motives that the Agency might also be looking for
drugs that could be applied for other purposes, such as debilitating an
individual or even killing another person? Was this part of this kind
of experimentation!
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Admiral Toryes. Yes; I think there is. T have not seen in this series
of documentation evidence of desire to kill, but I think the project
turned its character from a defensive to an offensive one as it went
along, and there certainly was an intention here to develop drugs that
could be of use. . '

Senator HrooLzsToN. The project continued for some time after it
was learned that, in fact, foreign powers did not have such a drug as
was at first feared, didn’t it

Admirs]l Toryer. That is my understanding. Yes, sir.

Senator HuopLestox. Is there any indication that knowledge gained

. as a result of these experiments has been useful or is being appfi:d in
s _ any way to present operations?. -
__Mr. BrooY. Senator, I am not sure if there is any body of knowledge.
A great deal of what there was, I gather, was destroyed in 1973. I
would like to defer to Frank here, Do you know of any
. Mr. LAUBINGER. I know of no drugs or anything like that developed
under this program that ever reached operational use or are in use
—t e e - - . - e mmm ——— — & mem——
: Se{uwr Huporeston. So apparently any information that was
gathered was apparently useless and not worth continuing, not worth
further development on the part of the Agency.

Mr. Lavsinaer. ] am having difficulty hearing your questions.

Senator HopoLzstoN. I can hardly hear myself.

Admira]l Turnex. I think the answer to your question is that we have
no evidence of great usefulness on this, and yet I think we should
remember— '

Senator Hooorzston. Well, is it accurate to say that this experimen-
tation produced few useful results or had little application at all to the
operstions of the. Agency or anybod{:sl)se as far as we kmow! ‘

Admiral Torwza. I think that is basically correct. At the same time,
I would point out that we had two CIA prisoners in China and one in
the Soviet Union at this time. and we were concerned as to what kinds
of things might be done to them, but I am not saying thut—-

Senator HuooLzstoN, Have you detected any sign that any other na-
tion is continuing or has in the past conducted experiments similar to
this or with a similar objective?! -

Admiral Torxzn T am not prepared to snswer that one off the top
of my head, sir, but I will get it to you.

a . [The materisl referred to follows:]

We maintain no files of up-to-date information on the testing of drugs in
foreigm countries. Some years ago we occasionally would review foreign research
on aptibictice and pharmaceunticals in connection with pubdlic beslth and civil
defense assesments. For a few years begimning in 1949 we assessed foreign

¢ eacarch on LSD vider Project ARTICHOKE because of concern that such

drugs might be employed gainst Agency and other U.S. personnel Information
relative to this work has already been provided to relevant Committees. In this
early work we also occamionally looked at foreign human experimentation; we
long sgo eliminated our boldings on this subject and no collection requirements
are any longer served As consumer ipterest in this area has dropped off
and higher priority areas need attention, we have virtually no present coverage
with the posaible exception of an occasional scanning of the litersture for a
specific am. To the best of our knowledge no other nnit In the Intelligence
Cornmunity is tracking this subject now.
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Senator HoooLeston. You don't know whether any of your agents
snywhere in the world have been subjected t6 any kind of procedure
like this? T - .

Admiral Toevzz. We certainly know of other powers conducting
research in these sreas, yes. |

Senator Huvprzstox. Do you know how they goabout that research

Admiral Toryee. It is pretty sketchy, the information we have.

Senator Hroorestox. Do you know of any other organization in this
country or any institution that hes conducted extensive research on
unwitting individuals and through unwittin institutions?

Admiral Tuener Well, T have resd some ing in the newspapers
sbout this, but T have not familiarized myself with it in specifics.

Senator HupoLrsToN. It is not & normal mode of operation for hu-
man research, is it!

Admiral Turver. No, sir.

Senator Huoorestox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Ixouye. Senator Wallopt

Senator Warror. Mr. Chairman, I only have one to follow up on
Senator Huddleston’s questions and my earlier ones. You are not really
caying, are you, Admiral Turner, that there are no mind-altering
drugs or behavior modification procedures which have been used by
foreign powers?

Admiral Turyer. No, sir, I am not.

Senator Wavrrop. I drew that inference partly in answer to my ques-
tion that you knew of no truth serum. Maybe that is a misnomer, but
surely there are relaxants that make tongues looser than they would
otherwise be. Isn’t that true?

Admiral TorvER. Yes,

Senator Warror. So I think it is fair to say, too, that the experience
of many American prisoners of war in the Korean conflict would
indicate that there are bebavior modification procedures in use by
foreign powers of a fairly advanced degree of sophistication.

Admiral Toenzx. Yes, sit.

Senator WaLLor. Again, I will just go back and say I think this
must have been part of the motivation. I don't think you would have
mentioned Cardinal Mindszenty had you thought his behavior was
normal at the time or had anybody else, So, I would just again say
I think it is a little bit scapegosting. I don’t think the object of this

hearing is in any way to lay blame on those passed or those dead or
otherwise, but I think it is a little bit scapegoating to say that it
stopped with the directors of the CIA or the DCI’s of the time. Also
I think it is a little bit scapegoating to say they didn't even kmow it,
but that it was some lower echelon acting alons.

T think this was & behavior pattern that was prevalent in those
years, and I think the object lesson is that we have discovered, we
think and we hope, through your assurances and other activities of
the Congress, means of avoiding future incidents of that kind. T thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator INoUTE. Senator Chafeet

Senator Crarzr. No questions. .

Senator Ixouyr. Senator Kennedy, I think you have another
question. -
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Senator Kevxeor. Just talking about the two safe houses on the
east and west const as being the sources for the unwitting trials, now,
the importance of this and the magnitude of it, I think, is of signifi-
cance, because we have seen from your records that these were
over & period of 8 or 9 years, and the numbers could have been con-
sidernble. You are unable to determine, at least in your own research,
what the numbers would be and what the drugs were, how many people
wfem involved, but it could have been considerable during this period
of time.

It would certsinly ,uprur to me in examining the documents and
the flow charts of cash slips that were expended in these areas that it

_was considerable, but that is a judgmental factor on it, but I think
itis ‘x’iﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ'tT'y‘md'ﬁer—out"whnt-the—Agency—is—sttempting to
doto get to the bottom of it.

Now, the ri'ncig:: agent that was involved as I understand it is
deceased and has been eceased for 2 years. The overall agent, Mr.
Gottlieb, has indicated a fuzzy memory about this whole area. He
has testified before the Intellizence Committee. Yet he was r:sapon-
sible for the whole program. Then, the Director had indicated the
dest;:::uon of the various materials and .unfamiliarity with the
proj | -

Now, you have indicated in your testimony today that there are two
additional agents on page 9 of your testimony, you indicated there
are two additional agents which you have uncovered 8t the bottom of
it, and you say, the names of CIA officials who approved or monito
the various projects. You talk about the two additional agents in your
twtimonfc . . . - .

‘Now, I am just wondering if you intend to interview those agents
to find out exactly what is being done. I suppose, first of all, shouldn’
the project manager know what was being dpone! '

Admiral TurNEr. Our first problem, Senator, is that we have been
unable to associate an individual with those names at this point. We
are still burrowing to find out who these people are. ‘We haven't identi-
fied them as having been CIA employees, and we don’t know whether
these were false names. .

Senator KENNEDY. You are tracking that down, as T understand itt

Admiral TurNER. Yes, sir.

Senstor KzNxepY. You are tracking that down, and you have every
intention of interviewing those people to find out whatever you can
about the program and project { :

; )| - .
Admiral TorNer. My only hesitation here is whether I will do this

or the Justice Department.

Senator Kenwzoy, It will be pursued, though, I understand?

Admiral Torwex. Yes, sir. _

Senator Kzxveoy. Either through the Agency or through the Jus-
tice Department !

‘Admirsl TorNze. [Nods in the afirmative.]

Senator KEnvEDY. Is it plausible that the director of the program
would not understand or know about the details of the glrogram!
Is it plausible that Dr. Gottlieb would not understand the full range
of activities in those particular safe houses!
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" .%dmzral Turner. Let me say it is unlikely, I don’t know Mr. Gott-

eb. :

Senator Kexwzoy. Has anybody in the Agency talked with Mr.
Gottlieb to find out about this? . ‘

Admiral Tor~ver. Not since this revelation has come out.

Senator Kennzor. Not since this revelation? Well, why nott

Armiral Tornzz. He has left our employ, Senator.

Senator KENNEDY. Does that mean that anybody who leaves is, you
know, covered for lifetime? '

Admirsl Torvex. No, sir.

Senator Kzxyepy. Why wouldn't you talk with him and find out?
You have new information about this program. It has been & matter
of considerable interest both to our committee and to the Intelligenco
Committee. Why wouldn’t you talk to Mr. Gottlieb?

‘Admirs]l TuaNer Well, agsin, T think the issue-is whether this
should be done by the Justice Department or ourselves.

Senator KZNNeDY. Well, are we wrestling around because you and
Attorney General Bell can’t agree—

Admiral Toryer. No, sir.

Senstor Kmmr“;continuing]. On who ought to do it?

‘A dmiral TURNER. We are proceeding together in complete agreement
as to how to go. I have, in connection with trying to find all of these
‘Americans or others who were unwittingly tested, I have some con-
sidersble concern about the CIA running around this country inter-
viewing and interrogating people, because I don't want to give any
impression that we are doing domestic intelligence.

ator Kexneoy. T am just talking about one, in this case. That
was the man who was responsible for the whole program, and to
find out whether l.n{one within the Agency since you have had this
new material has talked to Gottlieb since 1975, and if the answer is
no, I want to know why not. ' .

‘A dmiral Turnee, The resson he wis not interviewed in connection
with the 1975 hearings was that he had left the employ of the CIA
and there was a concern on the part of the Agency that it would appear
to the investigators that the CIA was in some way trying to influence
him -and influence his testimony before the committee. If these
committees have no objection, we would be happy to contact Dr.
Gottlieb and see if he can augment anything here in this new infor-
mation, though I don't think there is much in this new information
that he can add to as opposed to what was available in 1975.

Senator Kxxneoy. Well, youn see, Admiral Turner, come to the

two committees this morning and indicate that now at last we have the
information. We don’t have to be concerned sbout anything in the
future on it. Now, I don’t know how you can give those assurances to
the members of these committees as well as to the American people
when you haven't since 1975 even talked to the principal person that

was in charge of the program, and the records were destroyed. He is

the fellow that was running the program, and the Agency has not
‘t1ked to him since the development of this new ma ial.

Admira] Torwen. Our only concern here is the proprieties involved,
and we will dig into this and work with the Justice Department on
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who, if either of us, should get into discussions with Dr. Gottlieb so as
not to prejudice any legal rights that may be involved here, or to ap-
pear in any way to be improger. _

Senator Kexnepy. Well, do I understand you have not contacted the
Justice Department about this particular case since the development
of this new material about Gottlieb?

Admiral Torszz. Not about Gottlieb specifically. We have contacted
him.

Senator Kexyeoy, Well, it is amazing to me. I mean, can you under-
stand the dificulty that any of us might have in terms of comprehend-
ing that when you develop a whole new series of materials that are on
the front page of every newspaper in the country and are on every tele-
vision, I mean; that- means-something; but-it does not-mean nearly as

much as the interest that we have in the fact about the testing of un-

witting-Americans, and every single document that the staff reviews

has Mr. Gottlieb’s name on it and {ou come u&to tell us that 'we don’t
have to WOITy any more, we have these other al facts, and Mr, Gott-
lieb has not beei: talked tof :

‘Admiral Toaxzs, Sir, I am not saying that these are in any way the
final facts. T am saying these are all the facts we have available.

Senator Kexneoy. And you have not talked to the person who was
in charge of the program, so what kind'of value or what kind of weight

" can we give it .

Admiral Toexzr. We are hlpg to talk to him. I think'the issue
here again is one of propriety and how to about this. We have-not,
1 believe, enough new information about tlieb’s participstion here
to signal that his interview would be that much more revealing than
what was revealed in 1975, _

Senator Kxxxor, The importance of it, I think, from our point
of view, is, he would lmow the drugs that were administered, the vol-
ume of drugs, how it was administered, and in terms of your ability
to follow up to protect these people and their health, to the extent that
it can be done, that opportunity is being lost. o

1 want to get on to some others, but will youn give us the assurance
that yon will get ahold of Gottlieb or that you will talk to Attorney
General Bell and talk with Gottlieb? -

Admira]l Torver. Yes, sir.

Senator Kxxnzoy. And let us know as to the extent of it. T don’t
seo how we can fufill our responsibilit in this area on the drug test-
ing without our hearing from Gottlieb as well, but I think it is im-
t;p:ertlglt that you do so, particularly since.all of the materials have

n .

These other two agents, have they talked to them!

Admirsl TorNER We don’t know who they are, sir. We are trying
to track down and see whether these names can be releated to anybody.

Senator Kzn~epY, That is under active investigation by the Agency?t

Admiral Toryer. Yes, sir, .

Senator Kzxxroy. And you have the intention of talking to those
people when you locate them. Is that correctt

Admiral TorvEr Yes, sir, under the same circumstances as Gottlieb.

Senator KExNEDY. And you have people working on it1
Admiral ToeyNer Yes, sir.

p-—n
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Senator Kexnepy, With :l;gnrds to the activities that took place in
these safe houses, as I understand from the records, two-way mirrors
ware used. Is that your understanding? , .

Admiral ToenER. Yes, sir. We have records that construction. was
done to put in two-way mirrors.
Senator KeNNeDY. And they were placed in the bedroom, as I
understand. :
Pause.] :
nator KENNEDY. Well, we have documents——

Admiral Turner. I believe that was in the Church record, but I

don’t have the details,

Senstor KENNEDY. And rather elaborate decorations were added, as
I understand, at least, to the-one in San-Francisco,in-the bedroom,
which are French can-can dancers, floral pictures, drapery, including
installation of bedroom mirrors, three framed Toulouse Lautrec post-
ers with black silk mats, and a number of other—red bedroom cur-
tains and recording equipment, and then a series of documents which
were provided to the committee which indicate a wjde proliferation
of different cash for $100, generally in the $100 range over an period
of time on the particular checks. Even the names are blocked out, as
to the person who is receiving it. Cash for undercover agents, operat-
ing expenses, drinks, entertainment while administering, and then it
is dashed out, and then the other documents, that would suggest, at
least with the signature of your principal agent out there, that—
“called to the operation, midnight, and climax.”

What can you tell'us that it might suggest to you sbout what tech-
niques were being used by the Agency in terms of reaching that sort
of broad-based group of Americans that were being evidently enticed
for testing in terms of drugs and otherst Do you draw any kind of
conclusion about what might have been going on out there in these
safe houses? i
- Admiral Tor~yen. No, sir. '

gGener_aI laughter.} .

enator Kxnnzoy, There is a light side to it, but there is also an
enormously serious side. And that is that at least the techniques which
are used or were used in terms of testing, and trying to find out ex-
actly the range of drugs used and the numbers of people involved and
exactly what that operation was about, as well as the constant reitera-
tion of the use of small sums of cash at irregular intervals. A variety
of different techniques were employed but there is an awful lot of

documentation putting these matters together. .

. When you look at the fact that it is a broad nn%l]:opulatlon that
has been tested, tested in these two areas, with the kind of cash slips
that were used in this, %ayment mechanisms and decorations and all
of the rest, we are not-able to put a bottom line on it but one thing is
for sure, and that is, Gottlieb knows. That is one thing for sure, be-
cause his name sppears on just about every one of these documents,
and it i8, I think, very important to find out what his understanding
is of the nature of that. So, we will hear more nbout that.

c Admiral TourszR. T believe Gottlieb has been interviewed by the
ongress.

Senator Kennzoy, That’s right, he has, and in reviewing the record.

it is not very satisfactory, and it just seems with the new information
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and the new documentation and the new memoranda—and he did not
have the checks at that time—and with the wide variety of different
memoranda Wwith his name on it, his memory could be stimulated on

that.

Thank you. . _
Senator INouvE. 1 would like to thank the admiral and his staft for

articipating in this hearing. I believe the record should show that this
EearinF was held at the request of the Agency and the admiral. It was
e

not held because we insisted upon it. It was & volunteer effort on the

part of the Agency. I think the record should also indicate that Ad- -

Hiral Turner has forwarded to this committee a classified file including
all of the names of the institutions and the persons involved as the
experimentors. —- N =
shouid also indicate that this hesaring is just one step involved in
" the commi:tee’s investigation of drug abuse. Just as you have had much
work in going over 'the*S,OOOIp"?s; the staff-of this committee has had.
cqual problems, but I would like the record to show that you have
made these papers and documents available to the committee. I
you for that. - L . .

As part of the ongoing investigation, we had intended to call upon
rany dozens of others, experimentors, or those officials in charge, an
one of those will be Dr. Gottlieb.

Tn thanking you, I would like to say this to the American people,
that what we have experienced this morning in this committee room
is not beinf; duplicated in any other committee room in any other part
of the world. I doubt that very much. Our Agenc; and our intelligence
community has been under much criticism and has been subjected to
much abuse, in many cases justified, but this is the most open society
that I can think of. For example, in Great Britain there are about six
people who sre aware of the identity of the man in charge of intelli-
gence. In other countries, similar conditions exist. Here in the United
States we not only know Admiral Turner, we have had open hearings
with him, such as this. The confirruation hearings were all open.

In a few weeks, the Senate of the United States will debate = resolu-
tion to decide upon whether we should disclose the smounts and funds
being used for counterintelligence and national intelligence. I would
hope that in presenting this issue to the public, the media will take note
that the Agency has cooperated and ‘will continue to. The abuse that
_ we have learned about this morning is one I hope will never hap
again, but without constant oversight on the part of the Executive
Office. on the part of the Congress, it could happen again. It is.impor-
tant therefore that we continue in this oversight activity.

So, once again, Admiral, I thank yon very much for helping us. We

will continue to call upon you for your assistance. We would like to

submit to you several questions that the members and stafl have pre-
. pared. We hope you will look them oyer carefully and prepare re-
sponses for the record, sir. )

Senator Kexyeor. Mr, Chairmant

Senator INoUTE. Yes, sir!

Senator KENNTDY. I, too, want to thank Admiral Turner for his
responsiveness. I have had meetings with him in the committees and
also conversations, telephone conversations, and private meetings, and
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I have founc} him personally to be extremely responsive, and it is a
very difficult’challenge which he has accepted in headin this Agency.
T want you to know, personally, I, too, would like to see this put behind
us. T don’t think we are quite there yet in terms of this particular ares
that we are interested in. I think the Intelligence ommittee has
special responsibilities in this area of the testing, so we look forward
to working with you in expediting the time that we can put it behind,
but it does seem to me that we have to dig in and finish the chapter.
So, I want to personally express my appreciation to you, Admiral
Turner, and thank you for your cooperation and your help,and I look
forward to working with you. '

Admiral Torxer. Thank you. .

Senator Hoooreston. Mr. Chairman, I am not sure you em hasized
this enough, but I think the record ought to show that Admira Turner
informed: the_Select Committee on his own: initiative when the new
documentation was found. The documentation has been made avail-
able to us voluntarily, in a spirit of cooperation. " _

T think this shows a vast difference from the mode of operation that
existed prior to the formation at least of the Church committee, and
a difference that is very helpful.

Senator Ixorryr. Thank you very much. Thank you very much,
Admiral.

We would now like to call upon Mr. Philip Goldman and Mr. John
Gittinger.

gr. Goldman and Mr. Gittinger, will you please rise and take the
oa oy

Do you solemly swear that the testimony you are about to give is
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth, so help you, Ged 1!

Mr. GoLouax. I do.

Mzr. Grrringer T do.

Senator Inoure. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Goldman, will you identify yourself, and after that, Mr.
Gittinger.

Senator KexneDY. Before we start in, we had a third witness, Mr.
Chairman, Mr. Pasternac, who planned to testify, traveled to Wash-
ington—he lives in Washington, and was contacted recently—with
the intention of testifying this morning. And something—he called
us late this morning and indicated that he wanted to get a counsel
before he would wish to.testify.

Senator INouye. Mr. Goldman.

Mr. Goldman, will you identify yourself, sir.

TESTIMONY OF PHILIP GOLDMAN, FORMER EMPLOYEE, CENTRAL
INTELLIGENCE AGENCY B

. Mr. Goroxax. I am Philip Goldman. :
s Senator INouYE. And you are a former employee of the.Central
Tntelligence Agency? .
Mr. GoLoMAN. Over 10 years ago.
Senator INouye. And you were employed at the time when
MKULTRA was in operation! - '
" Mr. GoLoMaN. There were some MKULTRA's in operation at the
time I was there.
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Senator INouye And Mr. John Gittinger, sre you a former em-
ployee of the Central Intelligence Agency!

TESTIMONY OF JOHN GITTINGER, FORMER EMPLOYEE, CERTRAL
INTELLIGERCE AGERCY

Mr. Grrroverr. I am.

Senator INOUYE. Are you still an employes!

Mr. GrrriNaer. No.

Senator INouye. Were you & member of the Agency at the time
MEULTRA was in operation?

Mr. GTITINGER. Yes. -

Senstor INouTe. Thank you. Senator Kennedz.

Senstor Kzxnzpy. I want to weloome both of you to the committee.

If we could start with Mr. Goldman. Were you the im]ect engineer
for the safe houses in either San Francisco of New York!

__ Mr. Gorouax. I know of not safehouse in"San'F

Serator Kzvwiny. How about in New Yorkt
Mr. GowomaN. I knew of one facility that was established there,

but I didn't know snything of its operation.

Senstor KENNzpY. Wers you s monitor on any testing of drugs on
unwitting persons in San Franciscot

Mr. GoLomaN. No. |

Senstor KznnzoY. Well, we have s classified document here that was
provided by the Agency that lists your name as & monitor of the pro-
gram and T would sppreciate it if you would look—

My, Goroxman. I think the misunderstanding arises because I was

project officer.
Senstor Kznzoy. Well, waquld you take a look at that !

[Mr. Goldman m’ls‘ﬁted the document.]

Mr. Gowomax. Thi document as it states is correct. However,
my— ° :

%emr Krxnepy. That document is correct!

Mr, GoromaN. As far as 1 see on the first page, the project. But .

m  e——
ySemi:or KeNvNepT. Well, could I get it back, please.
That would indicate that you were & monitor of the program.
HEE. GoromaX. I was in charge of disbursing the moneys to Morgan
Senator KznwroY. To whom was that? :
Mr. Goromax. To the individual whose name was Bsted at the top
of that document. . .
Senstor KeNweo¥. And you knew that he was running the project
in San Francisco! -
Mr. GoroMax. I knew he was the person who was in charge out

* there.

Senator KzNNEDY. All right.

Mr, Goromax. But I had no knowledge nor did I seek knowledae of
actuslly what he was doing, because there would be other thi
involved. ' '

I did receive—

Sepator KENNEDY. What were you doing?

— iy
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Mr. Gowoman. I was collecting—I had to be sure that sll the re-
ceipts that ever were turned in balanced with the moneys that were
paid out to see that everythinf was run all right, There was no illegal
use of funds as far as we could determine by the receipts and :

Senator KENNEDY. So even though the Agency document indicates
that you were a monitor for the program, one of the few monitors of
that particular program which you mentioned for San Francisco and
Mill Valley, Calif., you described your responsibility only as & carrier
of monay, is that correct{

Mr. GoLomaw. I would say as a disburser or carrying out—seein
that the moneys were handled properly. There was within that—
don’t.1 kmow what’s done or what he did do in conjunction with other

eople. o
P Senator Kzyyeny. Were you responsible for the disbursement of

 all the funds!

Mr. Gorpman. I was responsible for turning over the check to him.

Senator Kzx~epY. And what did you know of the program itself!

Mr, GotoxaN. The only thing I kmew of the program was what he
furnished us in terms of receipts and that sort of thing. I didn’t in.
dulge or concern myself in that.

Senator KEnNEDY. You still wrote, and T'll let you examine it— -
it's & classified document—but you wrote a rather substantive review
of the program in Mav of 1963, talking about the experiments, the
factus] dats that had be- n collected, covert and realistic field trials,
about the necessity of those particular—and talked about the effec-
tiveness of the various programs, the efficiency of various delivery
systems. That doesn't sound to me like someone who is only——

Mr. Goromax. Well, if you would refresh my memory, if I couid
read this I would certainly agree with whatever is said there, 1f it was

Senator Kzx~EDY. T am trying to gather what your role was, You've
indicated first of all that you didn’t know ubout——you knew about a
safe house in New York; now we find out that you're the carrier for
the resources as well and the agent in San Franciseo. We find out now
that the CIA put you as a monitor. You're testifying that you only were
the courier, and here we have just one document, and there are many
others that talk about the substance of that program with your name
o? it and I am just trying to find out exactly what role you were

ann’. -
P Mr. Gorpmax. The only thing I can tell you about this and I am
drawing completely on my memory is that this individual who was
in charge out there conducted these things and reported them back to
the Agency. I didn't participate in any of them. Al T know was that he
furnished me with receipts for things that were done and told of the
work that they had done, - '

Senstor KENNEDY. Well, that document covers more than receipts.
th'Mr. Gowparax. Yes, it tells of what—they had conducted work out

ere. : .

Senator KENNEDY. It describes, does it not! Read the paragraph 2.

Mr. Gorpatan. “A nnmber of covert”— -

Senator KENNEDY. Well, you can’t read it. it's 8 classified document,
and I don’t know why, quite frankly, but it relates to the substan:e
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of those programs snd your name is signed to the memorandums on
it. T am not interested in you trying to review for us now what is in the
Jocument, but I think it would be unfortunate if we were jeft with the
opinion that sll you were was a courier of resources when we see a
document Wwith your name or. it, signed, that talks about the substance
of the pro . And what we’re interested in is the substance of the
program. We have the recent documents that were provided by the
Agency, which do indicate that you were at least involved in the
substance, and I'm just trying to find out whether you're willing to
te]l us about that. o
""Mr. Goromax. I am perfectly willing to tell you everything that
I can remember.
Senator KennNeoy. But you can’t remember anything.
~Mr.—GoLdMaAN. ] can’t’ remember the substantive -parts of these
things, I reslly can’t.
‘Senator Kexweny. Of the fro that was taking place,
Do you have any greater familiarity with what was happening in

Mr. Goroyan. No, no.

Senator KexNepY. And you have the same function with regards
to New York!

Mr. Gowomax. The same function with regard to New York.

Senator Kexnepr. Did you ever go to San Franciscot -

Mr. GoLDMAN. Yes.

Senator Kenneor. Did you meet with the agent in charge!

Mr. GoLDMAN. Yes. :

Senator Ken~epy. And why did you meet with him!

Mr. Goroaax. To discuss some of the receipts and things that were
there to find out if these were indeed true cxpenditures and to find out
ilf everything was going along all right for the work that was being

one.

Senator Kexvepy. What work was being done!

Mr. GoLomax. No, the reports of these things and whatever was
being done. I don’t know who he reported to but he did report to
somebody.

Senator Kexnzoy. You travel out there to find out about the work
that’s being done, and what does he tell you, that the work is being
done well an :

Mr. Gooaan. He told me that the work that they were doing was
going along, progressing satisfactorily, but to be very frank with

you— X

Senator Kzxnepy. But be didn’ tell you what the work was?

Mr. Goroumax, To be very frank with you, Senator, I cannot re-
member the things that happened back in those days. I've been away
from the company—from the Agency for over 10 years, and that is
even farther back than that, and that was just about the time when I
first engaged in this, so it was my first——

Senator Kzxnzoy, Did they disburse s series of $100 checks, to
your recollection! : '
hMréid.Gommx. I don’t recollect it, but if you have it there, then
they y

Senator Kexnepy. Did you know Dr. Gottlieb?

Mr. GoroMaXN. Yes. :
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Senator Kenveoy. How did {’ou know Dr. Gottlieb! _

Mt:d. Gowosux. He had been head of the division when I was re-
erui )

Senator Kznneor. Did you talk to him about these programs Did
you have anything to do with him during this period of time?

Mr. GoromaN. I didn’t have anything to do with him until I would
say probably in the sisties. '

Senator Kenrzz. And can you tell us what you had to do with
him thent : _ :

Mr. GoLbMAN. Just what you see there on the papers. _

Senator Kxxxeoy. Well, that is the request for the money and he
-ap romlt — . oo .- — . IV e

r. Guzraax. That is the request for money and he approves it,

and I am quite sure that I %’robtbly discussed with him whether the

work was going along all right, whether his reports were being turned - -~~~

in, and whether he was satisfied with the way things were going
and did h%hn; aliydlc;m&hints about ﬁ:e myy'.ﬁltherhpeopled were
requesting him, but I did not engage myself in an ing he was doing.

enator KENNEDY. Well, did you get the impression that Gottllg& _
knew what was going on!

Mr. Goromax. I didn't ask.

Senator KENNEDY. But you told him that your impression that what
wes going on even though you didn’t know what was going on, was go-
ing on well, I guess? [Laughter.]
hMr. Gomnlﬁlt. I lt;;ld Gottlileb whﬁt n;:h? s:]s:w in there was th:l.t the
things sppeared to ing along s t. I was repeatirig and par-
rotlilri‘; back the wordsg?}]a% were given to me whilep;‘was there. -
lmsen:tor Kexnzor. What was the money being spent for, do you

ow .

Mr. GoLomax. No; I can’t recall that, sir.

Senator KennEny. Would you remember if we told you it was red
curtains and can-can pictures——

Mer. Goroman. No, sir.

Senator Kzxnzor. Floral pictures and the rest.

Mr. GoLoxax. No, sir.

Senator Kznnzoy. Recorders.

Mr. Gouomax. No,sir, :

Senator Kenvepy. Recorders and two-way mirrors.

Mr. GoLoaan. Wait, hold on. You're slipping s word in there now.

Senator Kexvzor. But you would have suthorized those funds,
would you not, since you were

Mr. GoLpxax. Did you say two-way mirrors!

Senator Kzvimy. Yes.

Mr. Goroxax. Where! |

Senator Kennroy. In the safe houses.

Mr, GoLoxmaxN. Where!

Sensator KxxyeoY. San Francisco.

Mr. Goroxax. No.

Senator Kexxzoy. How about New York! )

Mr., GoLbaaN. -Yes. ,

Senator KenNzpy. You remember now that you approved expendi-
tures for New Yorkt .
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Mr. GoLoMaN. Yes.

Senator KENNEDY. What were those expenditures fort

Mr. GoLoMax. That was a transfer of money over for the use in
:f apartment 1n New York by the Buresu of Narcotics. It was for

eir use. -

Senator Kexwmy. Do you have any knowledge of what was oi
on in the apartment?! 7 v gomne

Mr. GOLDMAN. No, sir, other than I know that it had been used, ac-
cording to the information that I have been given, it was used by the
Bureau of Narcotics to make meetings with individuals who they were
interested in with regard to pushing dope—not pushing dope, but sell-
ing narcoties and that sort of thing.

ggnator KexnNeny. Well, I am sure you had many responsibilities and
it's s long time ago, but the Agency does indicate that you were project
monitor for that particglar program. -~ ~ """ T ° |

Mr. GoLpxax. That’s correct. )

Senator KENNEDY. Your own testimony indicates you went out tore-

view the expenditures of funds to find out whether they were being

wiselﬂ used, that {gu came back and talked to the project director, Mr.

t-(iot,t jeb, to give him a progress report about what was going on out
ere.

Mr. GoLouaN. Yes, sir, I did.

Senator KExNEDT. All those things are true, and yet you draw a
complete blank in terms of what was the project itself. t's where
the record isnow.

Mr. GorpmaX. I did not go out there to review the projects nor did
I come back and talk with Mr. Gottlieb and review what T had observed
in terms of shy pro)ects that thef-t.lru is, oth:asa-rts of the A y
might have in operation there. I simply repo back those things
which were told to me by the individual out there who—and I carried
them back and they are contained in the report that you have in front
of you, word for word, just as it was given to me.

enator Kznnzoy. The report that you examined here is a substan-
tive report on the particular program and project. And I don’t think
anyone who wasn't familiar with the proj is is a personal] evalu-
stion—could write a report on the substance of it without knowing
about it. Now, that’s mine. Maybe you can’t remember and recollect,
and that's— '

Mr. GoroMaN. No; everything I put down in there is things that I
was told while I was out there. and if there was any ancillary informa-
riion 'ti.nvolved in there I can tell you I just don’t remember that. I really

on . .

‘At the time—that was some years ago. At the time—a Jot of time has
passed since then and I have made quite sure that if I could recollect it
at all, T would do it. If you have some papers and you want me to cer-
tify w:ﬁfiheryes, this is 80 or that is 0, I can do that, but I can’t recall
it mentally.

Senitory Kexnzor. You just certified the principal. There are others

up here. .
1 would like to go to Dr. Gittinger.
. Mr. Grrmivoex. It's Mr. Gittm(ﬁor. '
Senator Kexnepy. How long did you serve with the Agency?
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Mr. Grrmvozr Twenty-six years.

Senator KeNNEDY. Excuse me!

Mr. GrrriNceR Twenty-six yesars.,

Senator Kexnepy. Twenty-six years. ' .

And at some point you moved into the operational support side, 18
that correct! .

Mr. GITTINGER. Yes. ,

Senator KennNEDY. And did you know Sidney Gottliebt

Mr. Grrrinecen. Yes, sir. -

Senator KENNEDY. And did he inform you about the research proj-
ects involving LSD1

Mr. GrITINGER. Yes, sir.

Senator KENNEDY. It is my understanding that you were also aware
of some of the drug testinﬁ projects conducted on unwitting subjects
on the west coast using the Bureau of Narcotics people in the operation.
Is that truel

“Mr. Grrravoer T wase - o o

Senator InourE. Excuse me. Would you speak into the microphone !
T cannot hear you. . '

Mr. GrITINGER. SorTy. )

Se;xator Kexnepy. Do you know which drugs were involved in those
tests

Mr. Grimivoer. LSD. And I can’t remember for sure much of the
others. What is the substance of marihuana, cannabis, is that right, that

can be delivered by other than smoking

Sensator KennEDY. Cannabist

Mr. GrrmingeR. There had been some discussion of that; yes.

Senator KEXNEDY. And was heroin also used !

Mr. Grrrinazr. Heroin used by CIA Y

Senator KennEDY. No. In the west coast operation.

Mr. Grrrivoer. Absolutely not.

Senator Kennzpy. Now, to zwr knowledge, how were the drugs ad-
ministered to the unwitting subjecta!

Mr. Grrrinces. I have no direct knowledge.

Senator KznNznY, Why did you go tothe safe houses 1

Mr. GrrriNoEr. It's 8 very comp jcated story. Just in justification of
myself, this came up just day before esterday. I have not really had
enough time to get it all-straightened in my mind, so I ramble.

Senator KENNEDY. Well, you take your time and tell us in your own
words. We’ve got some time here. :

Mr. GrrTiNger, My responsibilities which would involve any of the
period of time that Izou were talling about really was not directly
related to drugs at all.I wass peychologist charged with the responsi-
bility of trying to develop as much information as I could on various
cultires, overseas -cultures, anthropological type data, if you follow
what I mean. I wasalsoe in trying to work out ways and means
of assessing people and un erstanding peotgle. '

I originally me involved in this through working-on Chinese
culture, and over a series of time I was introduced to the problem of

brainwashing, which is the thing that really was the most compelling

thing in relationship to this, and became charged with the responsi-
hility of trying to find out s little bit about interrogation techniques.
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we decided or I decided that one of the best

sources of mterrogation techniques would be trying to locate snd inter-
view and become involved with experienced poﬁce interrogators in
the country and experienced people who had real practical knowled

of interrogation. The reason for this is that we had become pretty well
canvinced sfter the experience of the brainwashing i

out of Chins, that it was the tec

causing the individuals to

to this, rather than sny kind of drugging and so
very much interested in interrogation t
being introduced to the agent in the west coast, an
him in connection with these interrogation t

make confessions and so fo

problems coming

hniques of the interrogators that were
rth in relationship
forth. So we were
\niques, and this led to me
d T began to talk to
echniques.

Senator Kzxveor. OK. Now, that is the agent that ran the tests

on the west coast on the unw

correct?
© Mr. Grrrivoeer If I understand—would

- —Senator Kexnnepy. The name Morgen

name that has been used.
Mr. GITTINGER. Y¢S,

Sensator JCENNEDY. And that i

all has

itting people. That’s where you come 1n,

gu say that again!

been—that is the

-~y
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Mr. Grrranaer. That is right.

Senator KExNEDY. And
Mr. GITTINGER. Yes, sir.

sorry that I have to. In
doing, we needed to have
Hall provided informants

" habits that I was intereste

you met at the safe house.

s the agent that you met with.

Senator KENNEDT, Whom did you meet with in the safe house!

Mr. Grrrinuer. This is the part that is hard for me to say, snd I am

connection with some work that we were

some informat

jon on sexual habits, Morgan

for me to talk to in connection with the sex

d in trying to find inform

ation. During one

period of time the safe house, as far as I was concerned, was used for

just these particular type of

curtains.

jnterviews. And I didn’t see the red

Senator KExNEDY. Those were prostitutes, were they?

Mr. GITTINGER. Yes, 8IT.

Senator Kex~eny. How many different times

you had si

were you there that

AT
Mr. Grrmincer. I couldn’t possibly say with any certainty on that.

Four or five times.
Senstor KENNZDY. Four

or five times.

Mr. GITTINGER. Over—{‘ou remember now, the period that I'm talk-

" ing about when I would

1956 to 1961. So it’s about

that I know nnytlnng a
Senator KENNEDY. Did

ave any involvement in this is from about
g 4- or 5-year period which is the only time

bout what you are talking

Morgan Hall make the

the prostitutes to meet with yout -
Mr. GrrmneEn. Yes, si

Senator KenNzDY. id the interviews that you

do with drugs?

\fr, GrriNoer. Well, as 1 tried to explain ear]

being discussed a little bit

about here today.
arrangements for

had have anything to

jer when this was

beforehand, again I think it is pretty hard

for most people riow to recognize how little there

. drugs st the period of time that we are

was known about

talking sbout, because the

s
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drug age or the drug culture comes later on. Consequently, those of
us who had any responsibility in this area were interested in trying to

et as much information as we could on the subculture, the subcuiture

rug groups, and obviously the Bureau of Narcotics represented &
means of doing this. Consequently, other types of things that were
involved in discussions at that time would have to do with the under-
ground use of drugs. When 1 am talking sbout this I am talking about
the folkways in terms of unwitting use of d Did these people that
I was talking to have any information about this and on rare instances
they were able to tell me about their use, and in most cases this would
largely turn out to be a Mickey Finn or something of that sort rather

- than anything esoteric.

I also was very much interested because we had relatively little
information, believe it_or not, at that time, in terms of the various
reactions that people were havi.nf to drugs. Therefore, these feople
were very informative in terms of they knew a great deal of informa-

“tion about Teactions;

Senator KenxeDY. At least you gathered—or am I correct in assum-
ing that you gathered the impression that the prostitutes that you had
taﬁxed to were able to slip the drugs to people as I understand it. Dic
you form any impression on that? _

Mr. Grrmisoe. I certainly did not form the impression that they
did this as & rule or—— .

Senator Kzxxeor. But they had the knowledge.

Mr. Grrmisoxr. They had the knowledge or some of them had had
knowledge of this being done. But again, as it turned out, it was largely
in this area of knockout drops.

Senator KexxenY. Looking back now did you form any impression
about how the Agency was actun‘l%y testing the broad spectrum of social
classes in these safe houses! 1Vith the large disbursal of cash in
small quantities, $100 bills and the kinds of elaborate decorstions and
two-way mirrors in the bedrooms and all the rest, is there any question
in your own mind what was going on in the safe houses, or the tech-
niques that were being used to administer these drugl .

%fr. Grrriveer. 1 find it very difficult to answer that question, sir. I
had absoluteliy no direct knowledge there was a large number of this. I
had no know that anyone oﬁ:eer than—than Morgan Hall was in
any way involved in the unwitting administration of drugs.

nator Kex~eoy. But Gottlieb would know, would he not! °

Mr. GrtTivaer I believe so, yes, sir.

Senstor Kexxepy. Could we go into the Human Ecology F_‘oundn.-
tion and talk about that and how it was used as an instrument in terms
of the support of researcht

Mr. GrrrINGER: Yes, sir. .

Senator KenxrpY. Could you describe it to us? Could you describe
the Humsan EcologiiFoundatlon, how it functioned and how it worked !

Mr. Grrrivoer. May I tell something about how it evolved, which I
think is important?

Senator NEDY. Sure.

Mr. Grrrineze. The Society for the Investigation of Human Ecol-

7y, so-called, was actually a—1I am confused here now as to whether
T should name you names. :
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_Senator Kxxxzor. Well, we're not interested in names or institu-
tions, so.we prefer that you do not. That has to be worked out in
arrengements between Admiral Turner and the individusls and the
institutions. . :

But we're interested in what the Foundation really was and how it
functioned and what its purpose was, |
Mr. Grrrincei. Well, it was established to undertake research in the
neral ares of the behavioral sciences. It definitely had almost no
ocus or interest in, say, dru -related type of activities except in a very
minor way, because it was arﬁlg set up to attempt to gain & certain
amount of information and to fund projects which w;r‘:gsychological,
sociological, anthropological in character. It was lished in the
sense of a period of time that a lot of us who are in it wish we could
do it over again, but we were interested in trying to get together a panel
of the most ]xﬁarese.ntstive high-level behavioral scientists we could to
oversee and in terms of developing the Society for the Investiga-

tion of Human 1 of program. .
The in ,g‘.amm € money. y did not direct the- - ——-—- —

projects. Now, the fact of the matter is, there are » Jot of innocent
ple who received the Society for the Investigation of Human Ecology
money which I know for a fact they were never asked to do anything
for CIA but they did get through this indirectly. They had no
Inowledge that they were getting money. : '
Senator Kxnnepy. Over what period of time did this take place?
Mr. GrrTINGER. As far as I was concerned, it was the period of time
ending in 1961. I believe the Human Ecology fund phased out
in 1965, but I was not involved in this phasing out.
Senator Kxwxepy. Can you give the range of the different sort of
individual projects of the universities in which it was active! .
Mr. Grrrixazz. Well, it would have as many as—I am nﬂ? fuzzy
on my memory on the number of projects. It is over 10, 20, 30.
Senator Kxxneoy. After it made the grants, what was the relation-
ship of the Agency with the results of the studies? The Foundation
aequired the money to make the grants from the Agency, and then it
made the grants to these various research programs.
- Mr. GrITINGER. Ye8, 8iT. . -
Senator Kxwnzoy. And that included eight universities as well as
individual researcherst .
Mr. Grrrixcex. Yes, gir. _ .
Senator Kexnzoy. Then what follow-up was there to that, sirt
. Mr. GrrTDeGER. Well, in every sense of the word, the organization
was run exactly like any other foundation, and it carried with it the
same thing in terms of making certain that the people that they had
given money to used it for the purpose for which it had been granted,
that they bad access to any of the reports that they bad put out, but
there were no strings attached to anybody. There wasn’t any reason
thev couldr’t publish anvthing that thev put out.”
Senator KExNEDY. What sort of budget are we talking about heret
Mr. Grrrixcen. I honestly do not remember. I would ruess we aro
talking in the realm of about §150,000 a year, but don’t hold me to that,
because I don't know.

L |

ros

iy

-’1

e .4

S

[ adimad ]



A

60

Senstor Kenngoy. What is your view about such funding as a pro-
fgts;xox}a} person, in terms of compromising the integrity of a univer-
sity, sir

Mr. Grrrvazr. Well, obviously, sir, insofar as today there is no
eg;estion about it. I will have to say at the time that we were doing this
there was quite an entirely different kind of an attitude, and I do
know for & fact that we moved to start towards phasing out the So-
ciety for the Investigation of Human Ecology snd the Human Ecol-
ogy Fund for the very reason that we were beginning to recognize that
it was moving into an area but this would be compromised.

Senator Kenxeoy. Well, that is commendable, both your attitude
and the ressons for it, but during that period of time it still was in-
~volved inbehavior researqhvprograms,—ns%nndersundi T
Mr. Grrrinaer. Yes, sir. On its own, in connection with this, it
paﬂidmhﬂjmﬂs_%ﬁ@ﬁen not CTA-directed projects,

but these were all things which would theoretically contributetothe —~ —— > —

general knowledge at the time where the things like the study of the
Hungarian refugees—obviously, the study of the Hungarian refugees

who came to this country after the Hungarian revolt was a very use-
ful exercise to try to get information about the personality character-
istics of the Communists and so forth.

Senator KxNxzny. Were there other foundations that were doing
similar kinds of work? .

Mr. Grrrineze. Not to my knowledge, sir.

Senator KennenY. You believe——

Mr. Grrrrvoer. You mean, CTA, other CTAY

Senator KexnepY. Right. . .

Mr. Grrringzx. Well, my answer is in the sense that T know of no
other CIA foundations, no. There were, of course, other foundations
doing similar kinds of work in the United States.

" Senator Kenwzoy. Have you heard of the Psychological Assess-
ments Foundationt

Mr. GrrriNoer. 1 certainly have.

Senator KzNNEDY. What was that? What function did that have

Mr. Grrrinoer. Now, this was bringing us up to a different era. I
believe the functions of that organization have nothing whatsoever
to do with the things that are being talked about here while I was
associated with it.

Senator Kznxyoy. Rather than getting into the work, it was another
ioundst;on, was it not! It was another foundation supported by the

gency ’

Mr. Grrrrvozz. What, the Psychological Assessment?

Senator Kexwzoy. Yes.

Mr. Grrrreoez. No, gir, it was not.

A Senatfr Krzxxeoy. It did not get any support at all from the
gency '
" Mr. Grrrrnoze. Oh, yes, sir. It did get support, but it was a business
rm. :
Senator Kzxweoy. It was a business but it got support from the

Agency! : . i
Mr. Grrrrvaze. It got money from it, but it definitely was not in

MEULTRA or in any way associated with this.
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Senator Kexxeoy. All right. I want to thank you for your helpful
testimony, Mr. Gittinger. It is not easy to go back into the lpast. I
think you have been very fair in your characterizations, and I think
it is quite appropriately indicateg that there are different standards
now from what they were 25 years ago, and I think you have responded
very fairl{. and completely to the inquiries, and I think with a good
deal of feeling about it. '

You are a person who is obviously attempting to serve the country’s
interest, 50 1 want to thank you very much for your statement and
for your helpful timeliness.

r. GrrrINGeR. Thank you, sir.

Senator INOUYE. Senator Case?

Senator Case. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I sm sorry that I had
rnother committee that I had to complete the hearing with this morn-
ing before Fgot here;-- -~ -+ — - —— ——— _ .

§ shall read the testimony with very great interest, and I appreci-

_ate-your testimony as I have heard it. I would like to comment just on
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one point, and that is, it relates to o story in the press yestérday sbout
psrt of this program involving the funding of s grant at & foreig::
university. I would like to elicit from you a comment as to the addi-
tiona] sensitivity snd diffculty that that practice involves from your
standpoint as a scientist, as well as a citizen, if you wi

Mr. Grrrinoen. I will say it was after the fact thinking. It was utter
stupidity the way things worked out to have used some of this money
outeide the United States when it was CLA money, I can categorically
state to my knowledge and I don’t claim a complete knowledge all the
way across of the human ecology functions, but to my knowledge, and
this is unfortunate, those people did not know that they were tEet.t.mg
money from CIA, and they were not asked to contribute anything to
CIA as euch, _ .
_ Senator Casz. It would be interesting to try to examine this by turn-
ing the thing around and thinking what we would think if this hap-
pened from a foreign officisl agency to our own university. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Senator INoUYE. Senator Schweiker.

Senator Scawerker. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. -

Dr. Goldman, I wonder if you would tell us what your training and
~ educational background ist
" Dr. GoLomax. I have already given & biography for the record,

Senator Scewrixzr. T have not seen it. Who has itt Is it classified !
We may have it for the record, but may 1 ask you to.briefly describe
vour training and background for us now? I hope it is no secret. '

Dr. Gorosax. Well, I was told if I was asked this to say that. I was
told that by your staff gople, but I have no objection to telling you.
I am a resident from Pennsylvania, southwest Pennsylvanis, ﬂ.n
caster County. I went to Penn State, and I am in nutrition.

Senator SceEwerxrx. In what!

Dr. Goromaw, Nutrition.

Senator Scnwzixer. Were you in charge of a section or segment of
the CIA in your past capacity? .
_ Dr. GoroMax. During the time I was with that organization, I was
in charge of one small section of it, one small segment of it; yes.
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Senafor SCEWEIRzR, What was the function or purposs of that sec-
tion that you headed? L
Dr. GoLoxaN. To provide support.,for the other parts of the division.
Senator Scawerxer. Where in the chain of command would that put
you in relation to Dr. Gottliebl ' :
Dr. GoLoMaN. Pretty far down the line. <
Senator ScHwEIKER. Mr. Gitt.'m%er, I would just like to ask you s
few questions. We appreciate your frankness and candor with the com-
mittee, and we reslize this is'a very difficult ares to go into. I am not
quite clear on two matters that were raised earlier. First, were the safe
houses we were talking about here used on occasion by the prostitutes
you referred tof )
Mr. GITTINGER. I really have not the slightest idea. .
Senator Scuweixen. Were the prostitutes used in any way to slip

~ the customers drugs for obsérvation purposes!”

Mr. Grrrinoer. Not to my direct know
-~ Senator Scuwziker. Would you have been in a position to know the

answer to either of these questionst

Mr. Grrrivaza, May I say, probebly not, and may I meke an aside

to expiain a little bit of this, please, sir!

Senator Scuweikrn. Mr. Gittinger, s moment you mentioned
brainwashing technigues, as one ares that you had, I guess, done some
work in. How woul iou characterize the state of the art of brain-
washing today! Who has the most expertise in this field, and who is
or is not doing it in terms of other governmentat ]

During the Korean war there was s lot of serious discussion about
brainwashing techniques being used by the North Koreans, and T am
interested in finding out what the state of the art is today, as you see it.

Mr. GrrriNger, Well, of course, there has been. s desl of work
on this, and there is stil] a great deal of controversy. 1 can tell you that
as far as I knew, by 1961, 1962, it was at Jeast proven to'my satis-
faction that brainwashing, so called, is some kind of an esoteric device
where drugs or mind-altering kinds of conditions and so forth were
used, did not exist even though “The Manchurisan Candidate” as a
movie rulli set us back a long time, because it made something im-
possible look plausible, Do you follow what I mean! But by 1962 and
1963, the general ides that we were able to come up with is that brain-
washing was largely & process of isolating a human being, keeping
him out of contact, putting him under long stress in relationship to
interviewing and interrogation, and that they could roduce suy
change that wsy without having to resort to any- kind of esoteric
means. :

Senator SCHWEIRER, Are there ways that we can ascertain this from

a distancs:when we ses & captive prisoner sither go on television, in

a photograph, or at a press conference! In other words, are there cer-
tain signs that you have learned: to recognize from your i
background, to tell when brainwashing has occurred f Or is that very

dificultto do! : R .
Mr. Grrriveer It is difficult to do. I think it is posible now in terms

of looking at.s picture of somebody who has'been in enemy hands for
s long period of time. We can get some pretty good ideas of what kind
of circumstances he has been under, if that is what you mean.
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Senator SCHWEIRER, That is all I have, Mr. Chairman, Thank you.

Senator INoUYE. Thank you very much. ‘

Before adjourning the hearings, I would like to have the record
show that Dr. Goldman and Mr. Gittinger have voluntarily cooperated
with the committee in stafl interviews, that they appear ¢ is morning
voluntarily, and they are not under subpena,

Gentlemen, I realize that this experience may have been an unhapp
one and possibly a peinful ore, 'lj;ferefon, we thank you very mu
for nrticipaxu_xf this morning. We also realize that the circumstances
of that time differed very much from this dsy, and possibly the na-
tional attitude, the nationa] politicsl attitude condoned this type of
activity. So, we have not asked you to come here as persons who have
committed crimes, but rather in Eope that you can assist us in studying
this problem so that it will not occur once n%in. In that spirit we

0 ook forward to working
with you further in this case.
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Senator KENNmpY. Mr. Chairman, I would like also to thank the
witnesses. These are difficult matters, and I think all of us are very

Senstor Scuwerxes. I think the witnesses should know that thou
it may not always seem that way, what we are trying to do is to pro
the past and look at ihe policies of the past to affect the future. I think
our emphasis really is on the future, not the past, bat it is important
that we Jearn from the past ss we formulate policies and legislation
for the future, I hopa that all of the witnesses who did come before us
voluntarily this momning, including Admiral Turner respect the fact
that we are questioning the past to learn about the future. I think it
should be Jooked at in that light.

Senator KexxzoY. I think that is the spirit in which we have had
these hearings. It seems to me that from both these witnesses and
others, Gottlieb lnows the information and can best respond, and we
are gomﬁ.to make every effort in the Senate Health Committee to get
Mr. Gottlieb to appear, and we obviously look forward to cooperating
with Senstor Inouye and the other members of the committee in get-
ting the final chapter written on this, but we want to thank you very
much for your appearance here.

Senstor INoUYE. The hearing will stand in recess, subject to the call
of the Chair.

ereupon, at 12:12 p.m., the hearing was recessed, subjoct to the |

call of the Chair.)
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‘ APPENDIX A -

XVII. TESTING AND USE OF CHEMICAL AND BIOI:OGI-
CAL AGENTS BY THE INTELLIGENCE COMMUNITY

Under its mandate * the Select Committee has studied the testing and
use of chemical and biological agents by intelligence agencies. Detailed
descriptions of the programs conducted by intelligence agencies in-
volving chemical and biological agents will be included in a sefnmtely
published appendix to the Senate Select Committee’s report. This sec-
tion of the report will discuss the rationale for the programs, their
monitoring end control, and what the Committee’s investigation has

revealed-sbout-the relationships-among the-intelligence agencies and .

about their relations with other government agencies and private in-
stitutions and indiriduals.? ]

Fears that countries hostile to the United States would use chemi-
cal and biological agents against Americans or America’s allies led
to the development of a defensive program designed to discover tech-
niques for American intelligence agencies to detect and counteract
chemicsl and biological agents. The defensive orientation soon became
secondary as the possible use of these ts to obtain information
from, or gain control over, enemy agents e apparent. -

Research and development programs to find materials which coul
be used to alter human behavior were initiated in the late 1940s and
early 1930s. These experimental programs originally included testing
of drugs involving witting human subjects, and culminated in tests
using unwitting, nonvolunteer human subjects. These tests were de-
signed to determine the potential effects of chemical or biological
agents when used operationally against individuals unaware that they

- had received a drug. .

The testing programs were considered highly sensitive by the in-
telligence agencies administering them. Few people, even within the
agencies, knew of the pro and there is no evidence that either
the executive branch or Congress were ever informed ‘of them. The
highly compartmented nature of these programs may be explained in
part by an observation made by the CIA Inspector General that, “the

lmowledge that the Agency is engaging in unethical and illicit activi-

1Senste Resolution 21 directs the Senate Select Committee on Intelligence
Activities to investigate a number of issues:

“(s) Whether agencies within the intelligence community conducted fllegal
domesatic activities (Bection 2(1) and (2)):

u(b) The extent to which agencies within the intelligence community cooper-
ate (Section 2(4) and (8));

“(e¢) Tbe sdequacy of executive branch and congressional oversight of intel-
Uigence sctivities (Section 2(7) and (11));

u(d) The adequacy of existicg laws to safeguard the rights of Ameriean citl.
zens (Section 2(18))." '

S The details of these programs may never be known. The programs were highly
compartmented. Few records were kept. What little documentation existed for
the C1A principal program was destroyed early in 1973,

(385)

(5O




LA

+e

66
386

ties would bave serious repercussions in political and diplomstic circles
and would be detrimental to the accomplishment of its missions.” *
The resesrch and development program, snd particularly the co-
vert testing programs, resulted in massive abridgments of the rights
of American citizens, sometimes with Lrayic consequences. The deaths
of two Americans * can be sttributed to these pro ; other J:artici-
pants in the testing pro may still suffer from the residual ef-
fects. While some controlled testing of these substances might be de-
fended, the nature of the tests, their scale, and the fact that they were
continued for years after the danger of surreptitious administration
of LSD to unwitting-individuals-swas _imown, demonstrate & funda-
ypenta] disregard for the value of human life. .- ‘
_ _ The Select Committee’s investigation of the testing and use of chem-
ienl and biological agents also raise serious quesﬂ‘éﬁSTbbutihe1dn-— S
quacy ¢f command and control rocedures within the Central Intelli-
gence Agency and military intelligence, and sbout the relationships
among the intelligence 2 ncies, other governmental agencies, and
private institutions and individuals. The CIA’s normal sdministrative
controls were waived for programs involving chemical and biological
agents to protect.their security. According to the head of the Andit
Branch ot tbe CIA. these waivers produced “gross administrative
failures.” They prevented the CIA's internal review mechanisms (the
Office of General Cuunsel, the Inspector General, and the Audit Staff)
from adequately supervising the pro]gnms. In general, the waivers had
the paradoxical effect of providing less restrictive administrative con-
trols and less effective internal reviex for controversial and highly
sensitive projects than those governing normal Agency activities.
The security of the programs was protected not only by waivers
of normal administrative controls, but also by a high degree of com-
partmentation within the CIA. This compartmentation excluded the
CIA’s Medical Staff from the principal research and testing program
mploying chemical and biological agents. .
¢ also may have led to afncy policymakers receiving diff
and inconsistent responses when they posed questions to the C
component invol '

Jurisdictions] uncertainty within the CIA was matched by juris-
dictional conflict among the various intelligence agencies. A spirit of
cooperation and reciprocal exchanges of information which initially
charscterized-the programs disappeared. Military testers withheld in-
formation from the CIA, lg.'no_rinrf sugﬁstiom or coordination from

. their superiors. The CIA similarly failed tm:vide information 1o

‘the military on the CIA’s testing program. This failure to cooperate
was conspicuously manifested in an attempt by the Army to conceal
—— .

s C1A Inspector Genersl's Survey of TSD, 1957, 9. 217.

» Opn Jaouary 8. 1953 AMr. Harold Blauer died of elrculatory coliapse and heart
fallure foliowing an intravenous injection of & syuthetic mescaline derivative
while a subject of tests conducted by New York State Psychlatric Institute under
a contract let by the U.S. Army Chemical Corps. The Committee’s investigation
into drug testing by U.S. intelligence agencies focused on the testing of LSD, how-
ever. the committée did receive a copy of the U.8. Army Inspector General's
Report. issued oo October 1075, on the events and circumstances of Mr. Blaoer's
death. His death was directly atributable to the sdministration of the synthetic

mescaline derivative.
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their overseas testing program, which included surreptitious admin-
istration of LSD, from the CIA. Learning of the Army’s program,
the A gency surreptitiously attempted to obtain details of it.
The-lecision to institute one of the Army’s LSD field testing projects
liad been based, at Jeast in part, ofi the finding that no long-term resid-
ual effects had ever resulted from the drug’s administration. The
CIA’s failure to inform the Army of a death which resulted from the
surreptitious administration of LSD to unwitting Americans, may well
have resulted in the institution of an unnecessary and potentially lethal

ro : . .
P ,’fﬂeﬁdevelopment, tgstin_g,.md‘_usa of cheinical and biological agents
by inbelli?nt}e cies raises serious questions about the relationship
between the .inte ;%ence community and foreign governments, other -

cies of the Federal Government; and other institutions-and-in-— -
dividuals. The questions raised range from the legitimacy of American
complicity in actions abroad which violate American and foreign laws
to the possible compromise of the integrity of public and private insti-
tutions used as cover by intelligence agencies.

A. TeE PrOGRAMS I.\-v:.snoa-rzb

1. Project CHATTER ]

Project CHATTER was s Navy program that began in the fall of
1947. Responding to reports of “amnﬁ‘:g results” achieved by the
Soviets in using “truth drugs,” the program focused on the identifica-
tion and testing of such drugs for use in interrogations and in the
recruitment of agents. The research included laboratory experiments
on animals and hum:; subjects involving Anabasis aphylla, scopols-
mine, and riiescaline in srder to determine their.speech-inducing quali-
ties. Overseas experiments were conducted as part. of the project. .

The project expanded substantially during the Korean War, and
ended shortly after the war, in 1953. .

@, Project BLUEBIRD/ARTICHOKE :

The "earliest of the CIA's msjor profn.ms involving the use of
.chemical and.blolg%iul agents, Project BLUEBIRD, was approved by
the Director in 1950. Its objectives were:

(s) discovering means of conditioning personnel to prevent
unsuthorized extraction of infotmatiog gom them by known
means, (b) investigating the possibility of control of an in-
dividual by application of special interrogation technig-es,
(c) memory enhancement, and (d) establishi defensive
means for preventing hostile control of Agency personnel.*

As a result of interrogations conducted overseas during the project,
another goal was added—the evaluation of offensive uses of unconven-
tionsl 1n tion techniques, includ.in_F hypnosis and drugs. In .
-August 1851, the project was renamed AR ICE)OKE. Project ;E‘RTI-
CHOKE included in-house experiments on interrogation techniques,
conducted “under medical and security controls which would ensure

2/; C/ITAS. memorandum to the Select Committee, “Bebavioral Drogs and Testing,”
1 -
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that no damage was done to individuals who volunteer for the Ti- -
ments.” * Overseas interrogations utilizing & combination of :xum
pentothal and hypnosis after physical and ﬁﬁhhtﬁc examinations of
the subé)ects were glls;igut of ARTICHO '

The Office of Scientific Intelligence (OSI), which studied scientific
advances by hostile powers, m.nuﬁ i ; led BLUEBIRD/ARTICHOKE
efforts. In 1952, overall responsibility for ARTICHOKE was trans-
ferred from OSI to the Inspection and Securiz Office (1&SO), pre-
decessor to the present Office of Security. The 's Technical Serv-
ices and Medical Staffs were to be called upon as needed; OSI would
retain lisison function with other government agencies.' The change

~~in Jeadership fromi an intelligence unit to eh- operating unit appar-

ently reflected a change in emphasis; from the study of actions by

' hostiie'powers-1o—themse,—both*for—oﬂ'ensivend—dafensiﬂ purpoeses,-— — - —
- of special interrogstion techniques—primarily hypnosis and truth

serums.

Representatives from each Agency unit involved in ARTICHOKE

met slmost monthly to discuss their progress. These discussions in-
cluded the planning of oversess interrogations® as well as further
experimentation in the U.S. .
] formation about project ARTICHOKE efter the fall of 1953
is searce. The CIA maintains that the project ended in 1956, but evi-
dence suggests that Office of Security snd Office of Medical Services
u]?e of f‘::pecxal interrogation” techniques continued for several years
therealter.

3. MENAOMI

MENAOMI was another major CIA. program in this area. In 1967,
the CIA summarized. the purposes of MKNAOMI:

(a) To provide for a covert support base to meet clandes-
tine operational requirements. ‘ :

(b) To stockpile severely incaﬁuitlﬁng and lethal ma-
terials for the specific use of TS [Technical Services Di-
vision). _

(¢) To maintain in operational readiness special and unique
iumshfor the dissemination of biological and chemical ma-
teria . , ' - T

(d) To provide for the required surveillance, testing, up-

ing, and evaluation of materials and items in order to
assure absence of defects and complete predictability of re-
. sults to be expected under operstiona! conditions.®
nder sn_agreement reached with the Army in 1952, the Special
Operations Division (SOD) at Fort Detrick was to assist CIA in
developing, testing, and maintsining biological agents and delivery

s Memorandom from Robert Tavior, O/DD/P tn the Assistant Deputy (1n-
spection and Security) and Chief of the Medical Staff, 3/22/52.

s Memorandnm from H. Marshall Chadwell, Axsistant Dirertor, Scientific Intel-
lgence, to the Deputy Director/Plam (IDP) “Praiect ARTICHOKE,” 8/29/52.

* uprogress Report, Project ARTICHOKE.” 1/12/53. )

* ys{emorsndum from Chief. TED/Blnlogical Bruneh to Chief. TSD “MEKNAOMI:
Funding. Ohiectives, snd Aconmnlishmante,” IN1SMT, D, 1. For a fuller descrip-
tion of MENAOMI and the reiationship between CLA snd SOD. see p. 380 ff.
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ms. By this agreement, CIA acquired the Imowledge, skill, and
acilities of the Army to develop biological weapons suited for CIA

use. o

SOD deve:lped darts coated with biological agents and pills con-
taining several diff»rent biological agents which could remein potent
for weeks or months, SOD also developed s ial gun for firing
darts coated with a chemical which could allow CIA agents to incapaci-
tate a guard doi, enter an installation secretly, and return the dog to
conscicusness when leaving. SOD scientists were unable to deve og
a similar incapacitant for humans. SOD slso Bh sically transferre
to CIA personnel biological agents in “bulk” Iorm, and delivery
devices, including some containing biological agents. _

In addition to the CIA’s interest in biological weapons for use
against humans, it slso asked SOD to study use of biological agents
against crops and animaly; In- its‘lﬂﬁ?memorandumrthe{gm A stated:

Three methods and systems for carrying out a covert attack
against crops and causing severe crop loss have been devel-
oi)ed snd evaluated under field conditions. This was accom-
ished in anticipation of a requirement which was later
gevelgped but was subsequently scrubbed just prior to put- -
ting into action™ - )
« MENAOMIT was terminated in 1970. On November 25, 1969, Presi-
Jdent Nizon renounced the use of any form of biological weapons that
kill or incapacitate and ordered the disposal of existing stocks of bac-
teriological weapons. On February 14, 1970, the President clarified the
extent of his eatlier order and indicated that toxins—chemicals that
are not living organisms but are produced by living organisms—rtwere
considered biological weapons subject to his previous directive and
were to be destroyed, Although instructed to relinquish control of
material held for the CIA by gOD, a CIA scientist acquired approxi-
mately 11 grams of shellfish toxin from SOD personnel at Fort De-
trick which were stored in a little-used CIA laboratory where it went
undetected for five years

4. MKULTRA

MEULTRA was the rincigal CIA program involving the research
and development of chemical and biological agents. It was “con-
cerned with the research and development of chemical, biological, and
radiological materials capable of employment in clandestine oper-
ations to control human begavior.” 1 '

In January 1978, MKULTRA records were destroyed by Technical
Services Division personnel acting on the verbal orders of Dr. Sidney
Gottlieb, Chief of TSD. Dr. Gottlieb has testified, and former Direc-
tor Helms has confirmed, that in ordering the records destroved, Dr.
Gottlieb was carrying out the verbal order of then DCI Helms.

MEKULTRA began with a I__Ipropmml from the Assistant Deputy
Director for Plans, Richard Helms, to the DCI, outlining s special

~rvid. p 2 .
® Senate Select Committee, 8/168/75, Hearings, Ve. 1.
8 Memorandum from the ClA Inspector General to the Director, 7/26/63.
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funding mechanism for highly sensitive CIA research and develo
ment projects that studied the use of biological and chemical materials
in altering human behavior. The projects involved:

Research to develop s capability in_the covert use of bio-
logical and chemical materials, This area involves the produc-
tion of various physiological conditions which could support
present or future clandestine operations. Aside from the of-
fensive potential, the development of 8 comprehensive capa-
bility in this field of covert chemical and biological warfare
gives us a thorough knowledge of the enemy's theoretical
potential, thus enabling us to defend ourselves against & foe
who might not be as restrained in the use of these tech-
- niques asweare® - - - - ——— — o

MEULTRA ~was spproved by the DCI on April 13, 1953 along the
lines proposed by ADDPHelms. oo o
Part of the rationale, for the establishment of this special fund-
ing mechanism was its extreme sensitivity. The Inspector General’s
survey of MKULTRA in 1963 noted the following reasons for this
sensitivity: . '
‘8, Tir=earch in the maiipulation of human behavior is con-
sidered by man-. acthorities in medicine and related fields
to beprofessionaily unethical, therefore the reputation of
professional participants in the MIKULTRA. program are on
occasion in jenpardy. . .
b. Some TLTRA activities raise questions of legality .
implicit in the original charter, ~
.c. A final phase of the testing of MEKULTRA products
places the rights and interests of U.S. citizens in jeopardy.
_d. Public disclosure of some aspects of MKULTRA activ-
ity could induce serions adverse resction in US. public
opinion. as well as stimulate offensive and defensive action
in this field on the part of foreign intelligence services.™*

Over the ten-year life of the program, many “additional avenues to
the control of human behavior” were designated as appropriate for
investigntion under the MKULTRA charter. These include “radiation.
electroshock, various fields of psychology, psychiatry, sociology. and
nnt!aropolo:zy, graphology, harassment substances, and paramilitary
devices and materials.™ 1

“The rescarch and development of materials to be used for altering .
- human behavior consisted of three phases: first, the search for ma-

terials suitable for study: second. ]Jaboratory testing on voluntary
human snhiects in various tvpes of institutions; third, the application
of METILLTRA materials in normal life settings.

The scarch for suitable materisls was conducted through standing
arrongements with snecialists in universities, pharmacentical houses,
hospitals. state and federal institutions, and private research organi-

:Memnrandnm from ADDP Helms to DCI Dulles, 4/3/53, Tab A, pp. 1-2.
” }:&‘l;"?“ on MEULTRA, 1833, pp. 1-2 .

-

- .y

‘_Hﬂ.

" - &

P -
-



71
391

zations. The annual grants of funds to these specialists were made
under ostensible research foundation auspices, thereby concealing the
CIA’s interest from the specialist’s institution. |

The next phase of the MKULTRA program involved physicians,
toxicologists, and other specislists in mental, narcotics, and general
hospitals, and in prisons. Utilizing the products and findings of the
basic resesrch phase, they conducted intensive tests on human subjects.

* One of the first studies was conducted by the National Institute of
Mental Health. This stndv was intended to test various drugs. inclnd-
ing hallucinogenics. at the NIMH Addiction Research Center in Lex-
ington;-Kentucky. The “Lexington Rehabilitation Center,” as it was
then called, was a prison for drug addicts serving sentences for drug
violations. _ _ . _ o

The test subjects were volunteer prisoners who, after taking a brief

hysical examination and signing a general consent form, were admin-
istered hallucinogenic drugs. As = reward for participation in the
program, the addicts were provided with the drug of their addiction.

LSD was one of the materials tested in the MKULTRA program.
The final phase of LSD testing involved surreptitious administration
to unwitting nonvolunteer subjects in normal life settings by under-
cover officers of the Bureau of Narcotics acting for the CIA.

The rationale for such testing was “that testing of materials under
accepted scientific procedures fails to disclose the full pattern of reac-
tions and attributions that mayv occur in operational situations.” s

Accordine to the CIA, the advantage of the relationship with the
Bureau was that

test subjects could be sought and cultivated within the setting
of narcotics control. Some subjects have been informers or
members of suspect criminal elements from whom the [Bu-
reau of .Narcotics] has obtained results of anerational value
through the tests. On the other hand, the effectiveness of the
sudstances on individuals at all social levels, high and low,
native American and foreign, is af great significance and
testing has been performed on a variety of individuals within
these categories. [Emphasisndded.] **

A special procedure. designated MKDELTA. was es‘ablished to
govern the use of MKULTRA materials abrosd. Snch materials were
nsed on s number of occasions. Because MKULTRA records were
destroved. it is imnossible to reconstruct the operational use of
MKULTRA materials by the CTA overseas; it has been determined
that the use of these materials abroad began in 1953, and possibly as
early as 1950. )

Drugs were mnsed primarily as an aid to interrogutions. but
MEKULTRA/MKDELTA materials were also used for harassment,
discrediting. or disabling purposes. According to an Inspector General
Survey of the Technical Services Division of the CIA in 1957—an
inspection which did not discover the MRXULTRA proiect involving
the surreptitious administration of LSD to unwitting, nonvolunteer

» nvid, p. 21.
» nid., pp. 11-12
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gubjecta—the CIA had developed six drugs for operational use and
they had been used in six diferent operationsons total of thirty-three
subjects.’’ By 1963 the number of operstions snd subjects had in-
creased substantially. .

In the s&;nnqg of 1963, during a wide-ranging Inspector General
survey of the Technical Services Division, s member of the Inspector
General's staff, John Vance, learned about MKULTRA and about
the project involving the surreptitious administration of LSD to un-
witting, nonvoluntary human subjects. As a result of the discovery
and the Inspector General’s subsequent report, this testing was halted
and much tll.ﬁlhter administrative controls were imposed on the pro-
gram. According to-the CIA, the project was decreased significantly
each budget year until its complete termination in the late 1960s.

5. The Testing of LSD by the Army _ e

There were thres major phases in the Army'’s testing of LSD. In the
first, LSD was administered to more than 1,000 American soldiers who
volunteered to be subjects in chemical warfare experiments. In the
second phase, Material Testing Program EA 1729, 85 volunteers re-
osived 1.SD in clinical experiments designed to evaluate potential
intelligence uses of the drug. In the third phase, Projects THIRD
CHANCE and DERBY HAT, 16 unwitting nonvolunteer subjects
were interrogated after receiving LSD as part of operational field

tests.
B. CI1A Drtce Testrve ProGRAdS

1. The Rationale for the Testing Programs

The late 1940s and early 1950s were marked by concern over
the threst })osed by the activities of the Soviet Union, the People’s
Republico China, and other Communist bloc countries. JUnites:l States
concern over the use of chemical and biolo{:al agents by these powers
wwas scute. The belief that hostile nowers had used chemical and bio-
logical agents in interroﬁations, brainwashing, and in attacks designed
to harass, disable, or Ig! Allied personnel created considerable pres-
sure for s “defensive” Frognm to investigate chemical and biological
agents so that the intelligence community could understand the mech-
anisms by which these substances worked and how their effects could
be defeated.’

Of particular concern was the drug LSD. The CIA had received
reports that.the Soviet Union was enga d in intensive efforts to pro-
duce LSD; snd that the Soviet Union had attempted to purchase the
world's: supply of the chemical. As one CIA. officer who was deeply
involved in work with this drug described the climate of the times:
“l:llt.] is awfully hard in this day and age to reproduce how frightening
8

of this was to us at the time, particularly after the drug scene has
becoms as widespread and 2s knowledgeable in this country, as it did.
But we were literally terrified, because this was the one material that we

" I'hid, 1957, p. 2001 .
» Thos an officer in the Office of Security of the OIA stressed the “urgency of
the discovery of techniques and method that would permit our personnel, in the

- event of thelr capture Ly the enemy, to resist or defeat enemy interrogation.”

(Mlinutes of the AB‘I’lcg.OKE conference of 10/22/53.)
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had ever been able to locate that really had potential fantastic possi-
bilities if used wrongly.” ** . _
But the defensive orientation soon became secondary. Chemical and
biological agents were to be studied in order “to perfect techriques . . .
for the abstraction of information from individuals whether willing or
not” and in order to “develop means for the control of the activitiesand
mental capacities of individusls whether willing or not.” -One
Agency ofiicial noted that drugs would be useful in order to “gain con-
trol of bodies whether they were willing or not” in the process of re-
mtgving personnel tlfm(r:!} mee in tlée evlent oi:d Soviet oacitn&k." 13
other programs, the to develop, produce, stockpile, an
’*‘iﬁi‘m&%h”m operational mbfﬁzs Tnsterials which could be used to
harass, disable, or kill specific targets.” . . T
Reports-of resesrch-and development in the Soviet Union, the Peo-
ple’s Republic of Chins, and the unist Bloc countries provided
the basis for the transmutation of American programs from s defen-
sive to an offensive orientation. As the Chief of the Medical Staff of
the Central Intelligence Agency wrote in 1952: ‘ :

There is ample evidence in the reports of innumerable inter-
rogations that the Communists were utilizing drugs, LEhysu:l.l
duress, electric shock, and possibly hypnosis against their ene-
mies. With such evidence it is difficult not to keep from be-
coming rabid sbout our apparent laxity. Weare forced by this
mounting evidence to assume a more sggressive role in the
development of these techniques, but must be cautious to

maintain strict inviolable control because of the havoc ths:

could be wrought by such techniques in unscrupulous hands.

In order to meet the perceived threat to the national securi , sub-
_stantisl programs for the testing and use of chemical and bio ogical
ts—including projects involving the surreptitious administra-
tion of LSD to unwitting nonvolunteer subjects “at all social levels,
high and low, native American and foreign"—were conceived, and
n.nilemequd: These programs resulted in su tial violations of the
rights of individuals within the United States.
e ————— '

» Teatimony of CIA officer, 11,/21/753, p. 38

® Aemorandum from the Director of Security‘to ARTICHOKE representa-
tives, Subject: “ARTICHOKE Restatement of Program.”

S ARTICBOKE memorandum, 7/30/5%

= The Inspector General's Report of 1957 on the Technical Services Division
noted that “Six specific products bave been developed and are avallable for oper-
atiopal use. Three of them are discrediting and disabling materials which can be
administered unwittingly and permit the exercise of 8 measure of control over the
actions of the subject.”

A memorandum for the Chief, TSD, Biological Branch to the Chief, TSD,
10/18/67, described two of the objectives of the CIA’s Project MKNAOMI as:
“to stockpile severely Incapacitating and lethal materials for tbe specific use of
TSD" and “to maintain in operational readiness special and unigue items for
the dissemination of blological and chemical materals.” -

= Alemorasdum from the Chief of the Medical Staf, 1/25/52.
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Although the CIA recognized these offects of LSD to unwitting in-
dividuals within the United States, the project continued.’ As the
Deputy Director for Plans, Richard Helms, wrote the Deputy Direc-
tor of Central Intelligence during discussions which led to the cessa-
tion of unwitting testing:

‘While I share your unessiness and distaste for any pro-
which tends to intrude upon an individual's private
and legal prerogatives, 1 believe it is necessary the
Agency maintain a central role in this activity, keep current
on enemy capabilities the mani ulation of human vior,

_and_maintain an offensive capability.”™

' There were no attempts to secure approval for the most controversial
of these programs from the executive branch or Congress.

The nature and extent of the programs were closely held secrets;-even -

DCI McCone was not briefed on all the details of the program in-
volving the surreptitious administration of LSD until 1563. It was
deemed imperative that these programs be concealed from the Ameri-
can people. As the CIA’s Inspector Genersl wrote in 1957:

Precautions must be taken not only to protect operations
from exposure to enemy forces but also to conceal these ac-
tivities from the American public in general. The knowledge
that the Agency is engaging in unethical and illicit activities
would have serious repercussions in political and di lomatic
circles and would be detrimental to the accomp ishment
of its mission.™
8. The Death of Dr. Frank Olson
The most tragic result of the testing of LSD b the CIA was the

death of Dr. Frank Olson, a civilian employee of the Army, who died.

on November 27, 1953. His death followed is participation in s CIA
experiment with LSD. As part of this experiment, Olson unwittingly
received approximately 70 micrograms of LSD in a glass of Cointreau
he drank on November 19, 1853. The drug had been p aced in the bottle
by & CIA officer, Dr. Robert Lashbrook, as part of an experiment
he ond Dr. Sidney Gottlieb performed at a meeting of Army and
CIA scientists. |

Shortly after this experiment, Olson exhibited symptoms of para-
noia and schizophrenia. Accor?n.nied by Dr. IAshbroog, Olson sought
psychiatric assistance in New York City from a physician, Dr. Harold
Abramson. whose research on LSD had been funded indirectl ulz{
the CIA. While in New York for ‘treatment, Olson fell to his J
from s tenth story window in the Statler Hotel.

#

‘™ Even during the discussions which led to the termination of the unwitting
testing, the DDP turned down the option of halting such testas within the U.B.
and continuing them abroad despite the fact that the Technical Services Divi-

_sion bad conducted numerous operations abrood making use of LSD. The DDP
made this decision on the basis of security noting tbat the past efforts overseas-

had resulted 1o “making an Inordinate number of foreign nationals witting of
our role in the very sensitive activity.” (Memorandum for the Deputy Director
of Central Intelligence from the Deputy Director for Plans, 12/17/63, p. 2)

® ryid., pp. 2-3. -
» 1.G. survey of TSD, 1957, p. 217.
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a. Background—Olsen, an expert in serobiclogy who was assigned
to the Special Operations Division (SOD) of the U.S. Army Biolog-
ical Center st Camp Detrick, Maryland. This Division had :
primary functions: . . _ |

1) assessing the vulnerability of American installations .
to biological attack; '
(2) developing techniques for offensive use of biological
wea pons ; anc
(8) biological research for the CIA*

Professionally, Olson was well respected by his colleagues in both
the Army and the CIA. Colonel Vincent Rutet, Olson’s immediate
superior st the time of his desth, was in almost daily contact with
Olggn‘. According to Colonel Ruwet: “As a professional man.... his
ability . . . was outstanding.” % Colonel Ruwet stated that “duri
the period prior to the experiment ... I noticed nothxﬁ 'whi
would Jead me to believe tlat he was of unsound mind.” * Dr. Lash-
brook, who had monthly contacts with Olson from early 1952 until
the time of his death, stated publicly that before Olson received LSD,
wgs far as I know, he was perfectly normal.” * This assessment is I’
direct contradiction to certain statements evaluating Olson’s emo-
tions] stability made in CIA internsl memorands written after
Olson’s death. :

b. The Ezperiment—On November 18, 1933, a group of ten scien-
tists fiom the CIA and Camp Detrick sttended a semi-annual review
and analysis conference at a cabin located at Deep Creek Lake, Mary-
land. Three of the participants were from the CIA's Technical Serv-

ices Staff. The Detrick representatives were all from the Special

Operations Division.
According to one CIA official, the Special Operstions Division
participants- ¢ that an unwitting experiment would be

desirable.” ** This account directly contradicts Vincent Ruwet's recol-
lection.- Ruwet recalls no-such discussion, and has asserted that he
would remember any such discussion because the SOD participants
would have strenuously objected to ustin%on unwitting subjects.®

In May, 1953, Richard Helms, Assistant DP, held s staff meeting
which the Chief of Technical Services Staff attended. At this meeting
Helms “indicated that the drug (LSD] was dynamite and that he
should be advised 2t all. times when it was intended to use it.” = In
addition, the then DDP, Frank Wisner, sent a memorandum to TSS
stating the requirement that the DDP personally spprove the use of

'LSD. Gottlieb went shead with the experiment,* securing the ap-

* Staff summary of Vincent Ruwet Interview, 8/13/T6.p.8 =
»Memorandum of Col. Vincent Ruwet, To Whom It May Concern, no date,
Rk St

.2, . . X
Pa Ruwet Memorandum, p. 3. Sw
# Joseph B. Treaster, New York Times, 1/19/T5,p. L.
& J{emorandpm for the Record from Lyman Kirkpatrick, 12/1/58, p. 1.
= Ruwet{staff summary), 8/18/78, p. 6. -
& Tnspector Genersl Diary, 12/2/58. S :
= Ibid. Dr. Gottleib has testified that be doés not remember either the meeting
with Helms nor the Wisner megogndm.;'(Gottlleb. 10/18/75, p. 14.) '

Tabt,
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proval of his immediate supervisor. Neither the Chief of TSS nor
the DDP s “1ﬁca-11y authorized the experiment in which Dr. Olson
articipa '

P Accol:'ding to Gottlieb™ a “very small dose” of LSD was placed in
s bottle of Cointreau which was served after dinner on ursday,
November 19. The drug was Blwed in the liqueur by Robert h-
brook. A1l but two of the SOD participants received LSD. One di
not drink; the other had a heart condition.” About twenty minutes
after they finished their CointmsubGott.lieb informed the other par-
ticipants that they had received LSD. .

_Ig-, Gottlieb stated that “uYs:O the time of the experiment,” he
observed nothing unusual in Olson’s behavior.™ Once the experiment
was underway, Gottlieb recalled that “the drug had s definite effect on

could not continue the meetinioor e in sensible conversation.

The meeting continued antil about 1:00 a.m., when the participants

retired for the even.igﬁ.nGottlieb recalled that Olson, among others,

‘complained of “wakefulness” during the n??ht." According to Gottli

on Friday morning “aside from some evidence of fatigue,.I1 0

Iﬁitl'ﬁnq’ unusual in [Olson’s] actions, conversation, or general be-
vior.

» Ruwet recalls that Olson “sppesred to be a 'tated”t;:. .

breskfast, but ’t}::t he “did not consider to be abnormal under

circumstances. : .
¢. The Treatment—The following Monday, November 23. Olson
was waiting for Ruwet when he came in to work at 7:30 a.m. For the
next two days Olson’s friends and family attempted to reassure him
and help him “snap out” of what appeared to be a serious depression.
On Tuesday, Olson again came to Ruwet and, after an hour long con-
-—————‘

* Dr. Gottlieb testified that “given the information we knew up to this time,

based on a lot of our own self-administration, we thought it was a fairly
substance in terms of potential barm.” This is In conflict not only with Mr.

Helms' statemest but also with material which bad been supplied to the Technical
Services Stafl. In ope long memorandum on current research with LSD which
was supplied to TSD, Henry Beecher described the dzngers involved with suchk
research in a prophetic mannet. “The second reason to doubt Professor
came when I raised the question as to any.accidents which bad arisen from
the use of LSD-25. He said In & ""J’“u" way, ‘none.’ As it turned out
this apswer could be called overly positive, for later ob in the evening I was
discussing the matter with Dr. W. A. Stohl, Jr., 2 psychlatrist In Bleulera's
Clinfe In Zurich where I bad gone at Rothland's insistence. Stobl, when asked
the same question, replied, ‘yes,' and added spontaneously, ‘there is a case
Professor Bothland knows about.. In Gepeva s woman physician who had been
subject to depreasion to some extent took LSD-23 in an experiment and became
seversly apd suddenly depressed and committed suicide three weeks later.
While the connection is pot definite, common knowledge of this could hardly
bave sllowed the positive statement Rothland permitted himself. This case is
s warning to us to avold engaging subjects who are depressed, or who have been
subject to depression.' ” Dr. Gottlisb testiied that he had no recollection of
_ either the report or that particnlar section of it. (Sidney Gottlieb testimony,

10/19/75, p- T8.) . -

= yfemorandum of Sbefleld Edwards for the record, 11/28/83, p. 2

o1 ashbrook (staff summary). 1/18/75, 0. 3

s Gottlieb AMemorandum, 12/7/53. p- 2.

» Edwards memorandum, 11/28/33, p 3.
- ® Gottlieb memorandum. 12/7/53, p. &

* Ruwet memorandum, p. 3

T e f0 the point that they were boisterous and lsughing and they
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versation, it was decided thatsmedical assistance for Dr. Olson was

desirable.*?

Ruwet then called Lashbrook and informed him that “Dr. Olson
was in serious trouble and needed immediate professional attention.” ¢
Lashbrook agreed to make appropriate arrangements and told Ruwet
to bring Olson to Washington, D.C. Ruwet and Olson proceeded to
Washington to meet with brook, and the three left for New York
at about 2:30 p.m. to meet with Dr. Harold Abramson.

At that time Dr. Abramson was an sllergist and immunologi
practicing medicine in New York City. He held no degree in is-
try, but was associated with rese gorujects supported indirectly
by the CIA. Gottlieb end Dr., Lashbrook th followed his work closely
in the early 1950s. Since Olson needed medical help, they turned to
Dr. Abramson as the doctor closest to Washington who was experi-
enced with LSD and cleared by the CILAL - '

Ruwet, Lashbrook, and Olson remained in New York for two dsys of
consultations with Abramson. On Thursday, November 26, 1958, the
three flew back to Washington so that Olson could spend Thanksgiving
with his family. En route from the airport Olson told Ruwet that he
was afraid to face his family. After a lengthy discussion. it was de-
cided that Olson and Lashbrook would return to New York, aud that
Rurwet would go to Frederick to explain these events to 3re. Olson.*

Lashbrook and Olson flew back to New York. the same day, agamn
for consultations with Abramson. They spent Thursdati nigfxt in a
Long Island hotel and the next morning returned to the city with
Abramson. In further discussions with Abramson, it was a
that Olson should be placed under regular psychiatric care at an
institution closer to his home.*

d. The Death.—Because they could not cbtain air transportation for
a return trip on Fridsy night, Lashbrook and Olson made reservations
for Saturday morning and checked into the Statler Hotel. Between
the time they checked in and 10:00 p.m.; they watched television,
visited the cocktail lounge, where each had two martinis, and dinner.
According to Lashbrook, Olson “was cheerful and appesred to enj
the entertainment.” He “ufzﬁared no longer particulary dep
and almost the Dr. Olson ew prior to the experiment.” %

After dinner Lashbrook and O watched television for about
an hour, and at 11:00, Olson suggested that they go to bed, saying that
“he felt more relaxed and contented than he had since [they] came
to New York.” ¢’ Olson then left a call with the hotel operator to wake
them in the morning. At afgroximtely 2:30 a.m: Saturdsy, Novem-
ber 28, Lashbrook was awakened by s loud “crash of glass.” In his
report on the incident, he stated only that Olson “bad crashed through
the closed window blind and the closed window and he fell to-his death
from the window of our room on the 10th floor.” «

“nid., p. 4 ' :

© Lsshbrook memorandum, 12/7/858, p. L

«'gia ff summary of Dr. Harold Abramson interview, 1/28/75, p. 2.
# Laghbrook memorandum, 12/7/583, p. &

® sbramson memorandom, 12/4/68.

« 7 ashbrook memorandom, 12/7/88, p. &.
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Immediately after finding that Olson had lesapt to his death, Lash-
brook telephoned Gottlieb at his home and informed him of the in-
cident.®* Gottlieb called Ruwet and informed him of Olson’s death
at approximately 2:45 a.m.® Lashbrook then called the hotel desk
and reported the incident to the operator there. ‘Lashbrook called
Abramson end informed him of the occurrence. Abramson told Lash-
brook he *‘wanted to be kept out of the thinﬁ completely,” but later
changed his mind and agreed to assist Lashbrook.*

Shortly theresfter, uniformed lice officers and some hotel em-

loyees came to Lashbrook's room. Lashbrook told the police he didn’t

ow why Olson had committed suicide, but he did know that Olson

sguffered from ulcers.” ¥

Msullered O ermath—Followiny, Dr. Olson's death, the CLo made

s substantisl effort to ensure that his family received death benefits,
_but-did. not notify the Olsons of the circumstances surrounding
demise. The Agency also meade considcnbie1ﬁor&s4o4:mm‘“thg,

_ desth being connected with the CIA, and sufxlied complete cover for

Lashbrook so that his association with the C would remain o secret.

After Dr. Olson's death the CIA conducted an internsl investiga-
tion of the incident. As part of his responsibilities in this investiga-
tion, the General Counsel wrote the Inspector General, stating:

I’'m not happy with what seems to be a very casual attitude
on the part of TSS representatives to the way this experni-
ment was conducted and the remarks that this is just one of
the risks running with scientific experimentation. Y do not
eliminate the need for tak'mﬁ risks, but I do believe, espe-
cially when human health or life is at stake, that at lenst the
rudent, reasonable measures which can be taken to mini-
" mize the risk inust be taken and failure to do so was culpable

" negligence. The actions of the various individuals concern
[ after effects of the experiment on Dr. Olson became manifest
also revealed the failure to observe normal and reasonable

pncautlons.“

-, As & result of the investigation DCI Allen Dulles sent a personal
§.tter to the Chief of Technical Operations of the Technical Services

'Staff who had approved the experiment criticizing him for “poor

. Ludgment _..in authorizing the use of this drug on such an unwitting

asis and without proximate medica] safeguards.” * Dulles also sent

" ";; Jetter to Dr. Gottlieb, Chief of the Chemical Division of the Tech-

ilcal Services Stafl, criticizing him for recommending the “unwitting
application of the drug” in that the proposal “did not give sufficient
emphasis for medical collaboration and for the proper consideration

~.of the rights of the individual to whom it was being administered.” **

e ———————————— .

# CIA Fleld Office Report, 12/3/58,p.3.

+ 7. » Ruwet Memorandum, P 11,

© .. s CIA Field Office Report, 12/3/58, p. &

i3% yemoran

-2 » Memorsndum from DCI to Chlef, Technical
: ,'Blemornndnm trom DCI to Sidney Gottlied,

Y Ibid. Y .
dom from the General Counsel to the*tor General. 1/4/54.

ons, TSS, 2/12/3.
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The letters were hand carried to the individuals to be read and
returned. Although the letters were critical, s note from the Deputy
Director of Central Intelligence to Mr. Helms instructed him to -in-
form the individuals that: “These are not reprimands and no person-
nel file notation are being made.” ** ' :

Thus, slthough the Rockefeller Commission has characterized them
as such, these notes were explicitly not reprimands. Nor did participa-
tion in the events which led to Dr. Olson's death have sny apparent
effiect on the advancement within the CIA of the individua involved.

3. The Surreptitious Administration of LSD to Unwitting Non-
Volunteer Human Subjects by the CIA After the Death of Dr.

- —Qlson—

The death of Dr. Olson could be viewed, as some argued at the time,
as a tragic accident,one of the risks inherent in the testing of new sub-
ctances. Tt might be argued that LSD was thought to be benign.
After the death of Dr. Oﬂon the dangers of the surreptitious admin-
istration of LSD were clear, yet the CIA continued or initiated ¥ o
project involving the surreptitious administration of LSD to non-
volunteer human subjects, This program exposed numerous individuals
in the United States to the risk of death or serious injur{‘thhout their
informed consent, without medical supervision, and without necessary
follow-up to determine any long-term effects. '

Prior to the Olson experiment, the Direcier of Central Intelligence
had approved MKULTRA, a research program designed to develop
a “capability in the covert use of biolo cal and chemical agnt
materials.” In the propossl describing MK%LTRA Mr. Helms,
ADDP, wrote the Director that :

we intend to investigate the development of & chemical mate-
~ rial which causes a reversible non-toxic aberrant mental sta

the specific nature of which can be reasonably well ‘]Y i

for each individual. This material could potentially aid in

discrediting individuals, eliciting information, and implant-

ing suggestions and other forms of mental control.®

On Febmlr% 19, 1954, the Director of the Central Intelligence
‘wrote TSS officials .riticizing them for “poor judgment” in

. Aﬁncy A
administering LSD on “an unwitting basis and without proximate

medjca] safeguards” to Dr. Olson and for the lack of “proper consid-
eration of the rights of the individual to whom it was being admin-
istered.” ** On the same day, ﬂmgteaor General reviewed a report
on Subproject Number 3 of TRA, in which the same TSS
officers who had just received letters from the Director were. quoted
as stating that one of the purposes of Subproject Number 8 was to

w Note from DDCIto Richard Helma, 2/13/54. )

" The 1963 IG Report, which described the project involving the surreptitious
adminpistration of LSD, placed the project beginning in 1935. Other CIA docu-
ments revesl that it was In existence as eariy as February 1904 The CIA bas
told the Committee that the project began in 1953 and that the experiment which
led to Dr. Olson’s death was part of the project. . :

® y\femorandum from ADDP {tems to DOI Dulles, 4/3/58, tadb A.D. 2

» Yfemorandum from DCI to Sldney Gottlieb, 2/12/H4 ; apd memorapdum from .
DCI to Chlef of Operations, TS8, 2/12/54. : :
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«observe the behavior of unwitting persons being questioned after
having been given & drtgg."" There 18 no evidence that Subproject
Number 3 was terminated even though these officers were unequivo-
cally aware of the dangers of the surre titious administration of LSD
end the necessity of obtaining informed consent and providin medical
safeguards. Subproject Number 8, in fact, used methods which showed
even less concern than did the OLSON exgeriment for the safety and
security of the participants. Yet the evidence indicates the project
continued until 1963,% ]

In the project, the individual conducting the test might make
initial contact with a prospective subject selected at random in a bar.
He would thefi invite the person to a “safehouse™ where the test drug
was administered to the subject through drink or in food. CIA. per-
sonnel might_debrief the individual conducting the test, or ohserve
the test by using a one-way mirror and tape recorder in an adjoining
room.

Prior consent was obviously not obtained from any of the subjects.
There was also, obviously, no medical prescreening. In addition, the
tests were conducted by individuals who were not ualified scientific
observers. There were no medical personnel on hand either to admin-
ister the drugs or to observe their effects, and no follow-up was con-
ducted on the test subjects.

As the Inspector General noted in 1963:

A significant limitation on the effectiveness of such testing is
the infeasibility of performin scientific observation of re-
sults. The [individuals conducting the test] sre not qualified
acientific obsarvers. Their subjects are seldom accessible be-
yond the first hours of the test. The test.ing ma¥ be useful in
perfecting delivery techniques, and in i entifying surface
characteristics of onset, reaction, attribution, and side-effect.*

This was particularly troublesome as in &

number of instances, . . . the test subject has become ill for
hours or days, including hospitalization in at least one case,
and the agent could only follow up by guerded inquiry
after the test subject’s return to normal life. Possible sickness
and sttendant economic loss are inherent contingent effects
of the testing.®

Paradoxically, Sl:uer care seems to frave been taken for the safety
of foreign nationals against whom LSD was used abroad. In several
cases medical examinstions were performed prior to the use of LSD.*

® Afemorandum to Inspector General from Chief, Inspection and Review, o
Subproject #38 of MKULTRA, 2/10/54.

@ IG Report on MKULTRA, 1963,

*rdid.p 12

= Idid. According to the IG's survey in 1963, pbysicians associsted with
MKULTRA could be ingde availabdle in an emergency.

* The Technieal Services Division which was responsibie for the cperational
use of LSD abroad took tbe position that “no physical ezamination of the subject
is required prior to administration of [LSD] by TSS trained personpel. A pbysi-

r-""-.‘l!
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Moreover, the sdministration abroad was marked by constant obser-
vation made possible because the material was being used against
grisonera of foreign intelligence or security organizstions. Finally,

uring certain of the LSD inberroiuions abroed, local physicians
wers on call, though these physicians had had no experience with LSD
and would not be told that hallucinogens kjd been sdministered.*
.. The CIA’s project involving the surrept.zious sdministration of

LSD to unwitting human subjects in the %nited States was finally
halted in 1963, as a result of its discovery during the course of an
Inspector General survey of the Technical Services Division. When
the Inspector General learned of the project, he spoke to the Deput
Director for Plans, who agreed that the Director should be brief
The DDP made it clear that the DCT and his Deputy were generally
~ familiar with MKULTR.A. He indicated, however, that he was not
sure it was necessary to brief the DDCT st that : o

On MMay 24, 1963, the DDP advised the Inspector General that he had
briefed the Director on the MEULTRA program and in particular
had covered the question of the surreptitious administration of LSD
te unwiiting human subjects. According to the Inspector General, the
DDP said that “the Direstor indicated no disagreement and therefore
the ‘testing’ will continue.” *

One copy of an “Eyes Only” draft report on MKULTRA was
prepared by the Inspector General who recommended the termination
of the surreptitious administration project. The project was suspended
following the Inspector General’s report.

On December 17, 1963, Deputy lg?recwr for Plans Helms wrots s
memo to the DDCI, who with the Inspector General and the Executive
Director-Comptroller had op the covert ustig. He noted two
aspects of the problem: (1) “for over s decade the Clandestine Serv-
ices has had the mission of maintaining & capability for inﬂuencing
human behavior;” and (2) “testing arrangements in furtherance o
this mission should be as operationa ly realistic and yet as controllable
as possible.” Helms argued that the individusls must be “unwitting”
as this was “the only reslistic method of maintaining the capability,
considering the intended operational use of matensls to influence
human behavior as the operational targets will certainly be unwitt
Should the subjects of the testing not be unwitting, the program wou
only be “pro forma” ruull.inéin a “false sense of accomplishment and
readiness.” ¢ Helms continued : :

clap nred 8ot be present. There Is oo danger medically in the use of this material
uumummmna'deummhdm
the position that LSD was “medically dangsrous.” Both the Offics of Security
and the Ofice of Medical Services argued that LSD “sbould pot be administered
aunless preceded by & medical examinsticn . . . and should be administered only
Ly or in the presence of a phyziclan who bad studled it and Its effect.” (Memo-
randum from James Angieton, Chief, Counterintelligence Staff to Chief of Oper-
atoas, 12/12/87, pp. 1-2

“ physicians might be called with the hope that they would make a dlagnosis
of mental breakdown which would be usefu!l in discrediting the individual who
was the subject of the C1A Interest.

* yfemorandum for the Record prepared by the Inspector Genersl, 5/15/6€3, p. 1.

“INd.p2
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If one grants the validity of the mission of maintaining this
unusual capability and the necessity for unwitting testing,
there is only then the question of how best to do it. Obviously,
the testing should be conducted in such a manner as to permit
the opportunity to observe the results of the edministration
on the target. It also goes without saying that whatever test-
ing arrangement we adopt must afford maximum safe

for the protection of the Agency’s role in this activity, as
well as minimizing the possibility of physical or emotional
damage .o the individual tested.®

In another memo to the Director of Central Intelligence in June,

~1964, Helms againnised—t-he—issue-ofumitting testing. At that time

General Carter, then acting DCI, spproved several changes in the
AKX ULTRA program proposed by Mr. Helms es a result of negotia-

tions between the Inspector Gcnerirﬁd’fﬁé’DDE’Inifhgndwritun——f :

note, however, Director Carter added that “unwitting testing will be
subject to a separate decision.” * .

o specific decision was made then or soon after. The testing had
been halted and, sccording to Walter Elder, Executive Assistant to
DCI McCone, the DCI was not inclined to take the positive step of
authorizing a resumption of the testing. At least through the summer,
the DDP did not press the issue. On November 9, 1964, the DDP.
raised the issue sgain in s memo to the DCI, calling the Director’s
sttention to what he described as ugeveral other indications duri
the past year of an apparent Soviet aggressiveness in the field o
covertly sdministered chemicals which are, to say the least, inexplic-

sble and disturbing.” ™

Helms noted that because of the suspension of covert testing, the -

Agency’s “positive operational capability to use drugs is diminishing,
owing. to a lack of realistic testing. Wit.tl{ incrusing%owledge of the
state of the art, we are Jess capable of staying up with Soviet advances
in this field. This in turn results in a waning capability on our part
, i {mch as the Depart-
ment of Defense) from pursuing operations in this srea.” ™
Helms attributed the cessation of the unwitting testing to the high
risk of embarrassment to the Agency as well as the “moral problem.”
He noted that no better covert aituation had been devised than that
.whicl; 'l’u.d been used, and that “we have no answer to the moral
issue. '
Helms asked for either resumption of the testing project or its defini-
tive cancellation. He aggued that the status quo of a resesrch and de-
velopment program without & realistic testing program was causing
the Agency to live “with the illusion of a capability which is becoming
minimal and furthermore is exH;nsiva.” 13 Once again no formal action
was taken in response to the Helms' request.
—————— X
® \femorsndum from DDP Helms to DDCI Carter, 12/17/63.
@ yJerporandum from DDP Helms to DTI, 6/9/64,p. 3.
™ rbid., 11/9/64,p. 1.
n Idid., pp. 1-2

»rbid.,. p- 2
= Idid.

to restrain others in the intelligence community

vy

b

= XY

i

st

Lot

o

pore=



83
403

From its beginning in the early 1950's until its termination in 1963,
the program of surreptitious ndministration of LSD to unwitting non-
volunteer human subjects demonstrates a failure of the CIA’s leader-
ship to pay adequate attention to the rights of individusls and to pro-
vide effective guidance to CIA employees. Though it was known that
the testing was dangerous, the lives of subjects were placed in jeop-
ardy and their rights were jgnored during the ten years of testing
which followed Dr. Olson’s death. Althou it was clear that the laws
of the United States were being violated, tg.be testing continued. While
the individuals involved in the Olson experiment were sdmonished
by the_Director, at_the same time they were slso told that they were
not being reprimanded and that their “bad judgment” would not be
made part of their personnel records. When the covert testing project
was terminated in 1963, none of the individusls-involved-were subject -
to any dusciplinary action.

4 Mcaitoring and Control of the Testing and Use of Chemical and
Biological Agents by the CIA

The Select Committee found numerous failures in the monitoring
and control of the testing and use of chemical and biological agents
within the CIA.™ An analysis of the failures can be divided into four
sections: (a) the waiver of normal regulations or uirements; (b)
the problems in suthorization Srocedum; (¢) the failure of internal
review mechanisms such as the Office of General Counsel, the Inspector
General, and the Audit Staff; and (d) the effect of compartmentation
and competition within the CIA.

a. The Waiver of Administrative Controls.—The internal controls
within any agency rest on: (1) clesr and coherent regulations; (2)
clear lines of authority; and (3) clear rewards for those who conduct
themselves in sccord with agency regulations and understandable and
immediate sanctions against those who do not. In the case of the test-
ing and use of chemical and biological agents, normal CIA adminis-
trative controls were waived. The destruction of the documents on the
largest CTA program in this area constituted a prominent example of
the waiver of normal Agency procedures by the Director.

These documents were destroyed in early 1973 st the order of then
DCI Richard -Helms. According to Helms, Dr. Sidney Gottlieb, then
Director of TSD:

. . . came to me and said that he was retirin and that T was
retiring and he thoufht it would be & good idea if these files
were destroyed. And I also believe 'gart of the reason for
our thinking this was advissble was there had been relation-
ships with outsiders in government agencies and other or,

nizations and that these would be sensitive in this kind of &
thing but that since the program was over and finished and
done with, we thought we would just get rid of the files as

—_ﬂ

» Gection 2(9) of S. Res. 21 Instructs the Committee to examine: the “extent
to which United States intelllgence agencies are governed by Executive Orders
rules, or regulstions either published or secret.”
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well, s0 that anybody who assisted us in the past would not
be subject to follow-up or questions, embarrassment, if you
wilL.™ . | :

The destruction was based on & waiver of an internal CIA regula-
tion, CSI 70-10, which regulated the “retirement of inactive records.”
As Thomas Karamessines, then Deputy Director of Plans, wrote in
regulation CSI-70-10: “Retirement is not a matter of convenience or
of storage but of conscious judgment in the applicstion of the rules
modified by knowledge of individual component needs. The heart of
this judgment is to ensure that the complete story can be reconstructed

_ inlater ayears and by People who may be unfamiliar with the events.” ™
= The destruction of the MKULTRA:documents made it impossible

for the Select Committee to determine the full range and extent of the

largest CTA—research _program. invoiving chemical and biological
agents. The destruction also prevented the from Jocating and pro-
viding medical assistance to the individusls who were subjects in the
rogram. Finally, it prgventad the Committee from _determming the
{p-ulr | estent of the operations which made use of materisls'developed in
the MEKULTRA program.”

From the inception of MKULTRA normal Agenc procedures were
waived. In 1933, Mr. Helms, then Assistant Deput irector for Plans,
proposed the establishment of MKULTRA. Under the roposal six
percent of the research and development budget of TSD would be
expended “without the establishment of formal contractual relations”
because contracts would reveal government interest. Helms also voted

~ that 3uahﬁed individuals in the field “are most reluctant to enter into
signed & ements of any sort which connect them with this activity
since such a connection would jeopardize their professional reputa-
o —————— .
© Richard Helms testimony, 9/11/75, p. 5. . -
‘Many Agency documents recording confidential relationships with individusls
and orgapizations are retained without public disciosure. Moreover, in the case of
MEGLTRA the CLA had spent millions of dollars developing both materials and
delivery systems which could be used by the Clandestine Services ; the reconstruc-
tion of the research and development program would be difficult If ot impoe-
sible, without the documents, and at least one assistant to Dr. Gottlleb protested
against the document destruction on those grounds. :
= Clandestine Services Institution (CSI) 70-10. When ssked by the Select
Committee about the regularity of the procedure by which he suthorized Dr.
Gottlleb to destroy the MEKULTRA records, Helms responded:
wY¥ell, that’s hard to say whether it sould be part of the regular procedyre or
pot, because the record destruction program s conducted according to a certain
patters. There's & regular record destruction pattern in tbe Agency monitored by
certain people and done a certaiz way. 8o that anything outside of that, I suppose,
would bave been unusual. In other words, there were documents belng destroyed

on
to your question is probably yes.” (Helms testimony, 9/11/73, p. 6.)

v Byen prior to the destruction of documents, the MKULTRA records were far
from compiete. As the Inspector General noted In 1963:

“Files are notably ipcomplete, poorly organized, and lacking in evaluative state-
ments that might give perspective to management policies over time, A substan-
tial portion of the MKULTRA record appears to rest in the memories of the prin-
cipal officers and is therefore almost certain to be Jost with tbeir departures.”
(IG Reporton MEKULTRA,p. 23.)
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tions™."® Other Agency procedures, i.e., the forwarding of documents
in support of invoices snd the provision for re lar audit procedures,
were 8lso to be waived. On April 13, 1953, then DCI Allen Dulles
approved MKULTRA, noting that security considerations precluded
handling the project through usual contractual agreements. :

Ten years later investigations of MKULTRA by both the Inspecto
General and the Audit Staff noted substantial deficiencies which re-
sulted from the waivers. Because TSD had not reserved the right to
audit the books of contractors in MKULTRA, the CIA had been
unable to verify the use of Agency grants by a contractor. Another
firm had failed to establish controls and safeguards which would as-
sure “proper accountability” in use of government funds with the

— - — --result that-“funds -have been used for purposes not contem lated by

rants or allowable under usual contract relationship.” ™ The entire

MEKULTRA arrangement wias condemned for havinﬁ administrative
lines which were unclear, overly permissive controls, and irrespon-
sible supervision.

The head of the Audit Branch noted that inspections and audits:
led us to see MRULTRA as frequently having provided a
device to escape normal administrative controls for resesrch
that is not especially sensitive, as having sllowed practices
that produce gross sdministrative failures, as having per-
mitted the establishment of special relationships with unreli-
-able organizations on an unacceptable basis, and as having
Eroduced, on at least one ocoasion, a.cavalier treatment of a

ona fide contracting organization. '

While admitting that there may be a need for special mechanisms
for handling sensitive projects, the Chief of the Audit Branch wrots

that $both the terms of reference and the ground rules for hand

such special projects should be spelled out in advance so that diver-
sion from normal channels does not mean abandonment of controls.

Special procedures may be necessary to ensure the security of highly
sensitive operations. To prevent the erosion of normal internal con-
trol mechanisms, such waivers should not be extended to less sensitive
operations. Moreover, only those regulations which would endanget
security should be waived; to waive regulations generally would
result in highly sensitive and controversial projects luvm‘i leort.

®

rather than stricter administrative controls. AOMI,

Detrick CIA project for research and development of chemical and
biological agents, provides another example where efforts to protect
the security of agency activties overwhelmed administrative controls.
-No written records of the transfer of agents such as anthrax or shell-
fish toxin were kept, “because of the sensitivity of the ares and the-
desire to keep any possible use of materials like this recordless.” ** The

e ———r—

» A{emorandum from ADDP Helms to DCI Dulles, 4/3/53, Tab. A, p. 2-

» Memorandum from IG to Chief, T8D, 11/8/63, as quoted in memorandum

from Chief. Audit Branch.

® The memorandum suggested that administrative exclusions, because of the
Importance of such decisions, shauld require the personal approval-of the Deputy
Director of Central Intelligence on an indlvidual case basis. Present CIA policy

is that only the DCI can autborize certain exemptions from regulations.
R Sidney Gottlieb teatizwony, 10/18/75, Hearings, Vol. 1, 61
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result was that the Agency had no way of determining what mate-
rials were on hand, and could not be certain whether delivery systems
such as dart guns, or deadly substances such as cobra venom had been
issued tothe feld. N
b. Awuthorization—The destruction of the .documents regarding
MKULTRA made it difficult to determine at what level specific proj-
ects in the program were suthorized. This probiem is not solely a re-
sult of the document destruction, however. Even at the height of
MEULTRA the IG noted that, at least with respect to the surrepti-
tious administration of LSD, the “present practice is to maintain no
records of the planning and approval of test programs.” *
-~ While-it is clear that-Allen-Dulles authorized- MKTULTRA, the rec-
ord is unclesr as to who authorized specific Sroi'ects such as that in-

volunteer human subjects. Even given the sensitive and controversial
nature of the project, there is no evidence that when John McCone
replaced Allen Dulles as the Director of the Central Intelligence
Agency he was briefed on the details of this project and asked whether
it should be continued.”’ Even during the 1963 discussions on the pro-
priety of unwitting testing, the DDP questioned whether it was “neces-
sary to brief General Carter,” the Deputy Director of Central Intelli-
gence and the Director’s “alter ago,” gecsuse CIA officers felt it neces-
sary to keep details of the project restricted to an absolute minimum
number of people.™

In May of 1963, DDP Helms told the Inspector General that the
covert testing program was authorized because he had gone to the
Director, briefed him on it and *the Director indicated no disagree-
-ent snd therefore the testing will continue.” ¥ Such authorization
even for noncontroversial matters is clearly less desirable than ex-
plicit authorization; in areas such as the surreptitious administration
of drugs, it is particularly undesirable. Yet according to testimony

® 1G Report on MEULTRA, 1963, v. 14, :

* According to an assistant to Dr. Gottlieb, there were annual briefings of the
DCI and the DDP on MEULTRA by the Chief of TSD or hia deputy. However, a
May 15, 1963 Memorandum for the Record from the Inspector Geberal noted that
AMr. McCone had not been briefed in detall abont the program, Mr. McCone's Exec-
ative Officer, Walter Elder, testified that it was “perfectly apparent to me™ that
peither Mr. McCone nor General Carter, then the DDCI, was aware of the sur-
reptitious administration project “or if they had been briefed they had not under-
stood it.” (EMer, 12/18/78, p. 13.) Mr. McCone testified that he “did not know”
whether be talked to anyone sbout the project but that no one had told him sbout
!‘; ;l/l'l' a" wul ot:t;u “would hare turned on all the lights.” (John McCone testimony,
=/ p-

& According to Elder's testimony, “no Deputy Director, to my knowledge,
has ever been briefed or was it ever thought necessary to brief them to the extent
to which you wotld brief the Director.”

® 1G Memorandum for the Record. 5/15/63%

On 12:' question of authorization of the covert testing program, Elder testified
as fol :

“But my reasonable judgment ia that this was considered to be in the area of
contioulng approval, having once been approved by the Director.”

The theory of authorization carrying over from one administration to the next
reems particularly Inapprepriate for less visible, bighly sensitive operations
which, unless brought to bis attention by sobordinates, would not ¢crne to the
attention of the Director.

/
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before the Committee, authorization through lack of agreement -is
even more prevalent in sensitive situations.™ :
The unauthorized retention of shellfish toxin by Dr. Nathan Gordon
and his subordinates, in violation of 8 Presidential Directive, may have
resulted from the failure of the Director to issue written instructions to
Agency officials. The retention was not suthorized by senior officials in
the Agency. The Director, Mr. Helms, hai instructed Mr. Karames-
sines, the Deputy Director of Plans, and Dr. Gottlieb, the Chief of
Technical Services Division, to relinquish control to the Army of any
chemical or biological agents being retained for the CIA at Fort De-
trick. Dr: Gottlieb passed-this-instruction on to-Dr, Gordon. While
orders inay be disregarded in any orgenization, one of the reasons that

- Dr. Gordon usedto defend the retention was the fact-that-he-hednot—- - -

received written instructions forbidding it.” .

In some situations the existence of written instructions did noéfre-
vent unauthorized actions. Aocordl;x.zg toan innstigatiw the CIA's
Insg::tnr General TSD officers been informed that Mr.
Helms was to be “advised at all times” when LSD was to be used. In
addition TSD had received a memo advising the staff that LSD was
not to be used without the permission of the BDP, Frank Wisner. The
experiment involving Dr. Olson went ahead without notification of
either Mr. Wisner or Mr; Helms. The absence of clear and immediate
punishment for that act must undercut the force of other internal in-
structions and regulations. : .

One last issue must be raised about authorization procedures within
the Agency. Chemical agents were used abroad until 1959 for dis-
crediting or dlsablinf operations, or for the p of interrogations
with the approvil of the Chief of Operations of the DDP. Later the
approval of the: Deputy Director for Plans was required for such

operations. Althou medical staff sought to be part of the :E-
Enrsoval process for these operations, they were exclud as the
pector General wrote in 1957:

Operstional determinations are the responsibility of .the
DD/P and it is he who should advise the DCI in thess
respec:s] just as it is he who is r&zponsib!e for the results, It
is completely unrealistic to consider assigning to the Chief,
Medical Staff, (what, in effect, would be authority over clan-
destine operations.)* : '

Given the expertise and training of physicians, participation of the
Medical Staff might well have been ul;e S

Questions sbout authorization also exist in regard to those -'.'gv.nciu
which assisted the CIA. For instance, the project involving the sur-
reﬁtmous administration of LSD to unwitting non-volunteer human
subjects was conducted in coordination with the Bureau of Narcotics
and Dangerous Drugs. There is some question as to the Commissioner
of Narcotics’ knowledge about the project.

® \z, Elder was asked whether the process of bringing forward.a deacription of
actions by the Agency in getting approval through the absence of disagreement
was 8 common one. He respopded, “It was not nncommon. . .. The more sensitive
the project the more likely it would lean toward being & common practice, based
on the need to keep the written record toa minimum.”

= xNathap Gordan testimony, /16,73, Hearings, Vol. 1.

® 1937 1G Bevport.
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In 1963, the Inspector General noted that the head of the BNDD .-
had been briefed sbout the project, but the 1G's report did not indi- :

cate the Jevel of detail provided to him. Dr. Gottlie testified that “I
remember mesting Mr. Anslinger and had the general feeling that he
was aware.”® Another CIA officer did not recall sny discussion of
testing on un<itting subjects when he and Dr. Gottlieb met with Com- ‘.
missioner Anslinger. ‘

In s memorandum for the record in 1967 Dr. Gottlieb stated that .
Herry Giordano, who replaced Mr. Ans told Dr. Gottlieb that ;
when be became Commissioner he was “only ﬁenerally briefed on the - "
“nngementiiﬂ“ it his general blessing, and said he didn’t want to .
know the details.” The same memorandum states, however, that there _
" were several comments which indicated to Dr. Gottlieb that Mr. Gior- -'
dano was aware of the substance of the project. 1t | is possible that — -
the Commissioner provided a ral authorization for the arrange- T
ment without vederstanding what it entailed or considering its pro- |
priety. A reluctance to seek detailed information from the , and
the CIA's hesitancy to volunteer it, has been found in a number of .
instances during the Select Committee’s investigations. This problem :
is not confined to the executive branch but has also marked congres-
sional relationships with the Agency. -

¢. Internal Review—The waiver of regulations and the absencs of
documentstion mske it difficult to determine now who authorized
which activities. More importantly, they made internal Aﬁncy review
mechanisms much less effective.” Controversial and highly sensitive

rojects which should have been subject to the most rigorous inspection
})acked effective internal review.

Given the role of the General Counsel and his reaction to the sur-
reptitious administration of LSD to Dr. Olson, it would have seemed
likely thst he would be asked about the Jegality ox:rﬁropriety of any

vy iy s

r,--.\

subsusxe.nt rojects involving such administration. is was not do ‘

He did not learn about this testing until the 1970's. Nor was the Gen- 3

eral Counsel’s opinion sought on other MKULTRA projects, though ¢

these had been characterized by the Inspector Géneral in the 1957

Report oo TSD as “unethical and illicit.” * {
ere i8 no mention in the report of the 1957 Inspector General’s i

survey of TSD of the project involving the surreptitious administra- .

tion of LSD. That project was apparently not brought to the attention ‘.

of the survey team. The Inspector who discovered it durin the IG’s
1963 survey of TSD recalls coming upon evidence of it inadvertently,

® Gottlied, 10/18/73, p. 28. :
» e 1G's Teport on MEULTRA in 1963 stated : i
wIhe original charter documenta specified that TSD malntain exacting con- '

trol of MEULTRA activities. In so doing, howerer, TSD bas pursued a pbi-

Josophy of minimum documentation in keeping with the high sensitivity of some

of the projects. SBome files were found to present & rensonably complete

inclodipg wost sensitive matters, while others with paralle]l objectives contajned

little or po data at all. The lack of consistent records precluded use of routine

inspection procedures and raised a variety of guestions concerning manage-

ment and fSscal controla™

" C14, Inspector General's report on TSD, 1907, p. 217.

/
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rather than its having been called to his attention as an especially
sensitive project.® . o
Thus both the Genersl Counsel and the Inspector General, the prin-

cipal internal mechanisms for the control of poesibly improper actions,

were excluded from regular reviews of the project. When the project

was discovered the Executive Director-Comptroller voiced strong op-

position to it; it is possible that the project would have been termi-

nated ip 1957 if it had been called to his attention when he then served

as Inspector General. ' . :

The Audit Staff, which also serves an internal review function

-* through the examination-of Agency-ex ditures, also_encountered

substantial dificulty with MKUL Vhen MEKULTRA was first

; he Audit Stafl was to be excluded from any function. This
was so0n chnﬁd. However, the waiver of normal “contractual pro=——— -

cedures” in MKULTRA increased the likelihood of “irregularities”

as well as the difficulty in detecting them. The head of the Audit

Branch characterized the MKULTRA procedures as “having allo
practices that produced gross administrative failures,” including a
lack of controls within outside contractors which would “assure proper
accountability in use of government funds.” It also diminished the
CIA’s capacity to verify the accountings provided by outside firms.

d. Comparimentation and Jurisdictional Conflict Within the
Agency.—As has been noted, the testing and use of chemical and
biclogical agents Ias treated as s highly sensitive activity within the
CIA. This resulted in a high degree of compartmentation. At the same
time substantial jurisdictional conflict existed within the Agency be-
tween the Technical Services Division, and the Office of Medical -
ices and the Office of Security. .

This compartmentation and jurisdictional conflict may well have
Jed to duplication of effort within the CIA and to Agency policy-
makers being deprived of useful information, T

During the early 1950's first the BLUEBIRD Committee and then
the ARTICHOKE Committee were instituted to bring together rep-
resentatives of the Agency components which bad 8 Jegitimate inter-
est in the arca of the alteration of human behavior. By 1957 both these
committees had fallen into disuse. No information went to the Tech-
nical Services Division (s component su represented on the
ARTICHOKE Committes) about ARTICHOKE operstions being
conducted by the Office of Security and the Office of edical Services.
The Technical Services Division which was providing support to the
Clandestine Services in the use of chemical and biolo ical agents, but
provided little or no information to either the Office of Security or the
Office of Medical Services.’ As one TSD officer involved in these pro-

testified : “Although we were acquainted, we certainly didn’t
are experiences.”®

" Even after the Inspector came upon lt' the IG did not pertom.a complets
investigstion of it. It was discovered at thé end of an extensive survey of TSD -
apd the Inspector was in the process of being erred to another post within -

the Ageney.
= Testimony of CIA officer, 11/21/78, p. 14.
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QK.HILLTOP, another group designed to coordinate research in
this ares also had little success. The group met infrequently—only
twice 8 year—and little specific information was exchanged.®

Concern over secunty obviously played some role in the failure to
share information,” but this appears not to be the only reason. A TSD
officer stated that the Office of Medical Services gimply wasn’t “par-
ticularly interested in whai we were doing” and never sought such
information.” On the other hand, s representstive of the flice of

" Medical Services consistently sought to have medical personnel par-

ticipate in the use of chemical and biological agents suggested that
“TSD did not inform the Office of Medi Services in order to pre-
vent their involvement. ' -

Jurisdictional conflict was constant ‘in this ares. The Office of

— Securit ,—which—laaé—been—assigned_msponsibilitv for direction of

™~

ARTICHOKE, consistently sought to bri TSD operations in-
volving psychochemicals under the ARTICHOKE umbrella. The
Office of Medical Services sought to have OMS physicians advise and
participate in the operational use of drugs. As the Ins -
eral described it in 1957, “the basic issue is concerned with the extent
of authority that should be exercised by the Chief, Medical Staff, over
the activities of TSD which encroach upon or enter into the medical
field,” and which are conducted by TSD “without seeking the prior
approval of the Chief, Medical Staff, and often without informing
him of their nature and extent.” **

As was noted previously, because the f:rojects and pro of
TSD stemmed directly from operationa needs controlled by the
DDP, the IG recommended no further supervision of these activi-
ties by the Medical Staff: -

It is completely unrealistic to consider sssigning to the
Chief, Medical Staff, what, in effect, would be authority over
clandestine operations, Furthermore, some of the activities
of Chemical Division are not only unorthodox but unethical
ond sometimes illegal. The DDP is in a better position to
evaluate the ju t:’g:tiou for such operations than the Chief,
Medical Staff.» [Emphasis added.]

Because the advice of the Director of Security was needed for
uevaluating the risks involved™ in the programs and because the
knowledge that the CIA was “engaging in unethical and illicit activi-
ties would have serious repercussions in political and diplomatic
circles,” the IG recommended that the Director of Security be fully
advised of TSD's activities in these areas. - .

Even after the Inspector General’s Report of 1957, the compartmen-
tation ond jurisdictional conflict continued. They may have had a sub-

» The one set of minutes from a QRHILLTODP meeting indicnted that Individ-
uols in the Office of Medical Services stressed the need for more contact.

% when asked why Information on the surreptitions administration of 1.SI»
was not presented to the ARTICHOKE committee, Dr. Gottlieb responded: I
lumagine the only reason would have been a concern for broadening the aware-
nexa of it existence.” . )

WA oficer. 117175 p 14

T /v ]G sarves of TXD, 1937, p. 217,

" Ibid
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stantial negative impact on policymaking in the Agency. As the Dep-
uty Chief of the Counterintell;genee Stafl noted lgne 1958, due to tge
different positions taken by TSS, the Office of Security, and the Office
of Medical Services on the use of chemical or biological agents, it was

ossible that the individusl who authorized the use of a chemical or

iological agent could be presented with “incomplete facts upon which
to make a decision relevant to its use.” Even a committee set up by the
DDP in 1958 to attempt to rationalize Agency policy did not have ac-
cess to records of testing and use. This was due, in part, to excessive
compartmentation, and jurisdictional conflict.

T Covent Trsming oF HGMAN SUBJECTS BY MILITARY INTELLIGENCE

Grours: Materiar TesTiNg Procrax EA 1729, Provecr THIRD

CHANGE; axv-Proszcr DERBY HAT

5 the designator in the Army drug testing program
fcicl diethylamid@. Interest in IgD was originally
aroused at the Army's Chemi are Laboratories by open litera- -
ture on the unusual effects of the compound.” The positive intelli-
gence and counterintelligence potential envisioned for compounds like
1LSD, and suspected Soviet interest in such materials,’* supported the
development of an American military capability and resulted in ex-
periments conducted jointly by the U.S. Army Intelligence Board and
thc’ighemlcal Warfare gmbornt;riu. : : ll'

ese experiments, designed to evaluate potential intelligence uses
of 1.SD. were known collectively as “Material Testing Program EA
1729.” Two prgll'ects of particular interest conducted as part of these
experiments, “THIRD CHANCE” and “DERBY HAT”, involved
gxe*smmstmtron of LSD to unwitting subjects in Europe and the

n L]

In many respects, the Army’s testing programs duplicated research
which had already been conducted by the CIA. They certainly involved
the risks inherent in the early phases of drug testing. In the Army's
tests, as with those of the CIA, individual rights were 2lso subordi-
nated to national security considerations; informed consent and follow--

. up examinations of subjects were neglected in efforts to maintain the

secrecy of the tests. Finally, the command and control problems which
were apparent in the CIA’s programs are paralleled by a lack of clear
anthorization and supervision' in the Army’s programs.

- ®wUSAINTC staff stndy, “Material Testing Program, EA 1729,” 10/15/39, p. 4.

e yix same URAINTC study cited “A 1952 (several years prior to initial U.8.
intereat in LED-25) report that the Soviets purchased s large quantity of LSD-25
fm ‘:he ;!al;du Compeny in 1951, reputed to be sufiicient for 50 million doses.”
( . ’

Generally accepted Soviet methods and counterintelligence concerns were also
strong motivating factors in the initiation of this research:

«A primary justification for field experimentatian in intelligence with EA 1720
Ix the counter-intelligence or detense implication. We knaw that the enemy phi-
loxnphy condones any kind of coercion or violence for intelligence purposes. There
i proof that hix Intelligence xervice hax used drugs in the past. There ia strong
evidence of keeu interest In EA 1729 by him. If for no other purpse than to know
what tn expect from enemy intelligence use nf the material and to, thux, be pre-
pared tn colinter it, fleld xperimentation ix justified.” (Ioid, p. 34)

t
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1. Scope of Teting . _

Between 1955 and 1958 research was initiated by the Army Chemical
Corps to evaluste the potential for LSD as a chemical warfare inca-
pacitating agent. In the course of this research, LSD was administered
to more than 1,000 American volunteers who then articipated in &
series of tests designed to ascertain the effects of tﬁe drug on their
ability to function as soldiers. With the exception of one set of tests
at Fort Bragg, these and subsequent laboratory experiments to evalu-
ate chemical warfare potential were conducted at the Army Chemical
Warfare Laboratories, Edgewood, Maryland.

In 1958 8 new series of laboratory tests were initiated at Edgewood.
These experiments were conducted as the initial phase of Material
Testing Program EA 1729 to evaluate the intelligence potential of
LSD, and included LSD tests on 95 volunteers.’® As part of these

tests, three structured experiments were i

1. LSD was administered surreptitiously at & simulated
social reception to volunteer subjects who were unaware of
the -purpose or nature of the tests in which they were

articipating;
P 2. Lg;) was administered to volunteers who were subse-

uently polygraphed; and
1 3. LSS) was l;dm" i to volunteers who were then
confined i on chambe

These structured experiments were designed to evaluate the validity
of the traditional security training oll subjects had undergone in the
face of unconventional, ruf enhanced, interrogations.

At the conclusion of the laboratory test phase of Materisl Testing
Program EA 1729 in 1960, the Army Assistant Chief of Staff for
Intelligence (ACSI) authorized operational field testing of LSD. The
first feld tests were conducted in Furope by an Army Special Pur-
!Rse Team (SPT) during the period from M]l_zrv to Angust of 1061.
Jese tests were' known as Project THIRD CHANCE and involved

. eleven separate interrogations of ten subjects. None of the subjects

were volunteers and none were nware that they were to receive

' LSD. All but one subject, a U.S. soldier implicated in the theft of

classified documents, were alleged to be forelgn intelligence sources
or agents. While interrogations of these indivi uals were only moder-
ately successful, at Jeast one subject (the U.S. soldier) exhibited
symgtoms of severe paranoia while under the influerce of the drug.

The second series of field tests, Project DERBY HAT, were con-
ductéed by an Army SPT in the i“nr East during the period
from August to November of 1902. Seven subjects were interrogated
under DERBY H.\T, all of whom were foreign nationals cither sus-
pected of dealing in narcotics or im‘rlicnted in foreign intelligence
operations. The purpose of this second set of experiments was to col-
loct additional data on the utility of LSD in field interrogations, and
to evaluate any different effects the drug might have on “(rientals.”

———————————

= Jnspector General of the Army Report, “'se of Volunteers in Chemical Agent
Research,” 3710776, . 138
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. .

"oy
. 1

"

e



93
413

£. Inadeguate Coordination Among Intelligence Agencies -

On October 15, 1959, the U.S. Army Intelligence Center Erepered
lengthy staff study an Material Testing Program EA 1729. The stated

ur of the stafl study was: “to determine the desirability of EA
1729 on non-US subjects In selected actual operations under controlled
conditions.’* It was on the basis of this study that operational field
tests wers later conducted.

A fter noting that the Chemical Warfare Laboratories began experi-
ments with LSD on humans in 1955 and had administere%‘:he rug
to over 1,000 volunteers, the “background” section of the study
concluded :

‘I'here has not been a single case of residual ill effect. Study
of the prolific scientific literature on LSD-25 and personal

communication between US Army Chemical Corpe g_erson—
nel and other researchers in this field have failed to discloss
an authenticated instance of irreversible change being pro-
duced in normal humans by the drug.*** !

This conclusion was reached despite an awareness that there were
inherent medical dangers in such experimentation. In the body of this
same study it is noted that:

The view has been expressed that EA 1729 is a potentially
dangerous drug, whose pharmaceutical actions are not fully
understood and thers has been cited the possibility of the
continuanze of & chemically induced psychosis in chronic
form, particularly if a latent schizophrenic were a subject,
with consequent claim or representation agsinst the US.
Government.1* ‘

An attempt was made to minimize potential medical hazards by care-
ful selection of subjects prior to field tests. Rejecting evidence that
the drug might be hazardous, the study continued:

The claim of possible permanent damage cavsed by EA 1729

is an unproven hypothesis based cn the characteristic effect

of the material. While the added stress of s real situation

may increase the probability of permanent adverse ‘effect,

the resulting risk is deemed to be slight by the medical ve-

search personnel of the Chemical Warfare Laboratories. To

prevent even such a slight risk, the proposed plan for field

experimentation calls for overt, if possible, or contrived-
through-ruse, if necessary, physical and mental examinstion

of any real situation subject prior to employment of the
subject.2®*

This conclusion was drawn six yesrs after one death had occurred
which conld be attributed, at least in part, to ‘the effects of the
very drnig the Army was proposing to field test. The USATINTC stafl,
however. was apparentlv nnaware of the circumstances surround-
ing' Pr. Olson’s death. This lack of knowledge is indicative of the

= URAINTC staff study. “Material Testing Program FA 1729. 10/15/%, p. 4.
nid.p 4 -~

™ Ivid. p. 28.

“Ivd.
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general lack of interngency communication on drug related research.
As the October 1939 stndy noted, “there has been no coorclination
with otlier intelligence agencies vp to the present.” 1%

On December 7, 1959, the Army Assistant Chief of Staff for Intelli-
N mence (ACSI, apparently a General Willems) was briefed on the

proposed aperational usc of I.SD by USAINTC Project Officer Jacob-
son, in prepamtion for Project THIRD CHANCE. General Willems
expresse« concern that the project had not been coordinated with the
FBI and the CTA. He is quoted as saying “that if this project is going
to bhe worth anything it [LSD? should be used on higher types of
non-1-.S. snbjects” in other words “staffers.” He indicated this could
be accomplished if the CIA were brought in. The summary of the
- bricfAng prepared by o Major Mehovsky continues: “Of particular note
is that .ACSI did not. direct coortlination with CIA snd the FBI but

13

- ——m;ly_nmninuedmmdgmipn_b)jl& planners.” '**
After the briefing. four colonels, two lieutenant colonels and Major
Mehovsky met to discuss interagency cooperation with CTA and FBI.
The group consensus was to postpone efforts toward coordination:

It. Col. Jacobson commented that before we coordinate with
CT.\ we shonld have more factunl findings from field experi-
mentation with counterintelligence cases that will strengthen
our position and proposal for cooperation. This approach
was agreed to by the conferzes.'®

Had such coordination beelgi schicved, the safety of these experiments
might have been viewed differently and the tests themselves might
have been seen as unnecessary.

3. Suboilination of Individual Rights to National Security Consid-
eralions
Just as many of these experiments may have been unnecessary, the
nature of the opciutional tests (polygraph-assisted interrogations of
drugged 'suspects) reflects a basie disregard for the fundamental
human rights of the subjects. The intcrrogation of an American
soldier as part of the TIIIRD) CHANCE 1961 tests is an example of
this disregard. :
The “trip- report? for Project THIRD CHAXNCE, dated Septem-
; ber 6, 1961, recoynts the circunstances surrounding and the resuits of
A 136 | the tests as follows:
€ = ==%  [The subject] wus a U.S. soldier who had confessed to theft
of classified documents. Conventional methods had failed to
ascertnin whether espionage intent was involved. A. significant
new ndmission by subject that he told a fellow soldier of the
theft while he still had the documents in his possession was
obtained durirg the EA 1729 interrogation along with other
varistions of Subjcct’s previous account. The interrogution
" results were deemed by the Joeal operational authority satis-
* factory evidence of Sibject’s claim of innocence in regurd to
espionage intent.'*

.\ » roid.. p 6
. w y\fehovrky hﬁt Sheet, 12/9/80, p. 1.

" rdid.. p- >
= spT Trip Report, Operation THIRD CHANCE, 9/6/€1, p. 8.

~
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The subject apparently reacted very stron.gl to the drug, and the
interro edt.lon, while productive, was difficult. The trip report
concluded: -

(1) This case demonsirated the ability to interrogate a
subject profitably throughout a highly sustained and almost
incspacitating reaction to EA 1729.

(2) The apparent value of bringing a subject into the EA
1729 situation in a highly stressed state was indicated.

(3) The usefulness of employing as a duress factor the de-
vice of inviting the subject’s attention to his EA 1729-
influenced stste and threatening to extend this state in-
definitely even to a permanent condition of msdnity, or to
bring it to an end at the discretion of the interrogators was

shown to be eflective.

(4) The need for preplanned precautions agsinst extreme
paranoiac reaction tc EA 1729 was indicated.

(3) It was brought to attention by this case that where sub-
ject undergone extended intensive interrogation prior to

" the EA 1729 episode and has persisted in a version repeatedly

during conventional interrogation, adherence to the same ver-
sion while under EA 1729 influence, however axtreme the reac-
tion, may not necessarily be evidence of truth but merely the
ability toadhere toa rehearsed story.}»

This strong reaction to the drug and the accompanying discomfort
this individual suffered were exploited by the use of traditional inter-
rogation techniques. While there is no evidence that physical violence
or torture were employed in connection with this interrogation, physi-
cal and psychological techniques were used in the THIRD C CE -
experiments to exploit the su I]:cots' sltered mental state, and to maxi-
mize the stress situation. Jacobson described these methods in his trip
report:

Stressing’ techniques employed included silent treatment be-
fore or after EA 1729 uﬂministrntion, sustained conventional
interrogation prior to EA 1729 interrogation, deprivation of
food, drink, s ee& or bodily evacuation, sustained. isolation
prior to EA 1729 administration, hot-cold switches in ap-
proach, duress “pitches”, verbal degradation and bodily dis-
gﬁ{g&’l or dramatized thrests to subject’s life or piental

Another gross violation of an individual’s fundamental rights oc-
curred in SeEtember 1962 as part of the Army’s DERBY HAYT tests

in the Far East. A suspected Asian ionn.ﬁu agent was given €
.micrograms of I.SD per kilogram of bo?})weig t. 'I%enndminig tion
of the drug was completed at 10335 that morning:

At 1120, s]'wenéing became evident, hil-’i' p{:else became thready.

He was placed in a supine position. He began groaning wi

expiration and became semipc:natose.“’

" ryid., pp. 17-18. ,
mnid., p 18 .
Ww«DERBY HAT” Medical and Pharmacological Report: Case #1, 9/20/62

p. D10-2,
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For the next 28 minutes, the si:bject remained semicomatose.

At 1148, responses to painful stimuli were slightly improved..
. At 1155, he was helped to a sitting position. - .
At 1200, he became shocky ngein and was returned to supine
ition. T
At 1212, he was more alert and able tosit up with help.
At 1220, Subject was assisted to the interrogation table.
At 1230, he began moaning he wanted to die and usuaily
ignored questions. Rarely he stated “he didn’t know.”
At 1250, his phasic slertness persisted. He frequentl{‘ re-
__ focused his eyes with eyelid assistance. He frequently threw
"7 """ his head back witheyesclosed.” = -
At 1330, he was sliﬁht ly more alert. He was forced-walked for

L]

M

5-minutes—He physically-would-ceoperate-until he became.
.  shocky again (sweating, thready pulse, pale).**

For the next three hours the subject remained in about the same con-
dition. Continued attempts at .interrogation yielded no relevant
answers. Six hours after. receivig the drug, the subject began giving
relevant answers to questions. Eight and one-half hours after the
initinl dosnge, the subject was Eolygraphed. The interrogation con-
tinued for seventeen and one-half hours after the drug was ad-
ministered. :

There was some psychological and medical screening of the in-
dividnals tested within the United States, in FEurope, and in
Asia. The proposal for the field experimentation in fact called for
such examinations. The fact of prescreening did not eliminate the

risk of injury; the availability of medical staff :did. however, limit

injury and may well have prevented the death of one or more of the
snbjects. As the medical corps member of the team which surre?&;
tiously administered the L.SD noted, “one subject . . . did collapse aft:

the interrogation and the presence of the medical officer was not only
of value to the subject but to the interrogation team who were thus

_assured that an unnecessary untoward resuit would not occur.” 13

In the October 15, 1959, USAINTC staff study, moral and legal
rnmi'f‘i’car:ig.ns of covert administration of I.SD in field conditions were
conside

Tt was always a tenet of Army Intelligence that the basic
American principle of the dignity and welfare of the in-
dividual will not be violated. . . . A more meticulous regard
for the prohibition agninst violence or duress is taken n
practice when the suspect is a US citizen or ally as against -
an actual or potential cnemy, in peace as against war, and in
respect to the nature of the crime. ... In intelligence, the
stnkes involved pnd the interests of national security may
l[;mnit. a niore tolerant interpretation of moral-ethical values,
ut not legal limits, through necessity. ... . Any claim

w 1374, p. D10-S. _
W aPT Trip Report, Operation THIRD CHANCE, 7/725/81. p. 1.

L R

pamay M rv‘-q

'F_-""oﬂ [ | LN '-n--.q



97

- . 417 ,
against the US Government for alleged injury due to EA
1729 must be legally shown to have been due to the material. .
Proper security and appropriate operational techniques
can protect the fact of employment of EA 1729.1

On the basis of this evaluation, the sttdy concluded thst in view of
“the stakes involved and the interests of national security,” the pro-
posed plan for field testing should be arproved. . ) o

The surreptitious administration of drugs to unwitting subjects by
the Army raises serious constitutional and ef‘] issnes. The considera-
tion given these issues by the Army was wholly insufficient. The char-
acter of the Army’s volunteer testing p m and the possibility that
drugs ‘yere simply substituted for other ?orms of violence or duress in

Ya

field hirterrozationsraises—serio _schether national ge-
curity imperatives were properly interpreted. The “consent” forms
which each American volunteer signed prior to the administration of
LSD are a case in point. These.forms contained no mention of the
medical and psychological risks inherent in such testing, nor do they
mention the nature of the psychotrophic drug to be administered:

The general nature of the experiments in which I have
volunteered. have been explained to me from the standpoint
of pssible hazards to my health. /¢ is my understanding that
the cxperime:i: are so designed, based on the resuits of
anifals and previous human experimentation, that tAe entic-
ipated results will justify the performance of the ezperi-
ment. I understand further that experiments will be so con-
ducted as to avoid all unnecessa hysical and medieal
suffering and injury, and that / +rill de at liberty to request

. that the experiments be terminated at any time if in my opin-
ion T have reached the physical or mental state where con-
tinuation of the experiments becomes undesirable.

I recognize that in the pursuit of certain experiments
transitory discom fort may occur. I recognize. also, that under
these circumstances, / must rely upon the akill and wisdom
of the physician supervising ¢he experiment to institute what-
ever medical or surgicil measures arc indicated. [Emphasis
added.] 1

The exclusion of any specific discussion of the nature of ISD in
these forms raises serious doubts as to their validity. An “nnderstand-
ing . . . that the anticipated results will justify the performance of

‘the experiment” without full knowledge of the nature of the experi-

merit is sn incomplete “understanding.” Similarly, the nature of the
experiment limited the ability of both the subi‘eet to request its re-
quest its termination,and the experimenter to implement such a request.
Finally, the euphemistic characterization of “transitory discomfort”
and the agreement to “rely on the skill and wisdom of the physician”
combine to conceal inherent risks in the experimentation and may be
viewed as disolving the experimenter of nal responsibility for
damaging aftereffects. In summary, & “vo unteer” program in which
subjects are not fully informed of potential hazards to their persons
is “volunteer™ in name only.

™ URAINTC st ff study, “Muterial Testing Program EA 1729, 10/13/38, p. 26
= gy mple volunteer consent form.
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This problem was compounded by the security statements signed
by each volunteer before he participated in the testing. As part-of
this statement, potentisl subjects agreed that they would: |

.. . not divulge or make available any information related
to U.S. Army Inulhgxoe Center interest~or participation in
the Department of the Army Medical Research Volunteer
Program to any individual, nation, organization, busin
association, or other group or entity, not officially authori
to receive such information. e |

T understand that sny action contrary to the provisions of

. this statement will render me liable to punishment ander the
provisions of the. Uniform Code of Ml.ﬁu.ry Justice,!s

Under these provisions; s volunteer experiencing aftereffects of the test

might ha ble to-seek-i iate-m 1-assistance.

is disre for the well—beinﬁ of subjects drug testing is in-
excusable. Furiher, the absence of any comprehensive long-term
medica] assistance for the subjects of these experiments is not only
unscientific; it is also unprofessionsl. :
4 Lack of Normal Authorization and Supervision

It is apparent from documents supplied to the Committes that the
Army’s testing programs often operated under informal and ponrou-
tine sauthorization. Potentislly dangerous operations such as thess
testing programs are the very ijﬁ,m which ought to be subject to
the closest internal scrutiny at the highest levels of the military com-
mand structure. There are numerous examples of inadequate review,
partial consideration, and incomplete approval in the administration
of these programs. - '

When the first Army program to use LSD on American soldiers in
“field stations” was authonized in May 1955, the Army violated its

own procedures in obtaining approva .Under Army Chief of Staff -

Memorandum 385, such propossls were to be personally approved by
the Secretary of the Army. pJ{Ji“t‘houg-h the piaxl:e was submitted to him
on April 26, 1956, the Secretary issued no written authorization for
the project, and thers is no evidence that he either reviewed or ap-
proved the plan. Less than a month later, the Army Chief of Staff
Issued 8 memorandum suthorizing the tests.'**

Subsequent testing of LSD under Material Testing Program EA
1729 opersted generally under this authorization. When the ‘plans for
this testing were on&':ally discussed in em:{ 1958 by officials of the
Arm Intelllﬁen'ne ter at Fort Holabird and representatives of
the Chemical Warfare Center at Edgewood Arsenal, an informal pro-
»osal was formulsted. This proposal was submitted to the ical
}iesarch Directorate ot Edgewood by the President of the Army In-
telligence Board on June 3, 1938. There is no evidence that the plan
was approved at any Jevel higher than the President of the Intelli-
gence E_qard or the &nunnnding General of Edgewood. The spproval
at Edgewood appears to have been issued by the Commander's-Adju-
tant. 'El‘;e Medical Research Laboratories did not submit the plan to
the Surgeon General for approval (a standard procedure) because

» g ample Volunteer Security Statement, . /
» Inapector General of the Army Report, “Use of Volunteers in Chemical
Arent Reasnrrh ” X/10/76 n. 100, . :
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the new program was ostensibly ccvered by the suthorizations granted
in May 1956.:% o
The two projects involving the operational use of LSD (THIRD
CHANCE and DERBY HAT) were spparently spproved by the,
Army Assistant Chief of Stafl for Intelligence (General Willems) on
December 7, 1960.72 This verbal approval came in the course of &
briefing on previous drug programs and on the planned field experi-
mentation. There is no record of written appro being issued by the
ACSI to authorize these specific projects until January 1961, and
_there is no record of any specific knowledge or approvsl by the Secre-

tary of the Army.
n February 4,1963, Major General C. F. Leonsrd, Army ACSI,

Chief of Staff, General Earl Wheeler. VWheeler had spparently
requested & copy on February 2. Tha'regort was routed through a Gen-
cral Hamlett. While this report included backlg-round on the origins
of the LSD tests, it appears that General Wheeler may only have read
the conclusion snd recommendations.}** The office memorandum
accompanying the Trip Report bears Wheeler's initiala?® :

5. Termination of Testing

On April 10, 1963, a brie was held in the ACSI's office on the
results of Projects THIRD CHANCE and DERBY HAT, Both
SPT’s concluded that more field testing was required before LSD
could be -utilized as an integral aid to counterintelligence interroga-
tions. During the presentation of the DERBY HAT results, General
Leonard (Dep_u“CSI) directed thet no further ﬁeld'tmiﬁ:
undertaken.!® After this meeting the ACSI sent & letier to the .
manding General of the Army Combat Developments Command
(CDC) reg:;stmg that he review THIRD CE and DERBY
HAT and “make s net evaluation concerning the adoption of EA 1729
for future use as an effective and profitable sid in counterintelligence
interrogations.” "' On the same dsy the ACSI requested that the CDC
Commander revise regulation FM 30-17 to read in part:

cne ipnoinsh.ncewilldmgsbonsedumddtoinhm
gations in oountzﬁntelli%:a or security operations without
prior permission of the Department of the A?g. Requests
to use drugs as an investigative sid will be forwarded through
intellﬁmce channels to the OACSI, DA, for approval. ...

Medical research has established that information obtained
through the use of these d is unreliable and invalid. ...

It is considered that DA [Army] approval must be a pre-
requisite for use of such drugs because of the moral, legal,
medical and political problems inherent in their use for intel-

" ligence purposes.'®™

w yid.. pp. 138, 187, 138,

= yiehovaky Fact Sheet, 12/9/00.

= y\femorsndum from Leonard to Wheeler, 2/4/63.

: ?sg mmqnndm to Wheeler through Hamlett, 2/5/G
= y1a). F. Barnett, memorandum for the record, 8/12/63.

: }:‘:ukl memorandum for the record, 7/16/63.. ’
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The subsequent adoption of this ation marked the effective ter-
mination of feld testing of LSD by the Army. '

The official termination date of these testing programs is rather
unclear, but a later ACSI memo jndicates that it may have occurred
in September of 1963. On the 18th of that month a meeting was held
between Dr. Van Sims (Edgewood Arsenal), Major Clonis (Chemi-
cal Research Laboratory), and - ACSI representatives (General
Deholm and Colonel Schmidt). “As a result of this confeience a deter-
mination was made to suspend the program and any further activity
pending & more profitsble and suitable use.” 14

D. CooxcRATION AND COMPETITION AMONG THE InteLLIGENCE Co-
MUNITY AGENCIES AND BrrwrezN Tuese AcENxcIEs AND OTHER
. IxpIviDUALS AND INSTITUTIONS )

v

1. Relationships Among Agericies Within the Intelligence Community
Relationships among inteiligence communfitf agencies in this ares
varied considerably over time, ranging from full cooperation to intense

and wasteful competition. The early period was marked by a high-

degree of cooperation among the agencies of the intelligence commu-
nity. Although the military dominated research involving chemical
and biological agents, the information developed was shared svith the
FBI and the CIA. But the spirit of cooperation did not continue. The

failure by the military to share information apparently breached the

spirit, if not the letter, of commands from above.

As noted above, the Army Assistant Chief of Staff for Intelligence
was briefed on the mposedy dperational testing of LSD under Project
THIRD CHANCE, and expressed concern that the project had not
been coordinated with FBI and CIA. Despite this request, no coordi-
nation was achieved between the Army and either of these agencies.

Had such cooperation been forthcoming, this project may have been

evaluated ino differentlight. -

The competition between the agencies in this area reached bizarre
Jevels. A military officer told 8 CLA representative in confidence about
the military’s field testing of LSD in Europe under Project THIRD
CHANCE, and the CIA promptly attempted to learn surreptitiously
the nature and extent of the program. At roughly the same time Mr.

. Helms argued to the DDCI that the unwitting testing program should

be continued, a8 it contributed'to the CIA’s capability in the area and
thus allowed the CTA “to restrain others in the intelligence communi
(such as the Deg;rtment of Defense) from pursuing o&)entions.-’ 3

The MEKNAOMI progrnm. was nlso marked by a failure to share
information. The Army Bpecial Forces (the principal customer of the
Special Operations. Division at Fort Dietrick) and the CIA rather
than atfempting to coordinate their efforts promulgated different re-
quirements which varied only slightly. This apparently resulted in
some duplication of effort. In order to insure the security of CIA
operations, the Agency would request materials from SOI) for opera-
tional nse without fully or accurately describing the operational

uirements. This resulted in limitations on SOD’s ability to assist
the CIA.

. Undated ASCI memorandum, p. 2.
= \{emorandum from the DDP to the DCI, 11/9/64, p. 2.
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9. Relationships Between the Intelligence Communily dgencies and
Foreign Ligison Services .

The subjects of thie CIA’s operational testing of cheinical and bio-
logical agents abroad were generally being held for interrogation by
foreign intelligence or security organizations. Although in ormation
about the use of drugs was generally withheld fromn these organiza-
tions, cooperation with thein necessarily jeopardized the securit of
CI.\ interest in these materials. Cooperation also placed the American
Government in s position of complicity in actions which violated the
rights of the-subjects, and which may have violated the laws of the
country in which the experiments took place.

_Cooperation between the intelligence agencies and o:-ﬁnnizations in
foreign countries was not limited to re]ntionshi%gfith e intelligence
or internal security organizations. Some MKULTRA research was
conducted sbroad. While this is, in itself, not s questionable practice,
it is important that such research abroad not be undertaken to evade
American Jaws. That this was a ibility is suggested by an ARTI-
CHOXKE inemorandum in which it is noted that working with the
scientists of a foreign country “might be very advantageous™ since
that govermnent “permitted certain sctivities which were not per-
nut;,eg I’Jy the United States government (i.e., experimeits on anthrazx,
etc.).”

3. The Relationahips Between the Intelligence Community Agencies
and Other Agencies of the US. Government : -

Certain U.S. government agencies actively assisted the efforts of
intelligence agencies in this area. One form of assistance was to pro-
vide “cover” for research contracts let by intelligence agencies, in
order to’ disguise intelligence community interest in chemical and
Liological agents. _ ]

Other forms of assistance raise more serious questions. Although
the CI.\’s ptx:;f'ect involving the surreptitious administration of Léi)
was conducted by Bureau of Narcotics persoiinel, there was no open
connection between the Buresu personnel snd the ncy. The Bureau
was serving as s “cut-out” in order to make it difficult to trace Agency.
participation. The cut-out arm%_ln;:n_t., however, reduced the CL\'s

- ability to control the program. Agency could not control the
process by which subjects were selected and cultivated, and could not
regulate follow-up after the testing. Moreover, as the CIA's Insnector
General noted : “the handling of test subjects in the last analysis rests
with the [Bureau of Nsrooulma.gent working alone. Suppression of

* knowledge-of criticsl results from the iop CIA management is an

inherent ¥isk in these operations."'” The arrangement also made it
irmpossible for the Agency to be certain that the decision to end the
surreptitious #dministration of LSD would be honored by the Bureaun

The srrangement with the Burean of Narcotics was described as

“informsL:” ** The informality of the arrangement com unded the

problem is-aggravated by the fact that the 40 Committee had vir-

——————— - - .

@ ARTICAOKE Memorandum, 6/13/02
= 1G Report on MRKULTRA. 1963, p. 14.

= Jpie. This was taken by one Agency official to mesn that there would be no
written contract and no formal mechanism for paymeént. (Elder, 12/18/78, p. 31.)
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apparent unwillingness on the part of the Bureau's leadership to ask
for details, and the CIA’s hesitation in volunteering information.
These problems raise serious questions of command and control within

the Bureau.

4 Relationships Between the Intelligence Community Agencies and
Other Inatitutions and Individuals, Public and Private

‘The Inspector. Genersl’s 1963. Survey of MEKULTRA noted
that “the research and development” phase was conducted through
standing arrangements with “s inlists in universities, pharmaceu-

-- ticsl-houses; hospitals, state ederal institntions, and private re-

search organizations” ‘n a manner which concealed “from the institu-

and development phase was succee 8

sicians, toxicologists, and other sgecia]ists in
neral hos itals and prisons, who

tion-t of the CIA.” Only s few “key individuals” in each
institution were “made witting o geg sponsorship.” The research
e

phase involving “phy-
mental, narcotics, and

are provided the products and

dings of the basic research projects and proceed with intensive test-

ing on human subjects.” 3¢

According to the Inspector General, the MEKULTRA testing pro-
ms were “conducted under nccepted scientific procedures . . .
where health permits, test subjects are voluntary participants in the
programs.” :3* This was clearly not true in the project involving the
surreptitious administration of LSD, which was marked by a com-

plete lack of screening, medical supervision, op
medical or psychological follow-

portunity to observe. or

up.
The intelligehce ngencies nlloweg individual researchers to design
their project. Experiments sponsored by these researchers (which in-

cluded one where narcotics addicts were sent to Lexington, Kentucky,
who were rewarded with the drug of their addiction in return_ for
participation in experiments with 1.SD) call into question the deci-
sion by the agencies not tb fix guidelines for the experiments. _

The MKULTRA research and development program raises other
questions, as well. It is not clear whether individuals in prisons, mental,

narcotics and general hospitals can, provide

#informed consent™ to

articipation in experiments such nsthese. There is doubt as to whether
institutions should be unwitting nf the ultimate sponsor of reses

being done in their facilities, The nature of

the arrangements also

made it impossible for the individuals who were not aware of the

sponsor of the research to exercise any chaice about their participa-

tion based on the sponsoring organization.

Although greater precautions are now being taken in research con-
ducted on behalf of the intelligence community agencies, the dilemma
of classification remains. These agencies obvionsly wisbed to conceal
their interest in certain forms of research in order to avoid stimulating
interest in the same areas by hostile governments. Tn some cases today

contractors or researchers wish tn conceal their, connection with these.

agencies. Yet the fact of classification preven
debate upon which scholarly work depends.

B 1hid. p- 9. /
= nid.p 10.

ts open discussion and

e
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APPENDIX B

DOCUMENTS REFERRING TO DISCOVERY OF ADDI-

" HENORANDUM FOR:
- 7"“00 koo : 'l?_evut.r D:l-rcctpi; fo; ..’;c_i'c_ncg__ and Technology

TIONAL MKULTRA MATERIAL
| 22 June 2977

‘¢

I Lt me meh e e L Sean e

B R . I P NS ] et TP, T8
M . e el e TR .

'ngqﬁ;_?@rcciof'of Ceh;f§§_lnt¢1i18;ﬂﬂﬁ {,

s [ e I R A I S T Y T

r o AT T e W
H - . - -

P e Y 4

SUBJECT -Vﬁ_fn'ﬂﬁtﬁt'fo}'Gnida;ct;gﬁ‘ﬁiﬁaling - ‘
o . Recently Located MKULTRA Material '~ -~
S . - '

-

-1, (U/AfUO) This n;aoranana.islés ;dvise you that

" sdditional MKULTRA documents have been discovered and to

obtain your approval for follow-on actions required.
Paragraph 7 contasins a reconmended course of actionm.

» 2. (U/AIU0} As a result of John Marks FOIA re- -
quest (F-76-374), 21l of the MEULTRA material in OTS
essession vas revieved for possible release to him.
-Pollowing that review, the OTS caterial in the Retired .
Records Center vas searched. It was during that latter
search that the subproject files were 'located among the.
retired records of the OTS Budget and Fiscal Sectium. ..
These files vere not discovered earlier as the earlier
searches vere linited to the examination of the_active
and retired records of those branches considered most :

'-likcly to have generated or have had sccess tp MRULTRA -

documents. Those branches incloded: Chémistry,. .
Biological, Pehavioral Activities, snd Contracts Haal{ -
ment. Because Dr. Gottlieb retrieved and destroyed all
‘the MKULTRA docurents he was sble to locate, it is mot .
surprising that the earlier search for MKULTRA documents,
directed at aress wvhere they vere most likelyr to be found,
was unluccessful, The z:rposc of establishing the MEULTIRA
mechanisn was to limit knowledge of the sensitive work .
being perforned to those vith an absolute negd to know, -
1f those precepts had been followed, the Tecently found .
BLF files should have ‘contsined-only financial and
adainistrative docunents. (!n retrospect, ] realize that

°"":':£’$
- N R 1 K.y

.
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;2JT27T:  Request for Guidance on Bandling Recenily .
Locazed MRULTRA Hazerial : S -

(R4 - )
bl o«
- . . . .. s L S

a.serious error vas made in net having BAF files anl cther
seezingly innocuous files searched eatlier.) Az It Eagpe=z.
post of tit“individual subpreject folders contals yrziess
.proposals and Bezoranda for ‘the record, which iz varpisg
:degrees, five a Teasonably cocplete pisture of the xvexues

“of rese2rsh funded through NEULTRA. For yeur Zzfsimsslza,.

the origizal mecorandum seszing vz MRULTRA, 3igzel b7
Nr. Dulles, .is also sdong these dosusenzs. A €357 37 33
pecorandiuz is aitached. : R ) .

1 -

3. fUSAIUO) At this wrisziag, it dees mod azyeald

o thas_thece is anysking i3 thoese maxdy lecsazed Files ch3t

would imZizase thne MIULTRN astivities vere nore #XT20 ive
or poré cintToversial than iadizatel by the Sezize Fplest
(Caurcx}: Cozsitice Repors, IS anwrdiangs the vevevser is
trus, $.€., Sost of the pearly 2TY FuspTOlEStE 354 Shosc
Thus, the overview of MEUITIA ix essentially uasiazced.
wizh ¥ve c::eg:io:u. the preseat fiad fills in some 38 She

s . .

_eissing desal

TCRoTL? v . .
a kmocksu: 2 vZich was comco=itanz witk,.anf 3 *=-prelus
of. camcer research at 3 major uziversity. It fa tilleved

tha: an o3fective reading of that project »ould Zerzzstrate
the sc273h for Ihotkout Eaterials aznd apesthetice wese I
cozpatitie aztivities. However, the resgarch prposal .
staced tE3: "chezizal apents...will be sutjectel =z sléaize:
screening...on advanced cancer patiexts™. L :

4. I3/AI) One of tarse excepiions i SsrpToiest
Yusmbey 43 which cosserms an activity thay shoull st Seon
d carlier. That project deals witk the seasslh fer
Tep

. —— o b

§. ‘€1 Subnreject Nucber 33 contzins full Ze:ails i
of CTA's zoztribuzion of $373,000 te tke :

; Tea—® Building Fund. The Azeacy was thes

involved in &rup Teacarch nrogracs. cany . of whis: weTe
beiag coendusied by B S — s, whose faziiizles
vere inadtquate. In order to facilitate the eageis; .
rescarsh Pregrazs, it-was decided 16 espedite tae »zi120Rg
pregra= '¥ centributing te $t chrouzh 3 mechaalsm TZut was
also bein: used to fund somc® of -the rescagch prafests..

. - .
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su.f..l.r;CT: chucs-: for Cuidance on Mandling Recently
::zzcd.‘:-lJ:ULTP..»\ Material . )

.The ceatriduiicn couisd be controversial in.that it wvas
made threusl 3 seckaaise paking it appear to be 3 privage -
donatien. Frivize donations qualified for, and :

7eseived, sn equal anount of Federal matching
fundsS. o~ iecsier Iroz the Office of Ceacral Counsel dated
- 31 February 133 attesting to the legality of this funding

. 4s in the Zile. . s IO

TR, ¥ -0 SN ' . - - - .

o 6. (T AIED)  The Lepislative Coonscl has been -,
rade swave ¢ tie éxistence of these additfenal MXULTRA
documents viick are still under reviev and sanitization.

sdrise Xr. Navis ¢f the existence of these files shortly,
snd To dellver 'tie releasable material te¢ his attormers

- by 31 Juir. A detzer from the Inforzaticn and Privacy.
Staff to X7, MaSka* sttorneys inforzing ‘thea of the.
existence &I tkisrcaterial is in the cocriination process
and is scisliuiel to be nailed on 21 June. .

. s [FAIVOY There are now zwo-actions that should
be takea: . - ‘ : . . -
. N .

Q. ' . * ‘.
p . &.. T2leasc appropriaiely s3aizized material to
z Mr. Xzris® 3itotners as reguired by FOlA litigation.
_ k., Izfcrn the Senate.Select Committee of the
. -exisisaze.c the recently located recerds prior to
iafer=izn; Nr. Marks' atztornsys. ) -

S is Tecc=—ended that rou approve of both of these actions.

8. (U/AIUC) 1f sdditional details om the contents

of this materi=l are desired;, the OIS officers most faziliar |

.witl;.it are prepared to brief you at your convenicnce.

T '-'.._‘._ _ED:,,_;:'S,(}) i ‘. . .

LoV E e T e Davrid S. 'l_randweln -
" - e Director .- .- -
o : 0f{ficc of Toechnical Serviee

N e * st

. The MARZS zase is in lizipation -ané we are connitsed to o
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The Dirtxaor of Contral inteliigence
Wnhagen. D C J0K8

The Honorable Daniel K. Inouye, Chafrman

Select Committee on Intelligence

United States Senate : _ T - _
Washington, D.C. 20510 '

T puring the course of 1975 when the Senate Committee, chatred
by Senator Church, was investigating intelligence activities, the

CIA was—asked—to-produce documentation on A program of experimentation

with the effect of drugs. Undér this project conducted from 1553

searching for such documentation, reported that most of the documents
, on this matter have been destroyed. I find 1t wmy duty to report
to you now that our continuing search for drig related, as well as -
other documents, his uncovered certain papers which bear on this
motter. Let me hasten to add that I am persuaded that there was no
previous attespt to conceal this mtarial in the original 197%
 exploration>” The material recently discoversd was in the retired
_archives filed under fiusncial accounts and only uncovered by using
extraordinary and extensfve search efforts. In this comnection,
incidentally, 1 have personally commended the esployee whose diligence

produced this find. '

Because the new material now on hand 1s primarily of a financial
pature, 1t does not present a complets picture of the field of drug
experimentation sctivity but it does provide zore detall than was
previously available to us. For exasple, the following types of.
activities were undertaken:. :

a. Possible additional cases of drugs being tested On
American citizens, without their knowledoe. .

b. Research was undertaken on _surreptitious methods of
administering drugs. ‘

c. Some of the persohs- chosen for experl-ennt'l.nn were
drug addicts or alcoholics. .

: d. Research into the development of & knockout or “K"

i drug was perforeed in conjunction with being done to .
develop pain killers for advanced cancer patients, and tests
on such patients were carried out.
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e. There is a possibility of an 'lmroper payment to a
private {nstitution.

The drug related activities descrided in this nu!y Tocated material .
began almost 25 years ago. 1 assure you they were discontinued over
10 years ago and da not take place today. ]

In teeping with the President's comxitment to disclose any errors
of the Inteiligence Community which are uncovered, I would 1ike to
volunteer to testify before your Committee on the full details of this
wnfortunate series of events. 1 am in the process of reading the
fairly voluninous mterial involved and do want to be certain that
1 have a conplete picture when I talk with the Committes. 1 will be

scheduled at tho earliest opportunity.

1 regret havid to bring this issve to your attention, but I lmou
that f¢ 15 essentiy] to your oversight procedun:s that you be kept fully
fnformed in a tinely manner..

Yours sincere

2

STANSFIELD TURNER
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APPENDIX C
DOCUMENTS REFERRING TO SUBPROJECTS
DUTT - -
e K0T =000 o 1 iy 1953

‘ i A -
T | STREE | Project MILTU, Subpreject 2 -
v R ' . o
- . ' &TM"““"““““"‘.,%-——?—-;

. ‘Services as & contact and ewt-out for prujects ia the
NEIILTRA 1034, primarily those Jocsted in thodiNNNRNEEN —C.
[ N " T

mmui_umeml ol — T
&. .m-utpammmmdmﬂm
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A. The total cost of this pruject 1s wot to oxesd $4,650.00°
for a pericd of ems Jear. A . .
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Objective: To study the possible synergistic sction of Grﬂll

viich =y be sppropriate for uss in lbou.nun‘ conscicosness,

-

Situtica: Thare {s resscu to Delisve tit two ar sare drugs,
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ObJect 1n. hmmarmmuudw
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Method: A survey of methods which have bess msed by crimisala
for surreptitious sixinistration of drugs, Amlysis of the

prychodynanics of situaticas of this mature,
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MDCRAXDUM FOR TER RECCRD
STRIZCY: _Projeat MXILTRA, Subproject 15

1.. Sudproject 16 is & cowtizmuation of ‘Subproject 3, vhich .

euus-lmtln_naatthﬂnﬂ.tﬂ_n- -

2. Sdproject § yas originally intenisd to Jrovida funds for the
mintemance of the facilitias for ons yuar; Dut it tmns oot tiat the
costs -of altaretiona, equ’smsnt, and initial suppliss ware woder-
sstimated 1D Scdproject 3; bence the mecessity to establish Subproject

l‘“mu-c p - -

3. Bubprojest 16 w111 be contocted tyugRIERNNERR, o €

VllEmE Certain support activitiss will de Jrovided &y CD/T38
st AFD/TSS. . . .
L. The estimated cost for a period of coe year is §7,700.00.

o .

Origtml Only, B
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I.."h!s'capc’tthupojutuﬂ' encampass all
thoss sctivitiss Dov engnged 12 the .n
e

T T

in 1ts o

LD : ;
:mmmmctmmwmcr:umummmugn-
Jmsﬁtalmmutm;mﬂlutu . '

2. e sttacted yioposal frecm Dr. SRR Tor i cotas the
axtest Of the iavestigoticos that his facilitiss will allor hia to

to io pessgroph 1, as well oa certals other mnteria 1t
’ alse serves as & swoeral ecmsultant to this

ca/rs3.” pr.
deTisiom = 3 covar 2nd cutecut facilities to the AjenIl.

3. Lhw&:mﬁm,wamtwaar.dcmmrm?
pe: exceed $42,700.00. Q.
b, Dr. been Iravted a Top Secret Clearcrce W

ma;-u:vme:-m::c:pbh«;nueeusmmmw#m
gorerc=ant's intermst in swuch matters as thias. : :

-
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STAICT: . muﬁwﬂwa.ma-nm

. L@
1. mu%mnmnmmemm“

taken by DV NIPMEER st the directicn of TSS/CD wnder Sudprojest 23,

Project MXULTIA, the $A2,700.00 mm origimlly cbligated for this wark
19 ipsufZiciest t0 eovar the year's ecets. It is therefore yroposed to

add $15,006.00 to that already cbligated wndar this Babproject.

¥

2. EMMQNIWSChWSMW
to 28 JeouaTy 1955 will thus smomt to $357,700.00.

- umummumwmmm-c
3 af two wev scuroes -of blologically

the dywelommant snd partial finsnning
active compounds of irtarest in the progras TSE/CD is_sarrying out.

Chemical Divisiom, 788 _
mmn CRLICATION '

T Aﬁ

Date: ﬁu‘i L s

ond.nl- Caly. .
© &

| -)15.--
YRRy )

APV R .JL....-..::..—-?
‘......1.4.1‘-1-— ;,uﬂ-—:—--u;
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_ ' " 25 August 1955
MEMCRANDUM FOB: TN RECCRD o
et R ~ authorizatica for Pageent of Certain Bxpenses Under
7% Project MEULTRA, Submroject 23 2 5

M - . - T e .

2. In view - of these circuwtznces the project engineer, vith
verbal approvel from his M,mm.mmumm
boc-piuhw#um.pnm suffering from incursbla cancsr
rumrlﬂhnﬂmthmnudm-oeh-lmm
their terminal illnesses. The total fiunds expendsd in this fashiem
ancxmted t0 $658.05 and full velus was received. i :

3. Tt 1s requested that the Chier, TS8 uuuum inoviedge
and cmcﬂ-}nf this particular expenditure for sudit parposes. )

- -
H .

Dk-,ud!
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’ © 21 Decesder 1954

MEACRANI FOR:  Director of Cestral Imtelligence
SUBJECT 1 Project MXWAMA, Subproject 35 _

o 1. ¥hils the Director’s statutory autho:;i‘.y %o expend funds
for confidential purposes 13 not limited by low, Ve believe that

.mummnwu.mhwﬂAmcdmﬁtm the
s iz made

- Cocgress—in-granting-tha
of producirg socathing of valus to this

<€3ta: Je=s 1977 S

for the express yurpose
chunnutcthmiuboobuuedmthmunm-

able expectation that ths valis may be received, the gift may in
effect be at expenditure for wroper officisl pcrposes, )

2. In Subproject 35, it is stated thas. the.domaticn in ..
question vould achieve cerzain ends desired by 55+ There seeds
ts be mo question that those ends would be advantageous, so the
pain questicns sppear to be whethar thay could not be attained
by wore direct, norzal metbods,'end, if pot, vhether the retwra
43 pecessaTy apd resscnable in relaticn to the donation.

3. We ere in po position to Teview the requirezests of T=S
or to appcnise the advontages that would result from this preoject.
We do DOt coment, therefors, on ths value Teceived it the
project recults in the denefits foresesn. Ve feel v should
corment on factors affecticg the probabdbility of schieving those
enis. Ib & legal sense, thare 1is little or po coatrol. - Once
the furds are dovated, tbe individual, his foundation, o the
bospital could conceivably refuse to work for us or sllov us the
use of the facilitlies. -

h. Practically, the cootrol seeus to be established as wvell
as circumstances peroit, Certainly, as long ss the individual 1s
mnaﬂmhhmsmpdtm,nhnmmﬁm
h13 cooplete cocperation i the future as iz the past, unless
throushmncturmltotmmhummm. Zven in the
cvent of his desth ¢r incajacity, there sppears to be & reascnable

Dawazraded te: Sovrirptidy:
b matSerity of: 167478 -
i - -

=2 LGRET; €3 57 197478

Copy # 1 of 1 copy

i td



)

121

enence 4L .CORLIZULrR whe TTOeet. I2 these Frobetilitles sppenr
surficfeas T9 chtain s sdoquate retiuwn for the cxperdlture, there
ezn be 5o Jegal oblection to thi8 aspeet oF the pruject,

5. It should be moted that there aré tvo ¢ircunstances vhich
require consideration in a fipal deteraination. As stated in
sSection V, owr contribution, by appearing to be from & privete
source, would increase the matching Coverr—ent consritution by &
sisilar omount wbich would not be the case 1L it vere nova that
thiz vas 1o fzct a Coverm=snt eontridutica also. Secondly, it i3
the stated Tolicy of the bBospital to charge the Covernmens and
comereial orgunizations 80 per cent overhezd on research conifacts,
vhereas penprofit foundsticns pay only direct costs but 2o ovarhead.
Decause of thz Ostessidble source, owr poojects will pot be charged y
cverhesd. _This conld be conssrued ws mbrally vreagful o the
bospital, &8 DOTRAlly we vould ray the 80 par cent overbead
charge for yoojects perfurmed Girectly for us, dut I delicve

this can be 0f73e%, 8t lesst to the azount' of owr donatics, end
perhaps by the further a=suat by vhich tte other GovesT=ent coptri-
dbutions ars incressed by owr dera + In any easa, if tha
proiect 33 & Proper ose anod cust be pretored in tals mazzer,
security dictates thest circistences and they, therefoTe, ¢

pot preseat a legal obstiacle ss such,

6. Ve rasised the oussticn vhetber 2:nis for the hospital
construction could not be cbteined from otber zor=al charitabls
scurces. It opprered that there vas & STSOLG posalililily shat
the individual cormcerned could raiss adsqueta funds frea private
resources, but it vas the positicn of TS5 that if this vare the
cese e would not obtaln the-commitaent from the individual and
the degres of control vhich this gro is desizred to sYe.

S vmpraded t0: (e
* o eemasitT off 1BTITS .,
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. B april 1955 o ]
> . _
yDoweND FOR:  Chief, DD/p/TSS . ; .
SBJECT - - 3. Amend=ent to Subjrdject 35 of Project ITIZA
. . L ]
Ws have poted yoer mezcrnodu= of 6 April 1955 to the

Directsr Toiussting en increase cf ¢2§0,9‘:0 for the T3S
D hudzet for this Frojeet. Thls request ddes pot offect
= 4p say wey the ccoments in @y uwemcrandue of 21 Diceler 1954, .

=
At o e ...\.
w = ez e . Ay - <L

-

- Doengraded to: Linaiiiithhbens
by guthority ef: 187478
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A po-ticn of ths Rossarch and Develcy=cat Fregrea of
TS3/Ceazical Divisicn 13 daveied to the dacwaﬂ cf the .
2ollouing matarisls cnd methodss

1. Substances wvhich vill preuots illezieal
asd i=pulsivensssy to the point vhare the r'e.tp.mtwuld be
discreditad in public, .

-t gy -
. .

L

- 2, Substances vhich increnss the at.ﬂ.d.eney of mta-
- — -—t4onand porceptica, :

3, Matarials vhich will provent or mtwt the
nt::icst:.., offost of alccnel,

4o Materials viich will precote the intad.uti:.-.- -
Logt of alcohol,

.. 8, mwm.munpnau-m-zmu—.aq—'au
dmoe:.-ad&.:muhcwnblaarnthntuyuy
be usad for malingering, sto,

8, HMaterialo vhich vill reader ke Msticna:hr;aom
easis® or othervize czbance its uoeftiness,

7. Subgtances vhich will epkanee the ability of iz
viduals to withatard privatica, tortse and coorcicd Curing
interrczatiza znd so-called Ftrain-vaabing?,

8, Materinla ard phyzical psthods vhich will proaneo
atnssis for ovants precodirg and doricg tholr use,

9 Mﬂlmt.odaotméummckudcmdu :
m:temlalpu’iodsotu..audu,abhotmuw
use,

10, Sodstaness vhieh prodsce physieal "Qzablerant such
as paralyais of the lags, acute anemia, eto. )

Tarmenan,, %
bee pocrey .. COF
(]

S ter .3--'.y or: 1 : RIS + et 2N B STH

| — ey 29:‘? f et :--..-ltv er: ....?_..,.5
- !c*N - T e Nt
LI '} 4 I.‘..‘}';-; i

§ - 'I.-n-1
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/
11, Substencos thiah will produos “pure™ cpberia vith no

sabpoquent let-dcvn, | .

" . 12, Substsnces vhizh alter porsonality strusture iz gush

a vay tiat the tandency ef tho recipicat to bacezs depandent

upen axotter perscn i3 oztanced, .

13, 4 patarisl vhieh will cauge mental cozfusicn of guch
s type that tha individual t=der ito irfluenee vill £iad 4%
difficelt to maintain a fobricatien umder qusstiocning, _ .

—— i —
——

14, Scbtancas vhich vAll lcusr tho esbities and
gonera) vesring efficicncy of £ vhan administared 4in

T uedstestably wrpantE. .

18, Substonces vhich presote wveslness or distortlon
of the oyecizht or heusing fecultles, groferably vitheut

perzanect effecta,

16, 4 kposkeut pdl) vhich ean curréptitiously be o
administered in drizks, food, oigarsites, o3 cn caresol, .
ete., vhick vill be £l to use, de & nzzizm of L
t=mezie, c=2 ts guitetls for wos by agent fyrea ca &
ad hos . .

17. 4 material vhich can be ] adninige :

F

b7 the atove routes and vhich in very
vill e it iTreazible for & Eaa to paxfesn &y pical

3

bzena possible to -

verk, Exrsover, tSt viich involves lmrman
togting at effzotive dose levels presents zacurity problezs vhich
eamnot be Lazdlsd by the ordicazy contrwctor, '

devnnraied 1at
s Luthority oft 1AT4TS

Jaist Jamy MY
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- - PR —
. 10 May 1938

SUBPROJECT 35 OF PROJECT MNULTRA

1. Subpreject 35 a3 approved by the DCI en 13 Jasuary 1955 contemplated 2
financial costribution of 115, 000 v the w -0
articipats in the construction of & nevw.vasearch wiag to Gost $3.000,000 -

P
exclusive of farnishings aad equipmant, - “Agency funds will be transmisted B

through the A& cut+out which - -
will yesult in one-pixth space in the aew ressarda wing baing made .
available for Agency-spensored research lavelviag covert bological sod !
chemical techaiques of warfaze,

2. At that timae (15 Jasuary 1955) 4 wincia - 8
encour sgemast indicated s willingness to contridbuts $500, 000 t» the construc=

_ ton fund, The bulldiag fosd was t have besn raised as followsy

$1, 000, 000 - Contributed by - B
250, 000 - Denatiea from EANIEENMPof waich -~ B
$125, 000 1o be supplied by Cla :
1,250, 000 -~ Masching funds under Publle Law 22] equal
' ts the amousat of Be two sbove contributicas
500, 000 - . - B

%3, 000,000 - TOTAL
-8

3. Since it pow sppears that tae expected contribution by will ast be
forthceming, permission is requestad o incresse the Agency's contributien

by $250, 000 which will result Ln & financial simation as fallows:”
$1, 000, 000 - Contributed by -8

500,000 - Denatlon frem including . §
$375, 000 supplied by CIA
1,500,000 - Matching funde umder Publis Law 211 squal
ts m_lm of tha rwo sbevs contributions

' $3,000,000 - TOTAL -

4. The Agency's contribution weuld thus rotal 8315:000. This investment,

together with the equal sum resultisg from matchad funds, ia fully justified

in the epinilon ef TSS lor reasons which will be explaized by - <
Chief, TSS, and Dr. Sidney Gortlied, Chief, T3S/Chemical Divisina,

The scope of subpruject 33 has pot changed since the Director erigimally,

approved & requast by TSS for permisaion to spend $125, 000 of avallable

) © Y et lod Homimbon

-
- - ] Emy - - "
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. H L
- ‘/.:M, {nr Whis purpet® sarongh the contrels and 53.“4“.- avtablished
e 220 ULTRA, Al the ime subproject 35 was sat up withis the scope of
oo 3S NLD SroJTIY secarily considerations azd cawer arrangementd
(qwed and tha Otfice of Genssal Couns

were carelally revd
v paranations, Witk the axception of funding arrssgements,

t.e pregram have ¢

v, Fandate cover p“v‘louiy approved sum $125,000 are available

—i-im the TSS @ todgst for FY §5 and have byan set sside. The

Loud :£t, beweeel, lacks funds with wiich to the supplemental sum of

$250, 000, asd itls requestad that the TSS @B udget be increased bY this
Supplementary funds awailadle for gubproject 35 ¢cas defimitsly be

amounk, »
obligated by the end of T'Y 53, . .

so changes in

trsezrndsd Vo '.— )

- ualheriiy of) e |

et

Jume 197T7 ) _.'__“..h_,
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— . —_—— == AR - A
AMENDMENT TO SURPROJECT 35, PROJICT MXULTRA '
For the Purposs of Esusblishing a Cover Organisatiea for Highly Senmsitive
Projacts in the Field of Biological, Chemical snd Radiclegical Warfare

- L !achﬂounll of ngrcte! 3S.

1s Jasusry 1935 approvsl was gives by the DCI w» Subpreject .ll of Project
MKULTRA. The documaents which lead to this approval {includiag commaents
of the OGC] are attached harewith 29 Tadbs 2, Aaad),

Preoject MXULTRA 1a the framework of procedures and contyols wpder which
research projects in certain highly ssasitivae flelds are carried sz by T3S,
A dascription of the background of Preject MEULTRA may be found o8

page } of Tab A,

Subpreject 33 establishes cover under which the Chemical Divisioa of
DD/PITSS would conduct certain sensitive projacia in the folds of bislogical
snd chemical warfare and censists of & proposed srrangemaent whareby the
Ageacy sovertly cootributes funds to sssist th -
in the consiruction of & new Tasearch wiag, Centribution of thease

funda is 0 de made through the -
I 3 cut-out se that the -would remaia o A
unwitting of Ageacy pardcipatioa in the buildisg pregram. Prejects would
latar be earried sut by the Chemical Division using the facilitias of the
new Tesearch wing, and Ageacy employees would bea sbie o participats
ip the work without the Univsrsity or the Hospital sutherities belag swazre

. of Agency interest, Subproject 35 contemplated the concridutien of Agency
fands to asaist ia the constructien of facilides, Futurs vessarch werk
would be carried sut through the as cut-out and would be = B
separstely funded under existing procedures aad contrels, .

snd the background of ~ B

I PARANEREATRER, 31« descrided on page 2 of Tab A. On the
same page there will be found & further descriptios of the (NS - 8

L

. Builging Fuad,

The Univereity will require 33, 000, 000 far the six-stery sdditen to the
hospital exclusive of the cest of land, heating sad power supply which ara
beiag provided by the University, Undar Public iaw 221, SubsppreprisHoa

SrerCopyd Taliinnmn

- T Yeambariy ol LTS A
< vae lone ANT? ;

-l ETRR 6 L0 18T
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463, dated 24 Auguet 1954, fands are availabla 1n n;uuh funds raised for
this purpose by the University.

When Subproject 35 was first prepared, it was baped and expected that the -
funds required would ke provided as fellows: The Univarsity bas allocatad

e Tt

* $1, 000, 000 ta this preoject and will assume uphecy and amifizg ebligations,
c - agroed that Uf the Agenicy would provide GEEXRENEEN - 2
with a grast of $125, 000, the Fund would maich this sxount aod r
make a tetsl donaricn of 5250, 000 to the Uaiversity Building Fuad, At that ¥
» time, ciscussions wizh e =
indicated that (NN wosld contribuse $500, 000
1o the building preject ea the basis that 7& gical zescarch would be v
conducted in the new wing and that the cons tioa of the aew facilities 3
il was.elinssrastto that Agency, 1a swWnIDATY, finaneial situation was -
» o have besn as follows: NP e e
s, 000, 000 - PREEIDSS - — 5 ' 4
150, 000 « Dosatioa from CRUEIININE (of which = B L
$125,000 was supplied by ClA) .
1,150,000 - Matched Funds under Public Law 211 v
300, 000 - gl - i '
33,250,000 - TOTAL & B : b

1t was recoguized that the Federal contritution 1, 250, 000 snder Public
Law 221 would be seemingly iaflated by reas ‘sl the inclusien of the CLA
comribstion La that of MENNNERERERE It ves folt that the value @

the Agency was such that this inflatien of the Federal contribution was more
than justified by the importance of the over-all preject and that furtbermare,

-‘lﬂ

the inclusion of the CIA contributien in that of was the C
best means of maintaining sscurity. . N B {-
1, _ssm—— - 8 ' N
: ¢ e B - |
The origina! informal commitmaent b-,‘ pu'( of @i was fizet abralned 1;
through verbal discussions with _which ware fcllowed i
up by An cxchaage of corzespondends-between tha DCI i SRy -~ <. -
Unfertunately ac thas wuﬂy sccupied with the contree
verey concerning the and continued costact with B ~ C 1
SRR utordinstes vesulted ia & decision that could net or 3
... would net contribute to the Building Fund, but would bg Wi ing 10 suppert .
as asnusl Fesenreh program amountiyg te $50, 000 to $75,0 It is nat
. $ 171 el . " * 8 r
'K T < 5
. J Copy # | of )} cop¥ k.
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known whether this change in policy was suggested v IS o - 'l
whether it originated with hira, Be that ae it may, when the changs ia :
spparent, it was evident that additional funds weuld be Te-

policy becamse
quired to completa the hospital conatrection,

1V, ’“Ii""d Funding. . o

It is now suggested that the $3, 000, 000 required for the bosplal wing be
provided as followst . ;

+ 500,000 - Donatiea from {tacloding — P

$378,000 supplied by C1A)

- T T17300;000 = Mstched Tunds-from Public Law 2l . . o . .

3000000 - TOTAL . .

-
The donation frem ould thus coasist «f the origimal
$125, 000 to ba supplied by CIA plus the sum of $125, 000 to be provided oy
the Fund and & supplamental CIA contribution of 3250, 000, Origimally
Subproject 38 requested permissicn to make & contridetion of $125,000 »
the budlding fund and appreval was given, This appreval le enclosed
berswith s Tab 2. The purpose of this amendmaent te Subproject 33 is to *
request parmissios to conribute an additional 5230, 000 te the bulldiag
construction fund through It should be poted that “ b
the rotal Government contribution to the hospital fund sull remaine
unchanged ot $1,075,000. The iacresse in the sise of the contribhution
by the Fund is not eut of heeping with other speratians of and winn — 8
pot aroust undue comment becauss of its maguitude, Tha eriginally appreved
contribution has not as yet been transmitted togiiIE and neither the  ~
eriginal contribution mor the supplement would be paid wdilillenil - A2
funds adequate te complete the project are made available, This coaditien
was specified by the DCT ia approving the original contributisa,

V. Source sf CIA Fumds,

Funds te cover the iaitially approved ssm of $12%, 000 are avalladle and bave '
besn segregated for this purpese within the TSS FY 1955 Budget {er Research
and Develoyment, Iaswulficieat funds remain tn the TSS budget ts cover tha
supplemcntary sum of $250, 000, and it ls therefore requested that the TSS
burtpet be Increased by this ameunt and that the ingrease e made available
to Subpreject 35 of Project MKULTRA,

P = ) ton _ _

10 s tinason -m N .ts
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]

Y1 Comments by the Offics of Geperal Counsel, *

Tab 3 {a s memorandum {rom the General Counsal to the DCI dated 21

December 1934, commenting oo Subproject 15, sad statiag ln part that

there ATE DO fundamental legai cbjections U the probable benefits are cone

for this sxpenditure, The amesdment to the Subproject

contamplates caly an incresse ia funds and in no way changes any other

aspect of the preject. The project has besn referred dack to ths OGC even .
thouwgh o change io its structure i3 contemplated, and Tab 4 coowins his o :

comnments,

\“M1

L ¥ L
1 h

» ]

vy  Justificatden, -
»

felt by TSS to provide sdaquals and complete justification for Bhe expabdifaxe T T
of the additionsl sum hersin requasted which driags the wtal ClA ceatribue
tGea 10 $375,000, The most important of thase sdvastages and benefits

may be sommarized as follews: (Fullar explapations may be found in Tab A).

#- —--1

s. Ons-sixth of the total space in the new bespital wing will be
avallable to the Chamieal Division of TSS, thazeby providing labors~
tory and effice space, technical assistants, squipment apd experis
mental animals.

e

b, Ageacy spensorship of sensitive zesearch prejects will be ;
complataly demiable. ' . ' .

c. Full professiosal cover will be provided for up to three bie=
chamical employees of the Chamical Divigion, - i-

d. Humas patients and voluntsere for axperimenstal sse will be
tions withia the full

avaliable under controlled clinical condi
supervision of

F-=

Schbpreject 35 was eriginally senceived in Octaber and Nevember of 1954,

and \he ¢nsuing six months have indicated that increasing emphavis and

importasce are being placed on the Chemical Divisiea's work in this fleld. *
The [acilities af the hospital and the ability to conduct contrelled sxperi=

ments under safe clizical conditioms using m:terials with which any Agendy

SPs $

_cosmection must be completely desiable will sugment snd complament sther

pregrams recendily taken sver by TSS, swch as -—
peez omnied U twamaithiib ——— —- . -
- o rILT 621 JNTITS . *
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It was ori;iull'y thought that at least 19 months would slapse after the
building funds had bean raised before the facilities would be finlshed and
could e occupied by 178S. This lengthy delay has now besa oversome. 8"

has 7aised the $500, 000 which his Fund will estenaibly contridate,.
he will then be allowed to nee sxisting space in the present hospital in

order that be may bulld wp the organisation which will later occupy the new
This mesns that TSS will be able to begia 1o laks sdvantage of thia

ituation withia a matter of montbs instead of waiting for a year and . *
. '

wing.
cover ®

s half, . . B
v, Sﬂﬂrlﬂ.

T Security matters and dlmﬂml“cbur&miu-ﬂ&&o-l'ssm“_-

apd Security Officer, Security of transmittal of the {unds and cover arrange-
ments are descrided in Tab.A and semain unchanged,

IX. Agresment wi&“’ ' PR

.. v e -
The agresment with is dascribed in Tad A, and the extent
of his co-operstion sad the contrel sver his actions remais unchanged,

X. Resultant Fisancial Saving, ’

The total contridution of $375,000 by C1A will result ia an additionsl
$378, 000 in mazching fupds previded under Public Law 221, Itis felt that .
the expenditure of theas total funds iv justifled by the importance of the
programs which will be pursusd at.the new facility. Even though the CLA
contribution is increased under this amendad projact, the total of Faderal
funds remains unchanged The use of this facility will allow work to
procecd undes conditions of cover and aecurity which would be jmpoasible
to chtain vlsawheze wilhout an sxpenditurs of equivalen: ar greater funds,
In sddition, by {uading individusl prajecte fos this {scility through the

a0 charge will be incurred for everbend sxpenss. U

. -

resesrch prejects m.:- openly sponsosed by the - B =
U, 8. Cevernmast, it is custiomary to pay &n ovarbead rate % .
to 80% of salaries. _Hewevar, if & non-prefit fuad, such 2s -3
spensars research, ibe funds grastad for the werk are custamarily -
waed only to pay lov salaries, equipment and supplies, but not overhead.
+:+ The Azency thus buys considerably more ressarch through -8 -
han would be the cane Uf 30 cut-out ware noed.
Pisnrrmiud Le; Mum—"D ’ *
. - ® “g

1= ot arle~ gf; u.-nm \ — —— - - —
L H T B N .
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L}
~e e asam, . .

prassrish the file on MIRTTA, S2-

- groject 23, with o cemcentn on the lefal
asrects, rnile there is po lesad ccntrol ond
share are cerwin inecidental consideraticns,
there is no Diazental legel cojestion if @2

=cbabla danelite ave considared a foir retica -

for thals expsnditure.
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SUBPROJECT S - PROJECT MXULTRA . .

- For the purposs of eatablizhing 3 cover organiaation for highly

sensitive projects ia the field of covert Blological, Cheamical

and Radiclogical Warfare

1. Ba:hw of Project MEULTRA.

_ 1 1953 the DCI approved Project MKULTRA which established procedures
 and controls vndey which resezreh projects in cortain highly sensitive
fNelds could be carried eut by TSS without the secensity of signing the

. — - _ususl contracts, _The approved proceduyes apply § s -

ovar-sll Rescazch and Develepment budget, and a0 additionsl funds
are required. Contrels established in the Project Review Committae
appreval of tha Research asd Development program {other than the
pigning of & espezact) remaia uschanged, and special provisions for

. scdtare included, All files are retsined by T3S,

Thess proccdures and controle wara spproved since it Ls highly un-
desirable from & policy and security point of vidw that seniracts be
signed indicating Agency or Government intezest Ia this Beld of en-
desvor. la a great masy iaqtancaes the work must be conductied by ia-
dividuals who sre mot and shouid aot be sware of Agency intsresi In
otbez cases the Individials izvolved are unwilliag 10 hava their samaee

>, onm & contract which vemains out of theiz comrel ia sur files. Experisace

: has sherwn that qualified, competant individuals in the field of phyvie-
= logleal, psychistric’and other biclogical sclances are vary reloctami
" to enter inte sigped agreements of sny sort which would comnect them
with this activity sinde such connectios might serieusly Jevpardiae
their professional reputations, . .
. -

Whea Project MEULTRA was spproved, it was sot contamplated that

1t would he used for the establishment of cover. Over forty indi vidual
resesrch and development projects have been establishad under this
framework and have been carried out extramely succesafully, both

f1om technical and sdministrative peints of view, The sxparience

ghined in bandling these projects has emphasized that estadlishmaent

of better covar both for the prejects and for sssociated Agency scientists
is of utrnost lmpornance, .Su»ujcet 35 would eatphlish such cover,

Demazrated tor pnesmm——m  — . .
Ve =ither) s A W . sacrrCagy th1 AoHRogiitines
Y -‘l'a:';a;;- mm',-%’. -— .. :zt::lmt oft 1OM4T8 &n,
MR : * 311 Juse 1977 e
hrllilialzamm : —
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. Back yound of the

TBM , was incorporated ia -~ 8
m 1t has » Board of Directors of six
ne of whor i »iNNANININEE who acts 3% Executivea = &

members, ©
Dizector of the Fuad, it has solicited funds from various = 03
of basic Tasearch is the chamotherapy

ipdividuals to finance & Program
of cancar, aFthma, hypertsnsion, plychumlth disorders and other .,

ehrbnic disesses, Since l”l'.-hm-tpcmul.-l:h.m... -
Chemical Pivision of TSS and acted smoothly and afficiently, both as
a cut-sut for dealing with contractors in the fislds of covert chemiecal _ .

apd bislogical warfare, and as & prime contractor for certain areas of
eing handled for tha Agency .

bythe F
previously sppreved far MEULTRA,

m. Bacnground of QEIENEINEDREINS
-k

in the field ol ugERIEPreseazrch and in
o the-past 5 aas been associatsd ia

a research capacity with both the B
[ 4

Du-iag the war WRNENEENNENS served 88 » SR -
in the Buress of Medicize and Surgery in the Navy, Slace then ha-has

malotained 8 consulting ralatienship te the Navy medicsl rsesarch pro=-
gram. is TOP SECRET clearsd and wiltiag of Agesey = C
sponsorship asf-the programs carried out by ths Fund 3s ase twe other

membezs of the Fuad's Board of Directsrs.

. CEEEERNENEIp T - 5 :

IRy o e uuvcfungdulnn
T purpote of execting 3 new cliaical zesearch wing on the exi
The resesrch wing will cansist of & = 2

fent Yong and 50 feet wide, Twe-thirds

of the space will be Tesesrch laberatories sad offices while 100

resesrch beds will sccupy the vemainder, particlie =
pation in the fund-raising campaign outlined belgw will result in his

having contrel of ene-sixth of the total space in addition te the base~

Pamenoatse te: i .
g - ooinerity of3 167STS N, . Ut )
¢ 1 e 3OVT " Copy § _/_ot2 copiss
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maent and genersl cut-patient facilities. 1Ia this ufore, m - C
has secired the enthusiastic support of the medical faxculty and the

oificers of the University who bave carried the preliminary arrangemests
forward to the maximum extent of their resources,

v, Financial Situation.
e e e —

The University will require about $3, 000, 500 for the ¢ story sdditian.
This sum is exclusive of the cost of land and the heating and powsr supply;
which are already avalladlie M the aied At the present time under Public

" Law 221, funds ars available to match funds vaised by the University,

" upkstp ind siaifing obligations,

The, Unlversity has allocsted $),000, 000 tu this project and will assusne
cbiigstions, GNEREIMERNND vur s g7 erd that If CIA ~ C
& grant of $125, 000, WPNEEF will -3

will previde
match this amount and mas.
puildisg Tusd., This Agency’s contribution will be made under the cen-
dition that it will be refunded Uf construction does not saks placs.

TSS bas diséuesed this siruation with SPININEPTIRATECEEE.. -
and hat encouraged REED o dovate = /3
00, 000 w tay duikding project en the basis that i -8
will be conducted In the new wing.- - thougli aware ol owr = A
interest in the bullding, s vawitting af our apecific Nelds of research - '
-and individual projects, . [a simmary, the financial situatios would be as

follows:
-n

- 31,000,000 -
250,000 - Donatioa frem
g (3125, 000 supplied by CLA)
1,250,000 - Matched fundy from Public Law 221
500, 000 - -4 . .
‘3| m' o” - TOTAL

Although it is recognized that the Federal contribution of $1,280, 000 wader

tal dosation of $230,000 to the University .

P. L. 221 is sedmingly jaflated by reason of the inclusion of the CIA contri-
bution in that of h— actually the valus o the Clals — 8

$230, 000 a3nd not just $128, 000, the amount of CIA's contribution; further-
more the inclusion of the ClA contribution ia that of iDEEBARNEE. - s

WP i the beat methed of roAintaining securiny, . .
. Dezazraded ter Limmmpun ‘ . .~
E* aotherity of7 187478 £ . )

%92 June 197y g-:\
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vl Difficulties Faced by TS5, .

It hay beal geoerally secoguized for some imae that the externsl ree
search activities of the Chemical Division of T55 ia the fisld of covert
binlogical, chamical and radiclogical warfare are sorely inneed of
proper coverl. Although Project MKULTRA providss encellent adminie
strative and financial cover for projects, it does not afford cover for

scientific or techanical personnsl. MIXULTRA bas been wsed for R
daaling through ag & cut-out and far working =

directly with individuals opprivate sompanies, The use d# -2
the future will be incressingly Ussited-dus te o

{a)’ The iacreasing sumbes of peopls who, sibeic
properly cleared, are aware of the Agency
c¢snnectioa with -

smployees contscting Bhim {Drs. Gonlieh,

etc.} bave no cover of amy sort asd = €
coasequantly expose him to unnecessary sud
highly wndesirable pe¥ sonal risk; and

{c) The widesprobd intra-Agency awareness ol
: the nature of the relaticnabip batween the

Fund and the Agency. .

Anotbesz serious problam faced by TSS/CD as & zesuls of lack af suit-
able cover is the difficelty in planning careess for techaical and
scientific personnel in the biclogical fisld, A loag-range caresr
concept of activities ia this field inavitably includes prepsr cover for
the ipdividual concerned, The availability of resesrch ineilities
11 offer am e=zellemt opportunity -

at
to solva many of the above problems, and GEEREDIERNY i» willing = ¢

and able to maks any gessonadle arrangements to suit our sseds. Up -—
to three Chemicat Division employeas caa be integrated inta i -~ C
program for work in the new hospital wing on the
Agency's reseazeh projects. Although cares?t planning was aot &
consideration whan planning the procadures and contrels satablished
by Project MKULTRA, asverthelass thies particular subproject, in
addition to its primary objective, will ba n! very graat gcunglrv Melp

mﬁllm .

I~ sutberity of1 13T4TS M . '
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/ e T

is simplifying and eliminatiag many of the very swvhward and dangarous
conditions jacing cartain Chamical Division employess,

VI, " Advantagas and Benefits Accruing te T3S,

The contemplated sarrangsments will.¥ssult ia masy advastages and
benefits, including the followiag:

(s)

One-sixth of the total epace in the sew research ’
wing i @ te available & and -

in turn, will be availablé o the Chemicsl .

Division of T3S, This will previde laberatery

and office space, technical assistante, equip-

mant anéd experimental saimals for use of Chemigal
Divisies perseamlin corasction with specific

™

(0

future projects.

The cost of Chemical Division projects which are

to ba carried eut under this cove: will be covered
by fusds made availadle through Project MKULTRA,
and projecis will be subject te the precedures °

and controls sstadlished Loz MKUL The
fupds will be pansed through - B

wflas bas beon done in the past.

in rurs will either pay axpunses directly or

_transfer the mensy t¢ the University for this

purpose, Each preject will be iadivideally
funded based oa its particular buiget, and thare
will be 30 other continuing sr recurring charges
for itams such a8 spacs, facilities, ote.

The Agency's spensership of sensitive resnarch
prejects would be complataly denlable since w0
connection would exist batwaen the University

sad the Ageacy. .

Excellent prefessisnal] cover weuld be provided

for up te three ble-chemical employees of the
Chemical Division of TSS, This weuld sllew spen -
atiendance at scisatific meetings,.the Mivancermnent
of personal standing in the scigntific world, and .
as such, weuld censtitute 3 mj.n afficiency and

Pe==sroidvd ter SHplnamim -

- =:lherity ef: 137478 N,
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smarzile bavitar,

{e) HMumas pitieats and volumsers for experimentsl
wae will be avalladie under sxceallent elinical
conditions with the full sypervizisn o N - ]3
Y

.'-"
(i There would be nun.‘nblc the equivalent of 3
pospital safehouse. _

(g) 3t \s expecred that tine output of useful results
of the Chemical Division in the bio-chemical
fisld will be greatly improved dArough the more
afficient use of techaical persosnel who would
e able 10 spend mare of their time on actual
1aboratery werk,

_m_”— -a

(i) Escellemt facilities would be provided for
recruiting new scientific pervonnel siace
aarsvars of the Chemical Division werking under
shis cover will be in daily contact with mambers
of the Graduats Schoel of the Universitry. .

- (0 The regelar Usiversity Library aad reprist
sexvice will be available as & source of,
technical iafoymation.

VI, Yunding. .

1t is proposed that $125,000 be graated ts iy ~ 8

appreval is granted, TSS will arvange for paymant ts be made under

the procedures snd contrels of MXULTRA. Thess funds would come

out of the presently approved TS Rasearch sad Development budget

for FY 1955 and 3@ new fusde are iavolved The fumds would be

transferred sa & gramt oA is turn -
will match these funds with an equal amount asd donats & tetal -

of $25@, 000 to the Univarsity as sutlined in pasagraph ¥V, The sum of

$118, 000 would e entizely tn the nature of 3 grant and would in due

Brrziraded te: SuIEWNE .
b~ ikerity of: LETETS .-
¢ 1=y 107TP . l\ Copy ? 7 of2 capies
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cowurss bs mergrd with the entire 31, 000, 000 raiged for the consiTuc.
tion of the wing, The Agancy would retaia ne residusl intarest in the
Buildisg ez title % any equipmeat or facilities purchased with this

money.

This sizgle grant will constitute the- Agency’s entire pardeipition in

the pew hospital wing, and there will be mo recurring obligstions in

the form of snsual'suppert of the hospital et additional grasts, Traas-
mission of Agency fcads to willbemade - [}
tarough previcusly-established cover.chio: sia-set up-by the Y '
aplifD fo7 similar transmitials in the past, ae I-z2tlon agp -t
QIS books will be shown 88 having beea received frow nEEEEIEERS. ~ B

. In the future when TSS sponsers sensitive ressarch yrojects which are

to be carried out {2 each project o R

will be individually financed through n asit bas

been in the past in sccordance with pravicusly established precedures

apd costrels using allotted portions of the asaual Research aad Develop-

ment budget, The Univereity will be totally unwirtting of Agency

sponsership, aad the projects to svary cutward sppearance will be

aponsered by -£ .

In the evest of CREEENGRNIND dfnu. GEElEP will contima in

being asd any sctivities under this project will be costinued through i ~ £
will be nnalfected by his death. .

[X. Msimorandum ef Agvesment,

A memerandum of agresment will be signed wits NENENIENEED — <
outlining 1o the grestest extent possibie the arvengements nader which

the hespital space under his cuntrel will be made svailable o Chemical -
Divisies persosnel and the manner in which cover will bea provided and

othes benafits shtained. Neo costract will be signed since HEEENNN - -
would be saable to reflect any-of the Agency's centractual terms ia his
arrsagements with the University when makes the = 8
denatien in quastion. The memerandum of sgresment will be retained

in TSS. -

X. Btclri!z.

All security matiers and details are Weing cosordinated with the TS$/
Liaisea and Security Office,. -

Dozm—aded 1o en —
e soglarity aft LITGTE i
it Juoe 10T c.’y # /7 ol & ‘ﬂpl‘l
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x1. Resultans Tinancial Saving, . .

. The $1285. 000 to be contributad by CIA plus the $12%,000 iz matching funds
provided under P, L., 221 to the Bailding Fuad will be more than oifset

. in a few yeazs by the savinge which will result from usz of this non-profit
fund. If a yesearch project at or other educa= = B
tional non-prefit insttution is sponsored by the U. 8, Gevernmant, it
is custornary for the Governmest to pay for salaries, squipmaent, -

> * supplies, sic. and for overhead as well, In the case of .- &
the overkesd amaunts to §0% of salaries, However, if & OB 4

profit feundation such a» #‘p‘ll.“l sesearch at a -8
non-prefit institution, the (mdi_]rnlod {or the werk are customarily
used 1o pay for salaries, equipmest and supplies but not for everhead.

N _ Ths Gevernmasnt dollar thus buys coeasiderably more research through

v 5 would bu e eaneifao cut-qut-wereused. .= 8.

XM Legal Mamere,

-

This mamer has been dlacussed wits QUEIRIMARERICNDEE of the Ofice  — A
of General Counsel, and he is fully aware of all dewails surrounding this

Tt

Sazanraded et GININENADS

© By oautharity of: m‘ﬁ-
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(EMCRANDUM FOR: THS REC22D
susJ=CcT © 0" T2ip Repars, Vielt u-
. © 7 Aprdl 1953

1. The purpeose of this tric wos M8 maks arrangenesis lor
closiag out tho R p7ojcc. g Gad bean (ivea ample previeus
sotico shat wucis was Lisly to be the izzaat of 130 visit, sad he pree
pared himmarell accordiagly.

Z. I was explalasd ww it would not e :
possible 88 €317y over fucde buyoss the ead of the curyem fscal ¢
yoar. Thareiore all work would kave te be completed and all pays - -
mests roade prior ts 30 June, Tils duadline appesred accaptable b

hirm, and 8 was agreed that ! would caks my final visid thare to

recslve TopoTts and aftend to flaal ceialls oa 16 Juns. WP A - :
have a» currest flsancial report, but he sstimatad ihat fasds cusyeatly e
ca band weuld ba about scillcieat for reainiag sxpanditures, Le

azreed to saad the Secimy wildis tie naxt J0 daye & more exact tates

muct of current balasce and setimated remairing expamlilures, |

tried to Lmprase aa him strosgly thot transfer of additenal fands and/

o7 returs of uaexpeaded foads must be carmplated well Lofo=g the ead

of the flacal year. —

* 3, Of the 10 cases called for in the origloal deslyn 13 heve
bean complated (M caly 4 have besa trasscribed {rom the apes). Ia
adiision thers sre § cases ia progveas (of which two are alxsauy la
jatorview sad & ars worksd up te the polst of haviag the lists of quastisns
prepared). I was azrecd that to meat the deadlise we would havs &8
limis the desigs te thess 26 cases.

4. It lo sppavest thar WD is ve lovoived ia the administrative
problemne of the preject that be is aol payiag say attsntlon to the yesulls.’
Siece te dits saly 4 cases have bees transcribed tere ia a8 way of tellicg
wihat Ls coming ous of it. 1 assume thers were as dramatis resctisas, be-
cause the iatarviewsrs would have Ict hita haow abaut tham bad they smersed.
1 s possible, bowever, ta=t eur ews asalysis af the data mmay dredge np

somaetaing f value, altbough § am dublons oa this pedat.

S. G gave me his nowal laag lavelved talk ou the Citllcuities
be hnd escountayed which accenat ior the delays. Hs also taliad at some
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leagia abovt bl "ewperlments™ with & '

sre mil 1y bils-ralsiag, Jinally be 3:::&.':'::.::‘::‘:.'.’.;:‘;:
soroe such project as this sext year, "with realisiic, spacilic deadliane.”
} told bion we would dlecuss posalblilities alier the Frciest prajsct was
campletod aad we had & chiiuce 10 closely cxamise the tazs,

i stribution: . .
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' ' July 18, 1958
‘ *

P ©

pesr xr. GENEININENO . "

The ‘experiment designed to test the effectiveness of 6

ecertain asdication in causing individusls to release guarded ine

foraation bas been couplated in sccordance vith the original ex=-

perimental design, with the exception that 2§ instead of )0 cases

wvare used. 7This matter was discussed in morc detall in ay letter

of July 15. Abstracts on all 23 csses, transeripticus of the ip-

tervievs, Vechsler;Bellevus Intelligense Tasts given at the hos-

pital and previcusly given st this clinie, post-experimental

rankings and evaluation sheets, and 4 schedule covering the drug
administraticn Bave dll been submitted to you undar separats

cover, .

Enclosed i3 & finanecisl statement vhich repm-sents the
rinal accounting of the finds allocated by you for use in this
project, If, for your purpess, you requirs & more detailed sum-
mary of vhat specific professicnal services vere perforaed or
more detall vith refersnce to travel sxpenses oF any other item,
kindly lst ms know, . .-', ’

You will n«tni in this emﬁuf:zi 3;; ?r. “;M. .

conpenssted in an amount exceeding that
was ovcasicned by the fact that Dy. sgent much tix
the files azd records at the and
suitable ror sur pur=

Priscn selecting cases that aiga
pose. It vas from the cases selectsd by hAla that the subjects
used in the experimsnt vers finally chosem.

' I bave been instructed to vrite s check to the Sociaty
for the balance in the sccount as of today. I would like to

b ¥ -«
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ur. ogiiiiiliiiiiles Pace Tee - )

Tems %, Wvia

delay this matter for a fev days, Severasl checks have been write
ten Guring recent days, and 1 would like to be surs they cleared
the bank & bafore cIdiing out the account, You will
recelve s check in the amount of $1356.26 early next vesk.

If thers 1» any additional informatiom required, I vill
be bappy to cooparsts. .e

-

l-"'-.’i Wy N’

>

o 2kt I 5 T cnn B ane N an Blhmane

—iea

por -



146

“y n..—'.'l‘v-o‘l §¥ 17 P Y

Tgzted Jend M9TY -y,
iegae pea
2 LTLET: S0 BT 18T4TS
12227751 L
13

.mmmaeamuuemﬁent s tte SRR —

- ATPTMEIPREPOR 1ostoi NP, wikts —
mmw ™o - B
I

Kagztal hos one thensand, unhnﬁ-ah.mma“u,:ss)m

Fe

) A;mmtmmmmnmwmrmmn
povehotics elaasified a2 a-.L'zLal-::-.'nd poychopatks, haro are four
rn.l-:d.ro ;qwmmmummzm

=reholozistsy four coclal weriars; aursed msd stessdasta. T=a apers

P
inzemdsry of the Rocttal 1o wgTNENENEIRY, » wtticg reer - O

af it roocoreh tesa, iz Anciilztion eevms undcr ths Srmolix of

Wﬂ&mﬂ m&mar-ma:!md!a.ﬁaﬁ
wnu-umgwamuwwmwuwerm
of the Siste Duperteozt of locial faales, SESERIER vy srcra
s erproval. AEIENEIP i) s speco eyzllatls and 1S 18
md&htctbnm‘uahmmam!nr_'mm arrrizs

caTrinS
ogqt tkoir iovestis=tiem, )

) The sclice:d w311 Yo selresad Zrsa the oo Exnirad and loTty-tae
(112} eridzaledomual pnehenatha on Whom there 15 &0 SCMRSIO FrEVious
investizatien inclciias polico ropsris, piy=leal, poretlstric g=d
pohclesis emtrdmastona smd steiad Sistories. Tho a3 range of e

-y

T Dezazeated e R . ) ———miin
| — = ) ——

b autkariny oft 187475
e Juny 1977

LB =i 6 BT 15Ys

" n



147

cadblocts vorlos fronm fouty 1) SOYENIZ JORKD £l WheFe L4 4 aes varae

otica ¢f intalli-enca lovals and soeigl Lsekgrounds, )
b i st abdt | . . —

Ty follorins ren are sugmated far tho resuarch toma
: fmu—-—-_-
— .opmm;mwm::unmnn
eperisen 1n amdsing erimdiali; Fas iSicien cxtonsively
ca porchopsinds soxual deriztionsy is an sethotity en poly-
oreph o interrosntien methods. :

e

oAy

S cox e thusty yesre; 8 ps7chiatrist \io has
szent i3 240y in tho trectesst of tha esi=insl drsany =4
rmintstzs tio caly iastisuiica SN tho ccre — C
] and tresort for the cininel-cermal paycliratbe

OISR . ;crusirist wo kao o largo privte — &

Eactioe, it the prooct Lire he 43 exelrsiwaly éovoting
his tize to prycheowlysis. Eo hay bad exteasive o=rericooe
cmdnies ericiils, £5 & evy Thloteiss bo hos had -
extniive coesicoss 1o (IRDEEREEENSHDINEY — C
“umm ef osmtarn cltcres, Oriemtal ’
rhdatry, traicrasning, ote. is has aloc dons dref iztare
rogation with crirdenls st has oncarod in nsreconalyals
and Nroncanzlyzia,

Brrorcicd to: MANENNS ;!-

'y Ziverity ofs LOTETE "
t:tf: Juza 2377

IS ISRET: €L BT 184TS

DR Sdrpdy

l':-"-ﬂ.

- b |

Fr -

e )

-

Fsd-\

Py



Pa

=

A————————
-

CHTHS  uummmem o osscus tor 1 yos eomrtiv
H rierz, s boe iSRS RNy - - 1

148
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setravadrecznglinsl acatace ccivative. l.r.'-uz;'_tm wridns en snethor
| S 60 mblecto Vil e srsickt Lnterresation 13Z uith iqterro;stien
| oK 8 totrigurccenactingl seetete dativative and interrogstien. later.
spg thind tox with nesther Chowp of culdoein vill cse FAraicht InserTo-
- —;asn ard 8 exadntion uf LD ond & tetrsigerecansaldnal acetsta

h - devivetives _ . e mme— r

Aanmcmmmmdmnmmmmumuu

o 3sdce calmed 80 £a 42 the use of thzco Aruss. .
Inmlsctinge (roups of wchjecta for experimestaticy, the fEll=iing
ojestives will bo potIili *
1) Cablocts 11l bo palezicd o Rave derisd allesaticna
of verisus Hnda thrt ezn Yo chocind ov strongly asswnd
m the-tasis af previcwzly estsbliciod recards.

2) -As far as peasikln, the actual ‘resesreh ton advdndstering
m:-wmr.hmo:mmuumum

zgmmhmwuummmtm.-

3) Procouticms w21l bo taken to moctralizo ege; intelli-
mace, phycical conditlom, socisl Leckoreomd'snd ey
oth= contrellatls feetar ia valociing Sroups. Ad=
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cwTeptiziously.
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of intarro stion wiih erugs wwi other Sectaldues will
ba -cheelud 2;atnat existing rocords erd qualitaiive azd
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MEUCRAXDUM FOB THE BESCRD:
SUBJECT: M}cet JOUULIRA, Suhprojeet k2

1e Subwojoetunuhmtmafam“mu
q

mgmlﬁ"ilmmnd. to support IENUNNETERES covert =

.uwnin—mﬂmumﬂmt 1tens '

-y *

e

Poal LT

and %

" af ioterest to TSD, aod to miptain tbe ﬂwued farilities required for

thess trimls.
2. In the pu‘ year a pumber of covert nnd realistic ‘£1014.

trisls hove been lueecnfun; eu'rsed out. 'lt;- results of thase
experiments bove provided tutul data uuntm to establisting
protocola for & pucher ¢f costexplated apentieu. A contipuntion

of covert and reclistic field trisls sre pecessitated by the production
of pev matarisls 1n =0 mpm, prueuhﬂ.y ‘in aress requiring
uug«. thal of the effectiveness ond efficiency of dalivery
systems. Additictal -t.mll' aTe 1l30 recessitatad \‘7 the need for

e @ TR e -

 better controlled “Zleld-type" .:pcmu."—"' —_—
5. 'nn'uti.nud cost ¢f the project is 33,000 000.00 for & p-.-znd. ;
of six months. Charges abould be nmlc agaiost Allotmsnt u25-1390-3902
h. Accounting for funds nnd squipment under this subproject zas

been established cn & detalled bests Vith the sulitor snd vill continue
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__"’/ S-mu approved for TOP SECRET by the Agescy aod
cperotes under cover for purposes of this nh-p:ajcet.

Distributionm:
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YENDRANDUN FOR THE EECGRD
SUBJECT: Project NKULTRA, Subproject 42
1., Subproject Yy

s being estal
continued suppert of the
is s centimmation of Suborof 1?
i3 intended that th ac

shed %o provide fer the
acilities, and a8 such,

Under Subproject &2, it

{1ities be moved frem ¢+
, These facilities,

in the new location, will centirms to provide a Bems for the
realistic testing af ecru.inllndnlt-qtm.ﬂnu

T CD/TSS and APD/ISS, - -
3, Sabproject &2 vill be conducted by !(r.*
a seamsn, Certiin support activities will be provided
CD/TSS and APD/7SS. - . .
- . . F
3. The estimtad cost for & pericd of oas yuar is
£3,300.00, starting 1 ¥arch 1_955- . .

- [ - - - — v

ol RTILIEE

“Cndef -

133 /Checical Division
ASPRCVED Pl CELIGATION APPROVED 708 ADDITICMAL °
OF YUNDS: - _ .. CELICATION OF mg:(az,cqsosb)
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1. The scepe of this preject is hunddhm
-nn.uuudu-mquuunm
y 12 its ovm fecilities wndar the

directiss of 139, Cuemical Divisien. Thess activities will
mmrmdthulhadmﬂimaunuul
nansly, e erwre-like eflTeoct af cartain- thiocls, the prepars=
tise af hydrogesatsd quinalines asd indols slkaloids, sad the
mﬁmﬁlhdrdﬁmw. In additisn to the .
above ticas,’ ths Gmﬂhlﬁnﬂm
mhew*duhchhn.d broadesed ts inelude

\:

Mm@nbdwﬁ-
-uuuu-mn-m

The attached proposal fruom sates

©
the extant of the lnveriigmtisns that his fucilities vill allevw .,

10 oarTy oot m the mterials devaloped 1a ihe thres lings

his
of reswarel referred to in parsgraph 1 uuuumnhr
materials of intarsst to DS/, SENEEITETED alse
ulmudm-ﬂmthmammlﬂmhamld

- 3.-mumm¢mm:mur-me~m
,000,00, At tha preseat time, the sm af

$40,000,00 12 being scmmittad, the balance af the total te e

:
:
i




he total sost of this projest for & peried of eoe year vill
= uhrilh-bmhﬁw

pot axxesd $100,000, Charges
$-2502-10-008.,

- -

sohiait & smmary sccounte

. . ’
-, s besc requested to
M:lmwtmhﬂmtﬂ
’

tarogd to the Agenay.

Alse, it bas deen requestal that any usex-
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oy

pv=y

ST et B oen I

'p‘....

[ aautdtil. ]

’-d‘ll



-

rr

-

g

w
@

156

LR

. 6. Tt vas mrtually agreed that docamaste

1

tico and aecoxxting Lor
.

travel ©xpecses vhich are normlly relabursshbls
(A) A stall oonfera dm_ieei’yﬂ Fractices .:’gu-

7. I e gred te souply with

* tha Memsrasiua of Agrevemsat,

oo Teqhirements of
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1980 —E——, _

-— .
. - .
. . . P . R
- - -
- - - - v
-
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p"-t.od Jor which finanetsl aupycn ts requratad wtll De dcnud
to The conttnued cnslyets of the neursl ond endocritme uchanua

of stress and the chuucl agcnu t)un tnﬂmc te. Ihe scresntng

precadures are based Jnrpl.!y upon & fur-r.hcr cnalyste of phsses of
stress ond the tnrfluences of thts phystalogic behavier comzlex
upan “dath bedy ond skin takFeraturey v dueatled tn the cecompanps

g report,

The eh-uez synthasts of naw conpounds TLll da contirued

3 at the! under the superviston of .-l
cnd ot the under the supsrsteton J

-muc chemtesl cgents will de screensé for

thelr copaeity u prcwlu atress or %o SUppraas t’u strass reaction
= ta 1te ocuse or chronts phsut. Antmal testing -su tnelude PPoraae
cologic scresning and propsr toxtetty nudtu of thass comrpounds os

haretofors, N

Chemtec] agents thas have dasn Jound cettoe cnd wtehin o

suttadle toxteity rongs wtll de subjected to c.!mtui'aerunm on ;

eppropriats petiants, the tatetel scrassning delng corrtsd out on
cdpenced cancer pottensa, The orount o7 monay Seveied to ehamtical
asynthasts, Zosecer, kas 2630 Surthar reduced. Chamtical cospounds
apatlodle yrom bdtolozic sources C8 wvel]l o3 those syntheatsed tn £
proJject wtll de screensd, parsteularly thoae that are ccttve h
stther rotetng or Jowertng body tempsrature. __ .

) Ao heratofors any agents which Frove to be of tn.:;a- -

- . F e TRy g !-m‘lnn hnf.’l an tronsvlont
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uunz mnrc nnd on emur ‘patténts, m. m-r p.... .,- "“?o'.'
s projecs wtil de cauw’rcd-n blp,pr‘oducs of ﬂu major edjeattve, =
whioh -uz de- dtneu‘ to the pnb)a or stress.
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MEMOR ANDUM roa: THE AEConD . e

- .

SUBJECT - = Cﬂnulnlilll .‘lﬂ"u’.‘ll&. lnbprojoc: n._ .,f—

. L The scope of this -ubpre ect includes all thoss activities

now sagaged ln bwa
T3 -'R 3 .

soder the direction of TSS7CH with the exception of those cutout

functions -pcdnuny mentioned ia comnection with other MKULTRA

subprojects,” Ia ullcn.!. the run.uh elfort under lhl- subproject

will contione slong ‘the Unew lald 'do-rl.a-yuviou years. These

invelve the syntbesis and pharmscological and clinical evalustion

“of compounds of those chemical hnmu lmm to have applluuon

ia the peychScbemical asd "K” flelds. Durlag the past year important
prograss bag baes made ln :lu. ares related to stressor compounds
and tn uladonshlp of these materials to the phyalolnleal pnhvan
thtoolh which both stress and the ruct.lel to it are n«!iat«l la
humasn bdql.l fM ts indjcated la the sttached proposal, the work
n( the past year has progressed to fhe poiat where more e.n-mu -
sxperiments on the sucu reaction cas be carried out. Primarily
thls was brou]ht about by the :hu’aelui.zuiu of untl.l oew
murla.h which produco stress rueﬂn in bwmnaoe and the applica-
tion of some new cliaical methods of measuring the extant of the
disturbaace preduced, Duriag the next year propor;lnnlly mors

affort will be expended sa the problem of the develepmont of sew

:EE wi v .
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e baneshoous typas of Lageats SiAan pragress has bSesa sleawes Maaa
LI -, -

a desirable is t.un ‘dlrieﬂ-'- and bacaase & new spproach to the -
peblm bas beus worked ul./( - ) C . . _.T
2 m alse sarves as s gesaral coasultast te ';
; the Mney. puvuu nrvuu of & seceitive satars ea an ad hoe )
baels, and serves as s cui-ont la procurement probllﬂu. -
3, Thae total cost of this project for a paried of ons yesr .

2,53 oy
will mot excedd $71, 500,00, Chnrgas should be mads agalast .

- Allotment 0525-1009-4902. _ . ___._. .~ __

ol .
4. aIBYMCERIANEED has bees requested to submit & summary
a'uonun' or a. copy of the Fund's apnual audlt report for the

lpﬁllﬂt" inchaction. Alse, It Bas bem requasted that any vaexpended

fonds shall be returned to the Mcner.
‘ §. Title to any permanent aguipmest psch.nad Yy fands

- . grasted * shall be retained bw
m 1a uu of higher pverhead ratee. . _ .

) 6. Rwag nutual.ly Apnd tht doenonhﬂn and aecnutlag

for tnv!; sxpeasey which are sormally reimbarsable byé
shall conform with the asceupted ;:lcﬁeu of the

Fuad.

Desagraded ter [EAFDOIIAL

" vy suttericy eft 137478
- datz: Juoe 1977

D DTom; 6L 1T BT
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ml:mm ™0 mcom e aE
sy T 1 Cavimmtics of MIIZRA, MEMpriest Be. 33 T !

- .A- - '-_ - - » & m_
. L3 . .
: - - . . -

1. hwemwwummmmvmn -

/-u-uw-m-B
woder the ditectios of TSD/JS vith the exseytlin of thoss eutogt—" S
fumetioes spectfically meaticoed in comection Vith other MTLTMA
W-.nm,mnmmmmmw ;
will ecutione sloag the 1izms-1ald dows i previces years. Thess .
mﬂnmmmmmummmmu-r '
compomds of Doss heaical fauilies Encwn 6 Bve sPPLIGATIAE in W8
prychochentioal sod T° fislds. mruca-cdu;-rau,n-t
h“ﬁnmﬁn«ﬂ;uﬁ-mmmtﬁl
w prehlan. w-"-unmmmhe-m
lataly to muin puch a chubge in-esphasis vorthviils. In conoection
uamm;tﬁmh-mmtmm-nn
“mu-m-nhmmmn
st faeility viil b porsusd at SEEIRRND 13 the futwre. For tils
reesca 1t any b aecessary to supplemant the findings of Wis subgroject
u—u-'u‘u-mmwuutmaudw.

3. AREEPENIEITR, slee serves a3 & ganerTel coosultaat to the
w,muﬁ--c.mu:--m-aumm.

and serves As & SUMAIt 1A proxuemsst prollsas.

procg  wemy mema -
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st B et BEan B e B s My
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3 -ummsnmmmcuopugd—"ﬁﬂ
scs sxeeed $A0,000.00. Charges should e mads sgaizst Allotaest

ms-mo-ssﬂ i
L. S vas e riqusted ta sidatt o samnry
m-am‘hﬂ’nm&-ulnmrch
’ sponsor’s inspection. Alse, it has bees requsted thet any wexpepded
fumls shall be rvtursed s the Agesey. ; ’
- 5. Titls 0 any permaest equipmest purchased by fumis granted
c-nmunmeB
3mnm¢mmmdnm.

é. It wms sutaally agreed that docamstation sal sceovsting for
mﬂwaﬂdmﬂumwwz'
shall confora vith the sscwpted presticss of the Fumd.
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) . DRAFT

. A

MENORANDUN FOR : THE RECORD . M_b-:h--‘
SUBJECT : MEULTRA, Subproject 149

1. This subproject is being established for the purpﬁ"o -

A
of gupportiu rnlutie tests of ecrt D dovo;gmgn II
dol:l.v-ry lntm cf iaterast to TSD/!I 7“” -“"

2, During the course of dcnlmo“ it is somstimes

:cusd tblt certain vYary necessary uporh-ntl or tests ars 'not
wncd to crdum 1aboratory suuuu-. At the same un,
1t would be dg‘tgieult 1f pot impéssible to conduct such tests ' .
as oy-utiqnd-ﬂ'nd tests. This project 1s designed to pro-~

vide s capability and facilities to 2111 this iptermediste

requirement. -
3. The uuv:ltiol under this subproject will be cop~

ducted by ir. w an fudividual in tbe import and e -
sxport business, n# ur. ag3ip® holda s TOP - -

SECRET Treasury. Dcpnrtnnt cleariice and a SECRET Agency

approval. He i3 onplcnly witting of tho aims and goals c.'! ’ =
his asctivities.
C . Mr. b possesses unique facilities and parsonsl T3

abilities vhich makes bim imvaiuabls in this kind of testing
operation. Nr. ‘ becauss of “his p'ceulu:.m-m SN e ——

P

[
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r
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capabilities as well as bis excelleat eonueuou with all of .
the local law snforcehent agencies, -ul. Providt 4 unique and
opmentiil capabllity, Because ur. g 15 co longer re-C
sident of no* area, it i3 mecessary that &
suitsble replacesent be provided ian order that a capability
for contismance of cur activities be maintaised,

8. The estimated cost of the project u $10,000.00 for

a pericd of one year, Charges should be made m:ut ulomnt

4

Number 4125-1396-39032. Reimbursesept vill be e.;iqﬁgezne!ﬂ!s.eg R

- -

.rendered. teys = P

+
- - — .

6. Accounting for funds advanced asd aoy lquzpolt wader

this- -ubpro,jcet will be in accordance with accoust

ures established by ta@#—m‘m‘ Low ! TS
7. A sesorardum of agresment along uul mtal
previocus sudit recoasendstions 1o like situations will be 2

—

TSD/Blological Branch.

sxscuted,

Distribution:
Original only
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Requast for Support of Ressarch an the Mechanism of Bruin Congusalom

wunmstrrmnmﬂrornmumnemd
bnmm-mtum;-ru‘thb:”‘utrﬁxm.

™ne ﬂamuunmmvwmeh:nsmwuhhmd .
munpmmmummmm-nmuw
dated 27 March 1958, . .

submitted estimsved the dursticn of the

as o Progran
e D rem 109 for the initisl

ubltr-muhtanynﬂnqmatwcumdm.
,“f. - e . - N
Asmwﬂd&m:mw:mph&tw.

mttncu#lhﬂj.mumﬂdtem
L umpnnmlpngmtmlr-b 1955

. - .
mmﬂ-uﬂu-ﬂ.rm-&neﬁ"ﬂe&mhmmdn
$ A .

- fellowss- — I— . o

A BESEARCE FACTLITIES

+ The following ressarch ‘rndntl.u hn-bnn sstablished for the

ssvestigation of the very diverss upm.tmwaumum
studied: ) - ;

8 .aueeiems
. Atotal of 2509 square fest of laborstory and sffice space
. squipped with much of the diversified machisery snd spparstus

. pwesssary for research in this Iiedd.

b. Jiast Range : - '

A blast range mommu.mzmw
approxias the laboratory. Toais
and is cleesd to the public.
mmwnuhnmmunu.

ey e e

—
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10.3 TreLLAr, V. defines brain sencussien . ean sssetially 7
sransimt state due e nead Anjury vaish is of Lrstantanieuwd
: enset, manlferts videspread nymptoms of purely paralytis
- M.mm»mmﬂuwmucdlwm
cersbral injury, » 3

10.2 The implication of the underlined portion of the sbove stateent
umtuauwunuﬂmnm«-mmm
wi .
mm.mpmwmqnmumnubnunm
pad bappensd to kim. Dnder thess conditions the same technique
dwwmmuﬂwddhu-udwtmcﬂm

" 10,3 First, sonsidering the possibilities of direct inpact to the
head_or body, it should be.possible Irom the findingy of this
research progran to determine the [ollewing: -

for-the_specific afl

‘ving either advance wirning or causing oxsernal physical

ests desired,
& nﬁwv‘mhlﬂ‘“m.ﬂ.ﬂm-
10.6 In regard to the potential impacting devicss, thars are certain

advanes wArning. .

b.. The ares of i=pact and foree ¢istritmiliog
should be such that surfaece trsow does -
pot ocour,

..mwv«mmmamu
zumumnmum..um

. the derired affect.
. d.mmwunun'uuum

u!miu-. .

10,5 The specific impacting devices might taile ibe form of sry of
the following: .
..lpnubwmek-kckumlughmk

upctrerwulthlmmturtmm.

b, Concealsd or camcuflaged spring-losded impacting
devioes mtmmrupuuhmtmﬁmw.
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- pressure wave_can_produes_profound sffscts
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L e e . & prejessile ¥y L Y]
wsing & —n_.ns tu.\-l'oxt:i :"n..;'::;h-
d. An sxplesive pad detanasisd in sentast with the
] head er the bedy.

i
Lat us now consider the possibilitiss of exciting the resensnce

cavitstion directly without impact. Thars is considerable avidence
that resonance cavitation can be induced direetly in the fellowing

ways: S
. ». A tlast vave propigated in sir. (Elast Cescussion)

b. Pysiesl sxeitation vith a mechanical driver
or horm, tuummnmr?w.r

the head. B
A 3ingle Elast pressure wave propagsted im air must beve considerstle
antensity in erder ts produce braia concussien, bowever, thare i3
considerabls svidence {Carver & Minaley) that modificatim of the

Excitation of the resonsnce aavitatim b
sprears to be ‘s reasonable possibility. Concentration of the
n-uummupmundumnwuummm
‘and meflectors. The blast durstion weuld be in the order of &
tenth of a second, HMesiing of 3 noise tion should net

3
E
¢

af
nsmmmwmmmmxmmm
hm:hdmlép-tdpncuulmardmnpmmw.
sven though temporary, t0 brain concussion. One technique that sppears
uhnpmmuumlmmwtmdlﬂlmw
of gas, approximately 1 ce, into the spimal sord. Tais gas bubble
-mueuaaommrmuuummmcmmuumm
of the brain. The abllity of this bubile to expand under dynsmia
londing would be most effective in prevefiting yesenance cavitation
from occuring. R



MATERIAL FOR THE RECORD

MKSEARCH, OFTEN/CHICKWIT

MESEARCH was the name given to the continuation of the MKULTRA pro-
gram. Funding commenced in FY 1966, and ended in FY 19072 Its purpose was to
develop, test, and evaluate capabilities in the envert use of biological, chemical,
and radloactive material systems and techniques for producing predictable human
beha vioral and7or Piireiological changes in support of highly sensitive opera tional

requirements.
OFTEN/CHICKWIT

In 1961 the Office of Research and Development { ORD} snd the Edgewood -

Arsenal Research Laboratories undertook a program for doing research on the
identificatior and characterization of drugy that could influence human behavior.
Edgewood had the facilities for the full range of laboratory and clinical testing.
A phased Prograin Was envisioned that would consist of acquisition of drugs and
chemical compounds believed to have effects on the belhavior of humans, and
testing and evaluating these mwateriala through laboratory procedures and toxi-
cological studiex. Comwpounds belleved promising as 4 result of tests ou animals
were then to be evaluated clinically with buman subjects at Edgewood. Substances
ot potential use would then be analyzed structurally as a basis for identifying and
synthesizing possible new derivatives of greater utility.

The program was divided into two projects, P'roject OFTEN was to deal with
testing the toxicological, transmisivity and behavioral effects of drugs in animals
and, ultimately, humans. Project CHICKWIT wa=n enncerned-with acquiring intor-
matl(;n on new drug developments in Evrope and the Orjent, and with acquiring
samples. :

There 18 a discrepancy betsween the testimony of DOD and CIA regarding the
testing at Edgewood Arsenal in Tune 1073. While there is agreement that human
testing occurred at that place and time, there is disagreement as to who was
responsible for financing and sponsorship. (See hearings before the Subcommittee
on Herlth and Scientific Research of the Senate Human Resources Committee,

September 21, 1877.)
(189)
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THE DIRECTOR OF CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE

WASHINGTION, b. . N3

Office of Legislatvs Counsel " 23 Deceamber 1977

__Honorable Daniel X. Inouye, Chairman
Select Committee on Intelligence = — T
United States Senate

washiagton, D.C, 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

During Admiral Turner's 3 August 1977 testimony
before your Committee and the Senate Human Resources
Subcomnittee on Health and Scientific Research, you asked
whether any  Agency employees had been terminated because of
their participation in MKULTRA Subproject 3. Admiral
Turner indicated he did not believe any employee had
been terminated, but would have Agency records searched
on this question. Our records have been searched and the
results confirm the Director's testimony that no such

actions were taken.
Sinc;rel '
S;;%ff:%f L. Car:éj

egislative Counsel
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QEKHILLTOP DEFINITION

QKHILLTOP was a cryptonym assigned In 1954 to a project to study Chinese
Communist brainwashing techpiques and'to develop interrogation techniques.
Most of the early studies are believed to have been conducted by the Cornell
University Medical School Human Ecology Study Programs. The effort was
sbsorbed into the MEULTRA program and the QKHILLTOP cryptonyin became
obsolete. The Soclety for tbe fnvestigation of Human Ecology, later the Human
Ecology Fund, was ap outgrowth of the QRHILLTOP.
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